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CITY MANAGER' S OFFICE 


November 5, 2013 

The Honorable Mayor, 
Members of the Cily Council and Citizens 
City of Fayetteville 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Dear Mayor. Members of the City Council, and Citizens: 

It is our pleasure to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the 
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. State law 
requires that every local government publish a complete set of audited financial 
statements. The financial statements must be presented in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards by a firm of certified public accountants. This report 
complies with these requirements. 

The CAFR consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the 
City. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and 
reliability of the information contained in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for 
making these representations, management of the City has established a 
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to protect City assets and to 
compile information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in conformity 
with GAAP. The cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits; therefore , 
the internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. 

Cherry Bekaert LLP, Certified Public Accountants , have issued an unmodified ("clean") 
opinion on the City of Fayetteville's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 
30,2013. The independent auditors' report is located at the front of the financial section 
of this report . 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent 
auditors' report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysiS of the basic 
financial statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in 
conjunction with it. 
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PROFILE OF THE CITY 

FayetteviJ1e is a thriving community located in the Sandhi lis region of southeastern North 
Carolina and is the seat of Cumberland County. The City is approximately 60 miles 
south of the State capital of Raleigh. Fayetteville is located adjacent to Interstate 
Highway 95, a major north-south corridor linking the City with New York to the north and 
Miami to the south. 

Fayetteville has been recognized three times as an "All-America Cit( by the National 
Civic League and is known as a community of "History, Heroes and a Hometown 
Feeling". In 2012, Fayetteville celebrated the 2501h anniversary of its founding. In 1762, 
the town of Campbellton, located on the Cape Fear River, was chartered by the colonial 
assembly. In 1778, Campbellton united with the neighboring town of Cross Creek to 
become Upper and Lower Campbellton. In 1783, the North Carolina General Assembly 
approved the town's official renaming to Fayetteville in honor of the Marquis de 
Lafayette, the French nobleman who served as a Major General in the Continental Army 
during the Revolutionary War. 

Fort Bragg Army Base, one of the largest military complexes in the world, is located 
approximately 10 miles from the City's downtown and significantly adds to the culture of 
the community and the local economy. Fort Bragg has traditionally been known as the 
home of the Army's only Airborne Corps and the 82nd Airborne Division, as we!! as the 
U.S. Army Special Operations Command and 3'd Special Forces Group. In 2011, Fort 
Bragg also became the headquarters for the Army's combat-ready conventional forces 
and Army Reserve following the move of U.S. Army Forces Command (FORSCOM) and 
U.S. Army Reserve Command (USARC) to the base. The base also encompasses 
Pope Army Air Field, formerly Pope Air Force Base, which provides strategic airlift 
aviation assets required to support Fort Bragg's missions. In November 2011 , 
Livability.com recognized Fayetteville as the number one city in the country for military 
veterans to live, noting the city as "America's First Military Sanctuary Community" 
because of the strong support offered to service members and their families. 

Fayetteville is the sixth largest municipality in the State with a population estimated at 
209,080, and encompassing 148.65 square miles as of June 30, 2013. The City's 
population increased by 65.7% or 79,549 residents between the U.S. Census counts 
conducted in 2000 and 2010. Much of the population growth resulted from the City's 
statutory authority to extend its corporate limits through annexation. In September 2005, 
the City completed an annexation, referred to as MPhase V ' , of approximately 42,000 
residenls and 27 square miles. Most recently, the North Carolina General Assembly 
approved legislation to annex portions of Fort Bragg into the City effective September 1, 
2008. This annexation added approximately 26,000 residents and 54 square miles to 
the City . 

The City has a council-manager form of government. Nine members of the City Council 
are elected from districts and the Mayor is elected at large. Each of the Council 
Members and the Mayor serve two-year concurrent terms. The City Council has policy 
making and legislative authority. The Council is responsible for the approval of the 
budget and appointment of the City Manager, City Attorney, Public Works Commission 
(PWC) and members of other City boards, committees and commissions. The City 
Manager is responsible for implementing Council policies and City ordinances, 
managing daily operations and appointing department directors. 
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The City provides its citizens with a full range of services, including police and fire 
protection, solid waste and recycling services, the construction and maintenance of 
streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, stormwater drainage systems and other infrastructure , 
recreation and cultural activities, fixed-route and demand-response transit service, 
airport service, and elec1ric, water and wastewater uti/ities. This report includes all of the 
City's activities in delivering and administering these services. 

The Council is required to adopt a budget by July 1s1 of each year. The City is 
empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its 
boundaries. The City's budget ordinance creates a legal limit on spending 
authorizations, and serves as the foundation for Fayetteville's financial planning and 
control. The annual budget is authorized at the department level in the General Fund, in 
operating, capital and transfer expenditure categories for the ElectriC, Water and 
Wastewater Funds, and at the fund level for the Storm Water Management Fund and all 
other funds. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when 
it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the 
City operates. 

The economy of Fayetteville is greatly stabilized by the presence of Fort Bragg Army 
Base. Approximately 51,000 military personnel are stationed at Fort Bragg, with support 
from an additional 23,000 civilian employees and contractors. The direct impact of 
payroll alone added almost $3.6 billion to the regional economy in federal fiscal year 
2012 . 

Budget reductions mandated by sequestrat ion for federal fiscal year 2013 included six 
days of furlough for 8,500 Fort Bragg civilian employees, followed by furl oughs due to 
the federal government shu tdown in October, 2013. W hile federal budget uncertainty 
remains for fiscal year 2014, continuing furloughs are an ticipated and the potential for 
240 civilian position reductions have been announced. Citing the strategic importance of 
Fort Bragg's global response force in a September, 2013 address, the deputy 
commanding general of the 18'" Airborne Corps foresaw minimal changes in the number 
of soldiers on the post, and reduc1ions of positions, as opposed to people, in the civilian 
workforce for 20 14. 

In addition to Fort Bragg, substantial employment is also offered in the government 
sector through the public school system, colleges and universities, and county and city 
governments. Other major employers in the area include the Cape Fear Valley Health 
System, manufacturers such as the Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company, which has one 
of the largest tire producing factories in the world, Purolalor Products which produces 
auto filters , and Wal-Mart through its distribution center and retail outlets. 

Significant investment to modernize plant equipment has been made at the Fayetteville 
Goodyear plant since 2007 with the Slate of North Carolina , Cumberland County and the 
City committing to economic incentives for the investment and job retention. In 2012, 
the plant scaled back production, shut down for one week due to sluggish demand and 
announced plans to eliminate approximately 200 jobs, or about 7% of its workforce, by 
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the end of November, 2012 by offering buyouts in order to avoid involuntary layoffs. In 
August , 2013, a master labor contract was ratified which protects the plant from closure 
during its four year term. 

During the past five years, Fayetteville's annual unemployment rates have ranged from a 
low of 5.1% to a high of 7.6%, according to the North Carolina Oepartment of 
Commerce, Division of Employment Security. In August 2013, the unemployment rates 
for Fayetteville, North Carolina and the United States were 7.3%, 8.3% and 7.3%, 
respectively . Historical unemployment rates for Fayetteville, North Carolina and the 
United States are provided in the table below. 

Unemployment Rates' 
North UnitedFayettevilleYear Carolina States 

2012 7.5 9.5 8.1 
2011 7.6 10.5 9.0 
2010 7.3 11 .0 9.6 
2009 6.7 10.5 9.3 
2008 5.1 6.3 5.8 

• Source of unemployment data is the North Carolina Depattment of 
Commerce, OivisiOn of EmplOyment Security 

Per capita personal income in Cumberland Counly grew 5.5% percent between 2010 
and 2011 to $44,678. as compared 10 nation-wide ($41 ,560, up 4.4%) and state-wide 
($36.028. up 4.1%) statistics for the same period. Growth in compensation for military 
and federal civilian workers has helped to fuel local per capita income growth over the 
past decade. 

During fiscal year 2013, the City issued building permits for 1,485 new residential units 
valued at $127.8 million, and 71 new commercial building permits valued at $57.3 
million, as compared to permits issued for 1,514 new residential units valued at $153.6 
million and 62 new commercial buildings valued at $36.6 million in fiscal year 2012. 

The City is a major regional trade center in eastern North Carolina, with a significant 
number and variety of shopping plazas, centers and independent retailers. Evidence of 
the strong retail sector is reflected by one of the largest shopping areas of the Carolinas, 
a two-square mile area located within the city. Cross Creek Mall, the anchor of the 
shopping district, has more than one million square feet of floor space and four major 
department stores. Notably, construction is currently underway to add 46,000 square 
feet of retail and restaurant space to the mall. 

Taxable sales in Cumbertand County for fiscal year 2013 totaled approximately $3.56 
billion, which represented a 0.8% increase over fiscal year 2012. Historical sales for 
Fayetteville and Cumberland County are provided in the following table. 
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Retail ffaxable Sales· 
Fiscal City of % Cumberland % 
Year Favetteville Chanae Cauntv Change 
2013 N/A N/A $3,558,501 ,388 0.8 
2012 N/A N/A 3,531,570,536 4.6 
2011 N/A N/A 3,375,817,327 4.2 
2010 N/AN/A 3,240,731,656 13.9 
2009 $2,348,317,596 2. 1 2,844,376,173 3.4 

"'The NC Department of Revenue does 1'101 provide municipal sales data after June 30, 2009. 

While FayetteVi lle's economy is stable, the extent of potential local impacts from federal 
budget cuts for 2014 is not known at this time. In 2012, the Milken Institute ranked the 
Fayetteville metropolitan statistical area (MSA) as the 56th best-performing of the 200 
largest metropolitan areas based upon comparisons of job, wage and salary and 
technology growth. In 2013, the Policom Corporation ranked the Fayetteville MSA as 
having the 59th strongest economy of the 366 MSAs nationwide. 

The City Council adopted a fiscal year 2014 budget based on modest rates of growth in 
the ad valorem tax base and taxable sales. Fayetteville 's strong strategic planning 
process and conservative fiscal management continue to allow the City to maintain a 
high priority on both the delivery of quality services and financial stability. 

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING and MAJOR INITIATIVES 

The City's long-term vision is evident in Fayetteville'S strong commitment to 
neighborhoods, enhancing the local economy, maintaining a vibrant downtown and 
major corridors, increasing leisure opportunities for its citizens, its diverse culture, rich 
heritage, and partnership with citizens, while maintaining a strong financial position. 

The City Council has committed to key goals and an action agenda consistent with 
Fayettevi lle's vision. These goals and targets for action are discussed in the City's 
strategic plan on the City's website at INWIN.ci.fayetteville.nc.us. 

In June 2011 , City Council adopted a fund balance policy that establishes a minimum 
General Fund unassigned fund balance of at least 10% of the succeeding year's 
General Fund expenditure budget, excluding the budget for Cumberland County's 
recreation programs. The purpose of the policy is to maintain sufficient resources in the 
General Fund to cover unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls. In addition, the 
City's practice has been to appropriate fund balance for one-time expenditures or 
significant capital needs. These goals were achieved in fiscal year 2013 and were used 
to develop the fiscal year 20 14 operating budget. Unassigned fund balance in the 
General Fund was $17.6 million or 11 .9 percent of the original FY2014 Genera l Fund 
budget, excluding the county recreation programs; and therefore, exceeded the 10 
percent minimum established by City Council. 

Annually, the City adopts a six-year capital improvement program (CIP) for its electric, 
water and wastewater utility funds and a five-year CIP for other functions such as public 
safety, parks, transportation, stormwater system, airport and transit. The City also 
prepares a five-year financial forecast for its General Fund approximately every three to 
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five years. The purpose of the forecast is to enhance the City's financial planning 
process. The forecast incorporates the Council-adopted strategic plan, five-year capital 
improvement plan, capital funding plan, and adopted budget. 

Consistent with its capital funding policy, in fiscal year 2013 the City dedicated an 
amount equivalent to 5.65 cents of the 45.6-cent ad valorem tax rate , as well as 
specifically earmarked revenues, for the repayment of principal and interest on 
installment financing agreements for facilities and equipment and general obligation debt 
and for future cash funding of major capital improvements. The City assigns any excess 
dedicated revenues at year-end and accumulated fund balance for future capital projects 
consistent with the adopted capital improvement funding plan. The City's commitment to 
the capital funding plan will generate significant funding capacity in future fiscal years. 

In September 2009, the City received upgrades of its credit ratings on general obligation 
bonds from AA- to AA+ and from Aa3 to Aa2 from Standard & Poor's (S&P) and Moody's 
Investor Services (Moody's), respectively. In May 2010, Moody's recalibrated the City's 
credit rating for general obligation bonds from Aa2 to Aa1 . These ratings are consistent 
with Council policy. 

The City also followed other practices designed to avoid using one-time revenues for 
recurring expenditures, to ensure an ongoing mix of pay-as-you-go and long-term debt 
funding of capital needs, and to periodically monitor revenues and expenditures to 
budget. 

The City also accomplished or continued work on several other financial, organizational 
and economic development goals including: 

• 	 The City initiated a phase one study to examine opportunities to align internal 
services, reduce redundancies and improve efficiencies between the City and its 
PWC to better serve the interests of local citizens and customers. 
Communication, financial, human resources, lega\ and information technology 
services are among those to be considered during the study. The study also 
includes an examination of the City's practices compared to its charter provisions 
regarding the delivery of utility services, as well as several financial and 
operational policies and practices related to fiber optic services, sharing 
municipal electric franchise taxes, and existing shared internal services. 

• 	 The City continued to enhance its transit service, making certain routes more 
convenient by reducing travel times, eliminaling the need for certain transfers, 
and adding new services along Reilly Road. These improvements were 
identified in the Transit Development Plan, commissioned in 2009, to guide 
service improvements. From calendar year 2008 to 2012, transit system 
ridership has increased by 74.7%. In April 2013, Transit implemented its first 
fare increase since 2007. 

• 	 In early 2013, the City conducted a citizen survey to seek citiz.en 's input 
regarding services, new initiatives and future policy. The last citiz.en survey was 
completed in 2006. Approximately 2,400 homes were randomly selected to 
participate. The survey results provide an important tool to determine if city 
services are meeting residents' expectations and to incorporate citizen feedback 
into the early stages of the strategic planning process. The survey showed the 
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most important priorities for the City to address are public safety. traffic flow, 
street maintenance improvements, and greater access to public pools. 

• 	 The Fayetleville Metropolitan Housing Authority (FMHA) was awarded a $20 
million HOPE VI Revitalization grant in April 2008 to demolish and replace two 
public housing projects comprised of barrack·style buildings built in the 1940s 
and 19505. The City, the City's Public Works Commission (PWC) and the 
County committed over $18 million for land, infrastructure, park development. 
housing and various fee waivers. The total project investment is expected to be 
approximately $119 million, the balance of which will be funded by private 
investment. During fiscal year 2013, project partners completed construction of a 
community resource center and be9an construction of a daycare facility. In 
addition, the City continued to acquire properties in the residential and business 
park project areas. To dale, the FMHA has relocated 214 public housing 
residents, demolished 249 units of public housing, and has constructed 522 
multi ·famil y units. Thirty single family houses have also been built. 

• 	 In November 2012, the City approved the sale and redevelopment agreement for 
a 4.65 acre site located near the entrance of the North Carolina Veterans Park in 
downtown Fayetteville. The agreement requires the developer to construct a 
residential subdivision consisting of at least 47 housing units with a total 
investment value of at least $9,000,000 no later than December 2014. 

• 	 The City, other local municipalities and Cumberland County reached a new 
three·year agreemenl for sharing sales tax revenues wilhin the County. The 
agreement is generally an exlension of Ihe previous nine· year sales tax 
agreement that expired June 30, 2013. The agreement requires local 
governments within Cumberland County to share sales tax revenue on a 
modjfied per·capita basis. 

• 	 The City, in partnership with the Chamber of Commerce, developed and 
implemented a land acquisition strategy for the Murchison Road corridor 
development project. The City's five· year capital improvement plan includes 
$920,000 for land acquisition for the project. In addition, demolition at the 
Washington Drive Elementary School site and the gateway project at Martin 
Luther King Park were completed during the fiscal year. 

• 	 The City, with and through its plJi/c , accomplished or continued work on several 
utility system financial , operational and economic development policies and goals 
including: 

o 	 Continued work to implement Navigate, the PWC's comprehensive 
information technology system project, with full implementation expected 
in fiscal year 2014. The multi·year project will replace the customer 
information, financial and work management systems as well as add 
asset management and meter data management. 

o 	 Secured a $14.8 million zero·percent interest loan from the North 
Carolina Department of Environmental and Natural Resources at the 
beginning of the first of three expansion phases of the P.O. Hoffer Water 
Treatment Facility. The first phase is expected to cost $17 million and will 
start in fiscal year 2014. 
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o 	 Developed an Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) strategy and 
began selection of contractors to make AMI infrastructure changes and 
install over 150,000 advanced electric and water meters beginning in 
fiscal year 2014. 

o 	 8egan developing conservation incentive programs that will help 
customers bener manage their utility use with information made possible 
from new metering technology. 

o 	 Extended sanitary sewer services to over 2,600 properties as part of the 
City's Annexation Phase V utility retrofitting project. Plans call for 
extending service to an additional 6 ,000 properties by 2024. 

During the year, the City continued or completed work on many significant capital 
projects including the following: 

• 	 The City made significant progress toward several improvement projects at the 
Fayetteville Regional Airport. During fiscal year 2013, $6.6 million of funding 
from federal and state grants, passenger facility fees and airport operating 
revenues was invested in the projects , which included ai rport apron. taxiway and 
runway improvements. 

• 	 During the fiscal year, the City continued to acquire land, demolish buildings on 
the acquired properties and substantially completed design and construction 
documents for a multi-modal transportation center that will be located along 
Robeson Streel. The City also received an $8 million federal grant for the 
construction of the facility. The City is required to match the grant with a $2 
mi llion local contribution toward the project. 

• 	 The City issued a $10.6 million revenue bond for its Storm Water Management 
System in August. 2011 . During fiscal year 2012, the City invested $4.4 million 
of the bond proceeds and storm water system revenues in various drainage 
system improvement projects throughout the community. 

• 	 Invested approximately $4.9 million in the resurfacing of streets, construction of 
sidewalks and traffic system improvements. In addition, streets, sidewalks and 
stormwater system improvements valued at appro)(imately $3.3 million were 
contributed to the City. 

• 	 The City continued development of a 3D-acre western area neighborhood park 
located at the Century Circle Schools comple)(. When complete, the park. will 
include two football/soccer fields, four basebaillsoftball fields, a running track, 
and a concession facility. 

• 	 Installation of light-emitting diode (LED) street lights began as a small scale test 
of converting over 16,000 streetlights city-wide to LED lighting. LEOs have a 
longer life and use less energy than traditi onal st reet lights and will help PWC 
meet State mandates for renewable energy. 

• 	 PWC continued rehabilitation and replacement of aging electric, water and 
sanitary sewer system infrastructure. Electric system projects include rebuilding 
substations. and replacing aging wooden poles with steel poles with a 50-year 
life expectancy. Water and sanitary sewer system projects include replacing and 
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relining existing mains to improve the quality of seIVices, reduce losses and 
unaccounted for volumes and extend the hfe of the distribution and collection 
systems. 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Associalion of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2012. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a 
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive 
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our 
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of 
Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to 
determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

This report is the work of the efficient and dedicated staff of the Finance Department. 
We wish to express our appreCiation to all members of the department who assisted and 
contributed to the preparation of this report and to the entire City staff for their 
cooperation and assistance, Credit is also due to the Mayor and the members of the 
City Council for their unfailing support of the highest standards of professionalism in the 
management of FayettevilJe's finances. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~tf{. L~hJ, /:n,<)du 

City Manager Chief Financial Officer 
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=: Cherry Bekaert"' 
CPA,&A. , 

Report of Independent Auditor 

The HonQ(able Mayor 
and Members 01 the City Council 

City of Fayetteville 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmenlal activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregale remaining fund information of the City of Fayettev'l1!e, North 
Carolina (the ·City~) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes 10 the financial 
statements which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparatioo and fair presentation of Ihese financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes the deSign, 
implementation, and maintenance 01 intemal controt relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements thai are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on Ihese financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller of the United 
Slates. Those standards require that we plan and periorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free o( material misstatement. 

An audit involves periorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's jUdgment, inCluding the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud Of error. In making those risk 
assessments , the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control . Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion . An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of signiftcant accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of th e financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 
In our opmion, based on our audit , the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all malerial 
respects, lhe respective financial poSition of the governmental activities, the business-type activrties, each major 
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2013, and Ihe respective changes in 
financial position and cash Hows, where appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the 
General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Change in Accounting Principle 
As discussed in Notes 1, 7, and 15 to the financial statements, the City adopted Ihe provisions of Govemmental 
Accountiog Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Oufflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. and Governmental Accounting Standards Soard Statement No. 65. Items 
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. effective July 1, 201 2. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion 
and Analysis. the Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance and the Other Post-Employment Benefit 
Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions on pages G-1 through G-8, respectively , be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, althOugh not a part of the basic financial 
statements. is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial repOr1ing for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operaiional. economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amenca, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for conSistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements . We do not express an opinion or provide any assu rance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 10 express an opinion or provide any assurance . 

Suppfementary and Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comp!ise 
the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary information, other schedules, the 
statistical sedion, the Schedute of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, as required by U.S, Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Slate and Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and 
the State Single Audit Implementation Act. and the Schedule of Expenditu res of Passenger Facility Charges. as 
req uired by the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Gu;de (or Public AgenCies. issued by the Federal Aviation 
Administrat ion, are presented for purposes of addilional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The supplementary informalion, other schedules, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, and 
the Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges are Ihe responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subiected to th e auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 10 the basic 
financial stalements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the Uniled States of America by us. In our opinion, based on our audit and the procedures performed as 
described above. the supplementary information, other schedules. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and Stale 
Awards. and Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges are fairly slated . in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole . 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financia l statements and, accordingly. we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

B-2 



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our leport dated November 5, 2013, on 
our consideration of Ihe City's internal control over financial reporting and on our lests of ils compliance wilh certain 
provisions of la'WS, regulations, contract s and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of inlemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results 01 that 
testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, That report is 
an integral pall of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in conSidering the City's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance , 

Fayetteville , North Carolina 
November 5, 2013 
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--------- CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the City of Fayetteville nhe City"), we offer readers of the City's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2013. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction 
with additional information that we have furnished in the transmittal letter at the front of this report and 
the City's financial statements, which follow this narrative, 

Financial Highlights 

• 	 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Fayetteville exceeded its liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $1.3 billion (net position). Of 
this amount, $289.3 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the government's 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The government's total net position increased by 
$23.5 million. 

• 	 Net position increased $0. 7 million to $416.8 million in fiscal year 2013, up from $416.1 million 
in fiscal year 2012 in the Governmental activities. 

• 	 Net position increased $22.8 million to $919.4 million in fiscal year 2013, up from $896.6 million 
in fiscal year 2012 in the Business type activities. By lar, the largest portion 01 net position, 
$669.2 million or 72.8 percent, reflects the net investment in capital assets less any related debt 
still outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets in the Electric, Water and Wastewater, 
Storm Water Management, Transit, Airport and Solid Waste Recycling activities. 

• 	 As of the close of fiscal year 2013, the City's governmental funds reported an ending fund 
balance of $64 .2 million, a decrease of $0.3 million in comparison to the prior year. 
Approximately 42.5 percent of tot al fund balance, or $27.3 million is nonspendable or restricted. 

• 	 At the end of fiscal year 2013, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $17.6 million 
or 12.2 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers out for the fiscal year. 

• 	 The City's total debt decreased by $12.5 million during fiscal year 2013. 

• 	 The City's most recent general obligation bond issue was rated Aa2 (Moody's Investor Services) 
and AA+ (Standard & Poor's). The City·s Public Works Commission oulstanding revenue bonds 
carry an Aa2 (stable outlook) and AA (stable outlook) credit rating Irom Moody's and Standard 
and Poor's, respectively. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

ThiS discussion and analysis are intended to selVe as an introduction to the City of Fayetteville's basic 
financial statements which consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) 
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements as shown below. The basic financial 
statements present two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and 
fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other 
supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the 
City. This report includes all funds of the City of Fayetteville as well as its component units, which are 
described in the following pages. Note 1 in the financial report includes further discussion of the 
reporting entity and description of funds. 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

Figure 1 

Management's Basic 

Discussion and Financial 

Analysis Statements 

Government-wide Fund 

Financial Financial 

Statements Statements 

Notes to the 

Financial 

Statements 

Summary • Detail 
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--------- CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE --------­

Basic Financial Statements 

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial 
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City of Fayetteville's 
financi al status. 

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the 
individual parts of the City 01 Fayeltevl1Ie's government. These statements provide more detail than the 
government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the 
governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund 
statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements 
explain in detail some of the data contain ed in those statements. After the notes, supplemental 
information is provided to show details about the City's non-major governmental and proprietary funds 
and the internal service funds. The governmental and internal service funds are added together in one 
column on the basiC financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statu tes also 
can be found in this part of the statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of 
the City of Fayetteville's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. 
The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the City's financial 
status as a whole. 

The two government-wide statements report the City's net position and how they have changed. Net 
position is the difference between the City 's total assets and deferred outflows of resources and lotal 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the City's 
financial condition. 

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2} 
business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as 
general administration , public safety, environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical 
development, and recreation and community facilities. Property and other taxes, and state and federal 
grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City 
charges customers to provide. These include the electriC, water and wastewater, storm water, airport, 
transit and solid waste recycling services offered by the City of Fayetteville or its Public Works 
Commission. 

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 0-1 and 0-2 oflhis report . 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed took al the City of Fayelteville 's most signilicant 
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like all other governmental entities 
in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with 
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City's budget ordinance. All of 
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds. proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds. 
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---------- CITY OF FAYETIEVI LLE --------­

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental aclivilies in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City of Fayetteville's 
basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily 
be converted into cash flow in and Qut, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for 
spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called 
modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial resources focus. As a result, the 
governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her 
determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City's programs. The 
relationship between governmental activilies (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement 01 Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part 01 the fund 
financial statements. 

The City of Fayetteville adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General 
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporales input from the cilizens of the 
City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the City Council about which services to provide 
and how to pay for them . It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance 
these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates 
how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in 
providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison 
statement on page E-5 of this report uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the 
same format, language, and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance. The statement shows lour columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the City 
Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the City Council; 3) the actual resources, charges to 
appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between 
the final budget and the actual resources and charges. 

Proprietary Funds - The City of Fayetteville has two kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are 
used to report the same function s presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and wastewater, 
storm water, mass transit, airport and solid waste recycling operations. These funds are the same as 
those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and 
allocate costs internally among the functions of the City. The City uses an internal service fund to 
account for its fleet maintenance and risk management activities. All of these services predominantly 
benefil governmental functions except for the fleet maintenance lund, which also provides service to 
the business type activities. These services have been included within their respective predominant 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Fiduciary Funds - Trust funds are used to account for the activities of funds the City holds in trust 
for others. The City has one pension trust fund and two private-purpose trust funds. 

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements are on pages F-1 - F-52 of this report. 

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its 
obligation to provide penSion and other post-employment benefits to its employees. Required 
supplementary information can be found begi nning on page G-1 of this report . 
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Government-wide Financial Analysis 

Net Position. The following is a summary of net position for the City of Fayetteville at June 30, 2013 
with comparative data for June 30, 2012. The City's combined net position increased $23.5 million, or 
1.8% from fiscal year 2012 to 2013. Net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a 
government's financial condition. The information provided below provides a more detailed view of the 
City's net position. 

City ot Fayetteville's Net Position (dollars in thousands) 

Figure 2 

Governmental BuslnesS·lype 
Aclivilies Aclivities 

2012 """" "" 
11).743 S 113.315 328.283 S 333.600 S 440.026 S 446.91 5II ~:~::::: assets 380.715 376.558 787.239 831.884 1.167.954 1.208.452II outflow s of (&sources 383 302 10.892 7,393 


Tota l assOls arid d(l/"rnld 

OlJtllOW$ 01 resources 492.84 1 490,185 1.126.414 1.172.877 '. 

59.311 54,419 181.952 186.898 24 1.25:3 24 1.317 
, ; 16.753 18,460 47.853 66.551 64.606 85.0 11 I E:;: :I;f::~':': oUlslandingI Inl low $ 01 resources '78 

TOlal nab n~ies and delerred '" 
inflOw s 01 resources 76,742 73.363 229.805 253.449 

I pos~io~ : 

Nal inveslrrenl in capital assets 346.265 348,741 635.244 669,167 981.509 1.0 17,908 
ReS tr iC ted 2B.200 27,136 1.999 1.884 28.1 99 29.020 
UnreStr iC led 

TOlar nel position 

The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $1.3 billion as 
of June 30 , 2013 . Net position is reported in three categories: net investment in capital assets of $1 .0 
billion: restricted net poSition of $29.0 million; and unrestricted net position of $289.3 million. 

The net investment in capital assets category is defined as the City's investment in City owned capital 
assets (e.g. infrastructure, land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other equipment, and 
electric. water, wastewater and storm water systems), less any related debt still outstanding thai was 
issued to acquire those items. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net 01 the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt 
must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannol be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Another category 01 net position is restricted net position. This represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. 

The final category 01 net position is unrestricted net position. This balance may be used to meet the 
government's ongoing obligations to cil izens and creditors. At June 30, 2013, $289.3 million, or 21.7% 
of the reported total net position of $1.3 billion, is unrestricted. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVI LLE 

City at Fayetteville's Changes in Net Position (dol/ars in thousands) 


Figure 3 


Governmental Business ·type 
Acli" lies Acli...;ties Total 

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013-­ -­

Revenues: 
Program re..enues : 

Charges lor sero.-ices $ 12.235 $ 12,553 , 28 1,427 $ 296,157 $ 293,662 $ 308,710 
Operating grants and contributions 12.053 1' ,l S0 2,488 2.789 14,541 13,949 
Capital grants and contributions 6.9il5 5,003 22,020 12.1 66 29.005 17,189 

General re'J9nues : 
Property taxes 60,130 62,067 · · 60,130 62,067 
Other taxes 47 .168 48.753 · · 4 7,168 48 ,753 

Grants and conlributions not restricted 
to specific program s 902 840 · 902 840 

Other 2.125 1.585 4,231 4,405 6.356 5,990 
Total re-.enu es 141,598 14 1,981 310,166 315,517 451 ,764 457,498 

EJ<penses: 
A;jministration 21.677 22,72 1 · 2 1,677 22,721 
PubliC safety 72,119 72.693 · 72,119 72,693 
Em4ronmentat protection 8,370 8 ,101 · · 8,370 8,101 
Transportation 19,948 20,294 · · 19,948 20,294 
Economic and physical development 5,569 6,301 · · 5,569 6,30 1 
Recreation and communiI}' facilities 13 .490 13,502 · · 13,490 13,502 
Interes t and fees 1,455 1.158 1,465 1,158 
Electric · 146,117 197,554 146 ,117 197,554 
Water and wastewater · 65,169 68,877 65,169 68,877 
Storm water m anagement . · 2,89 1 3,226 2,89 1 3,226 
Transit . · 7,665 7,722 7,665 7,722 
Airport 5,260 6,085 5,260 6,085 
Solid w aste recycling · 2,145 2,189 2,145 2,189 

Tolal expenses 142,638 144 ,770 229,247 285,653 371 ,885 430,423 

Increase in nel position before tra ns lers (1,040) (2,789) 80,919 29,864 79,879 27,075 
and special item s 

Transfers 6 ,083 3,91 8 (6,083) (3,91 8) . . 

Increase in net position 5,043 1,1 29 74 ,836 25.946 79,879 27,075 

Net position, July 1 432,407 416 ,099 800,422 896,609 1,232,829 1,3 12,708 

Change in accounting principte (Note 15; (2 1.35 1) (406) 2 1,351 (3.127) . (3,533) 

Net position, June 30 $ 416,099 $ 41 6,822 $ 896,609 $ 919,428 $1 ,312,708 $1 ,336,250 

Governmental activities: The increase in net position for governmental activities after the change in 
accounting principle of $0.4 million was $1.1 million, resulling in net position of $4 16.9, thereby 
accounting for a 0,3% 01 the total growth in the net position of the City of Fayetteville. 
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CITY OF FAYffiEVILLE -------- ­

Revenues for the City's governmental activities were $142.0 million, while total expenses were $144.8 
million in fiscal year .2013. The increase in net position for governmental activities, after transfers in, 
was $ 1. 1 million. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

• 	 Ad valorem property tax revenues increased $1 .9 million to $62.1 million primarily due to 
development within the City. Property taxes represent 43.7 percent of total governmental 
revenues. 

• 	 Other taxes, which accounted for $48.8 million or 34.3 percent of total governmental revenues, 
increased $1 .6 million from 2012 
primarily due to an increase in utility 
franchise tax revenues. 

• 	 Those who directly benefited trom 
service-fee based programs paid 
$12.6 mi llion in charges for services 
which represented a 2.6 percent or 
$0.3 million increase from 2012. 
This increase can be primarily 
attributed to increased public safety 
and recreation fees. 

• 	 Olher governmenls and 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 
- Ch"SfSfor servicts 

2% 9% • Operaline granlS and 
con\ributiorn 

"Capital g'~nts ~nd 
contributions 

• Property faxes 

III Ot"er TiJlIes 

" Other44% 

organizations subsidized certain programs with operating grants and conlributions totaling $11 .2 

Expenses and Program Revenues -Governmentil l Activities 

80.000.000 r--------------- ­
70.000.000 I--~ 

60.000.000 1-- ­
SO.IXIO.ODO 1-----" 
<0.000.000 1-----, 
lO.OOO.OOO I-----j 
2<1.000.000 

10.000.000 

Ad min Public Envl,on Tr~nsport Econ & lie<: & I~I On lon, 
PhyJ.. • CQmrn ..• Term Debt 

million, representing a decrease of 7.2 
percent or $0.9 million in 20 13. 

<II The governmental activities 
received $7.4 million in other revenues 
such as capital grants and 
contributions, interest, sale 01 capital 
assets and unrestricted grants which 
represented a decrease of 25.8 
percent or $2.6 million. This decrease 
primarily reflects a decline in State 
grant revenues due to non-recurring 
revenues recognized in fiscal year 
2012 for development of th e North 
Carolina State Veterans Park adjacent 
to the Airborne and Special Operations 

Museum, grant funding for the Military Business Park and the economic development payments 
for redevelopment projects. 

<II The cost of all governmental activities this year was $1 44.8 million as compared to $1 42.6 
million in fiscal year 2012. These costs were incurred in order to provide municipat services to 
the citizens of Fayettevi11e. These services include, but are not limited to : public safety (pol ice, 
fire, etc.), parks and recreation, environmental services, street maintenance, administ rati on (city 
attorney, finance) and others. 
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---------- CITY OF FAYETIEVI LLE 

• The City's four largest governmental programs - public safety (50.2 percent) , administration 
(15.7 percent) , transportation (14.0 percent), and recreation and community facilities (9.3 
percent). represent 89.2 percent of the total governmental activities. 

Business-type activities: Revenues for the City's business-type activities were $315.5 million, while 
total expenses were $285.7 million in fiscal year 2013 . The increase in net position for business-type 
activities, aller transfers oul of $3.9 million 
and the change in accounting principle of $3.1 

Revenues by Source - Business Activities million was $22.8 million, resulting in net 
position of $919.4 million. Specifically, net 

• Charges for 
1%4% 1%position increased in the electric, water and Services 

wastewater activities by $12.9 million. 
resulting in net position of $819.5 million in • Operating grants 

and contributions fiscal year 2013, compared to $806.6 million 
in fiscal year 2012. By far, the largest portion 

• Capital grants and of net position. $591 .3 million or 72.2 percent 
contributions 

reflects the investment in capital assets less 
any related debt still outstanding that was • Other 
issued to acquire those assets. Current and 
Other Assets in the electric, water and 94% 
wastewater activities increased $5.8 million or 
2.0 percent. 

The storm water net position increased $2.0 million in fiscal year 2013. The increase is due primarily to 
operating revenues that exceeded operating expenses by $2.2 million. Net poSition of the airport fund 
at the end of the year amounted to $55.1 million, an increase of $5.1 mimon. Th is increase in net 
position is attributable to capital contributions of $6.1 million. The City and federal and state agencies 
continue to subsidize transit operat ions, as net position increased $2.8 miUion in fiscal year 2013 from 
$12.6 million to $15.3 million. This increase is primarily due to the governmental activities general 
revenues transfer of $1 .9 million to the transit fund tor the construction of the multi-modal transportation 
center. 
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~~~~~~~~ CITY OF FAYETIEVI LLE ~~~~~~~~ 

Financial Analysis of the City 's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The locus of the City's governmentallunds is to provide information on near· 
term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
City's financial requirements. Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2013, unassigned 
lund balance of the General Fund was $17.6 million, while lotal'und balance reached $51.1 million. As 
a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned lund balance 
and total fund balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out. Unassigned fund balance 
represents 12.2 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers out , while lotallund balance 
represents 35.5 percent of that same amount. 

The North Carolina Local Government Commission strongly recommends that local governments 
maintain an available fund balance of at least 8 percent of annual General Fund expenditures. The City 
of Fayetteville has adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which instructs 
management to conduct the business of the City in such a manner that unassigned fund balance is at 
least 10% of the succeeding year's General Fund expenditure budge!. excluding the budget for the 
County Recreation Program. In the event that the balance drops below the established minimum level, 
the City Council will develop a plan to replenish the fund balance to the established minimum level 
within two years. 

The fund balance of the City's General Fund decreased by $0.8 million during the current fiscal year. 
This decrease can be primarily attributed to: 

• 	 Overall revenues increased $1 .2 million in fiscal year 2013. Specifically. ad valorem taxes 
increased $1.8 mimon and utility franchise taxes increased $1.6 million. Local sales tax 
increased $0.6 million, reflecting modest economic growth. Offset by a decrease of $2.5 million 
in federal grants, that is primarily attributable to the revenues received in 2012 for the 
emergency protective measures and debris removal related to the April 16, 2011 tornado, and 
$0.6 million in economic development payments for redevelopment projects. 

• 	 Overall expenditures increased $2.2 million in fiscal year 2013, primarily due to increased public 
safely salary and benefit costs. 

• 	 Net other financi ng uses increased $3.0 million in fiscal year 2013, primarily due to a $1.9 
million transfer to the Transit Fund for the multi·modal center and $1.6 million increase in a 
transfer to the water and wastewater fund for utility system installation in annexed areas. 

At June 30, 2013, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance 
of $64.2 million, reflecting a 0.5 percent decrease from the previous year. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The City Council approved a $145.5 million general fund budget for fiscal year 2013, which represented 
a $6.0 million or 4.3% increase from the original budget for fiscal year 2012. The tax rate remained the 
same al 45.6 cenls per $100 value. Significant appropriation increases in the fiscal year 2013 budget 
included: a $2.8 million increase in personnel costs which reflected the impact of employee pay 
adjustments, implementation at pay plan adjustments and a net increase of 13 lull-time positions; a 
$2.0 million increase in funding tor annexation area water and sewer infrastructure projects; and a $1.1 
million increase for local reimbursement agreements related to annexation revenues. 

The original fiscal year 2013 budget anticipated an additional $1.2 million in current ad valorem taxes 
from real and personal property as compared to the original fiscal year 2012 budget, primarily reflecting 
natural growth in taxable values. Other significant revenue increases anticipated in the original liscal 
year 2013 budget as compared to liscal year 2012 original budget included: a $2.5 million increase in 
sales tax distributions reflecting better than expected economic recovery in fiscal year 2012 and 
continued modest growth in fiscal year 2013; a $1.4 million increase in utility tax distributions from the 
State of North Carolina; and a $1.1 million increase in transfers from the electric fund. The $4.0 million 
lund balance appropriation lor one-time expenditures for fiscal year 2013 represented a $331,000 
decrease compared to the original $4.3 million fund balance appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal 
year 2012. 

During the fiscal year, the City Council approved budget increases of $5.9 million or 4.0%, bringing the 
general fund budget for fiscal year 2013 to $151.4 million . The budget increases related to 
appropriations of: $3.0 million for expenditures for which funds were restricted or assigned at June 30, 
2012 ; $1.6 million for capital improvement funding , including local funding to match grants to construct 
a multi-modal transportation center; and $1.3 million to cover year-end projections and other items 
across multiple departments. The increased budget appropriations were primarily funded by additional 
fund balance appropriations of $5.9 million. 

Actual revenues and other financing sources for the general fund totaled $143.0 million, or $8.4 million 
or 5.5% less than the final amended budget. The shortfall primarily related to a budgeted fund balance 
appropriation of $9.8 million, which is an other financing source that is not reflected as currenl year 
revenue. This shortfall was primarily offset by: other taxes that exceeded the budget by $1.4 million 
primarity due to privilege license taxes from internet gaming cafes that were not budgeted; ad valorem 
taxes which exceeded the budget by $402,000; restricted intergovernmental revenues that exceeded 
the budget by $919,000 primarily due to federal and state reimbursements related to the April , 2011 
tornados; unrestricted intergovernmental revenues that fell short of the budget by $780,000 primarily 
due to distributions of sales taxes, utility taxes and franchise fees which fell short of budget; investment 
income which lell short of the budget by $353,000 primarily due to the recording of changes in market 
values of investments ; and sales and service revenues which fell short of budgeted amounts by 
$130,000. 

Actual expenditures and other financing uses totaled $143.9 million, or $7.6 million or 5.0% less than 
the linal amended budget. There were approximately $2.5 million in expenditures budgeted for fiscal 
year 2013 which were restricted or assigned at June 30, 2013 to be reappropriated in fiscal year 2014. 
In addition, the Jinal budget retained appropriations of approximately $1.0 million or 0.7% beyond 
department year-end expenditure projections to ensure sufficient budget for unanticipated expenditures 
through the end of the fiscal year. Personnel expenditures across all departmental budgets were $1.4 
million or 1.7% less than projected and the remaining $2.7 million variance between projected and 
aClUal expenditures resulted from a variety of departmental operating expenditures being under budget 
including interfund transfers ($501,000), contract services ($510,000), and claims settlements 
($215,000) . 
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30. 2013, totals $1.0 billion (net of accumulated depreciation and relat ed debt). 
These assets include infrastructure; buildings; improvements; automotive equipment; office and other 
equipment; and electric, water, wastewater and storm water utility systems. 

Major capilal asset investments and contributions during the fiscal year included the following: 

• 	 $10.4 million for water and wastewater rehabilitation of mains, laterals and 
transmission lines 

• 	 $8.5 million in governmental street, sidewalk and drainage infrastructure projects 
• 	 $7.4 million for installation of wastewater utility systems in annexed areas 
• 	 $6.5 million for airport runway and airfield improvements 
• 	 $5.4 million for utility system software/hardware upgrade (Navigate) 
• 	 $5 .0 million for 12MG Clearwell tank rehabilitation and ferric sulfate conversion 
• 	 $4.4 million in storm water drainage improvements 
• 	 $3.6 million for public safety (police and fire) vehicles and equipment 
• 	 $3.0 million for utility substation improvements 
• 	 $2.1 million for new installation and system improvements to electric underground 

distribution 
• 	 $1.4 million for purchase and installation of electric and water meters 
• 	 $1 .2 million for purchase of vehicles and power operated equipment for the utility 

system 
• 	 $1.1 million lor environmental sefVices trucks and equipment 
• 	 $1.1 million for multimodal center land purchases and design 
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City at Fayetteville 's Capital Assets (dol/ars in thousonds) 

(net ot accumulated depreciation) 


Figure 4 


Governmental 
Activities 

2012 2013 

Business-type 
ktivilies 

201 2 2013 2012 
Total 

2013 

Land and land rights 
Infrastructure 
Electric utili ty sys tem 
Wastewa ter system 
Water sys tem 
Equipment and m achinery 

Buildings and improvem ents 

Equipment furniture and 
fixtures 
Com puter softv.lare 
Computer equ ipment 
Vehicles 
Construction in progress 

$ 37,984 
253,439 

-
-
-
-

67,12 2 

3,693 

695 
-

15.740 
2 ,042 

$ 36 ,220 
248,570 

-
-
-
-

64.794 

4 ,720 

649 
-

16 ,484 

3 ,131 

$ 19,325 
13,815 

177,838 
277 ,111 
178,094 

1 1,217 

56,835 

1,440 

2,798 
1,601 

15,190 
42,867 

$ 2 1,035 
17,892 

i 76,526 
286,280 
178,863 

11,252 

66,07 9 

2 ,14 1 

2,596 
2,014 

\4,508 
52 ,697 

$ 57,309 
267,254 
177.838 
277 .1 11 
178 ,094 

11,21 7 

123.957 

5,133 

3,493 
1,601 

30,93 0 
44 ,909 

$ 59,255 
266 ,462 
176,526 
286.280 
178,863 

11,252 

130.873 

6 .86 1 

3.245 
2,014 

30,992 

55.828 

Total $ 380,7 15 $ 376,568 $ 798,131 $ 8 31 ,883 $1,178,846 $1,208 ,4 51 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Basic Financial 
Statements, 

C-1 2 




CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE 


Long-term Debt. As 01 June 30, 2013, The City had total bonded debt outstanding 01 $155.9 million 
before loss on defeasance and reacquired debt, premiums, and discounts (see Note 5 in the financial 
statements), of which $14.0 million is debt backed by the fuilfaith and credit of the City. In addition, the 
City has a number of capital leases and several installment notes outstanding. A summary of lotal 
long-term debt is shown in Figure 5. 

Bonded Debt, Capital Leases and Instaliment Notes Payable (dol/ars in thousands) 

Figure 5 

Go..ernmenlal 
Acli\ities 

201 2 2013 

Business-type 
Acli\ilies 

201 2 2013 2012 
Total 

2013 

Bonded deb! 
Obligations under capital leases 
Installment note payable 
Tolalloog-Ierm debt 

$ 

$ 

15,996 
21,999 

600 
38,595 

$ 13,437 
17,927 

525 
$ 31,889 

$ 

$ 

155.089 
59 

15,866 
171,014 

$ 142,483 

39 
22,650 

$ 165, 172 

$ 

$ 

171 ,085 
22,058 
16,466 

209,609 

$ 

$ 

155,920 
17,966 
23,175 

197,061 

The City's 10lal long-Ierm debt decreased by $12.5 million, or 6.0 percent, during the past fiscal year. 
This decrease is due to regularly scheduled principal payments of $20.2 million and an early payoff of a 
capital lease of $0.4 million: oHset by $8.1 million in proceeds received fram state loans. 

The City's other lang-term obligations include a liability for the estimated amount of vacation and 
compensatory leave to ultimately be paid (compensated absences) of $9.8 million , and a $21 .8 million 
liability for Other Post Employmenl Benefits (OPEB). 

The City's most recent general obligation bond credit ratings received in connection with the Series 
2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds were upgraded to Aa2 (Moody's Investor Services) and AA+ 
(Standard & Poars) . Subsequently, in May 2010, Moody's recalibrated the City's general obligation 
bond credit rating upward from Aa2 to Aal. 

The City's Public Works Commission outstanding revenue bonds carry an Aa2 (stable outlook) and AA 
(stable outlook) credit rating from Moody's and Standard and Poor's, respectively. During fiscal year 
2013, Moody's upgraded the utility systems rating from Aa3 to Aa2. 

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can 
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's 
boundaries. The legal debt margin lor the City is approximately $1 .0 billion . The City has $1 .7 million 
refunding bonds authorized but unissued al June 30, 2013. 

Additional information regarding the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages F·24 - F-35 
of this report. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year 's Budget and Rates 

Budget Highlights lor the Fiscal Year Ending June 30. 2014 

The City Council appmved a $151 .2 million general fund budget for fiscal year 20 14, which represented 
a $5.6 million or 3.9% increase from the orig inal budget for fiscal year 201 3. The lax rate remained the 
same at 45.6 cents per $100 value. Significant appropriation changes in the fiscal year 2014 budget 
included: the transition of $1 .1 million in street sweeping expenditures from the general fund to the 
stormwater fund ; a net reduction of $737,000 for environmental services expenditures which were 
Iransitioned to the environmental services fund; a $4.0 million increase in personnel costs which 
included the impact of employee pay and pay plan adjustments ($2. 9 million). personnel costs for 17 
grant·funded police officer positions transitioning from grant funding ($604.000), and $183,000 for three 
funded initiatives for two positions and additional temporary services ; a $4.1 million increase in 
transfers to fund capital and in formation technology improvement projects. including annexation area 
water and sewer infrastructure projects; and a $698,000 net decrease in funding for capital items. 

The original fiscal year 2014 budget anticipated an additional $2.4 million in current ad valorem taxes 
from real and personal property as compared to the original fiscal year 201 3 budget, primarily reflecting 
natural growth in taxable values and an additional four months of taxes on registered motor vehicles 
relaled to timing adjustments for the Tag and Tax Together program being implemented by the State. 
Other significant revenue increases anticipated in the original fiscal year 201 4 budget as compared to 
fi scal year 2013 original budgel included: a $1.0 million increase in sales lax distributions reflecting 
projected modest economic growth in fiscal year 201 4; a $1 .3 million increase in transfers from the 
electric fund; and $2.2 million in planned financing proceeds. Revenue decreases anticipated in the 
original fiscal year 2014 budget include: $392,000 in transfers from the environmental services fund 
due to the conclusion of an interlund loan repayment in fiscal year 2013; $289,000 for Ihe transition of 
revenues associated with environmental services to the environmental services fund; $121,000 for the 
Iransition of revenues associated with street sweeping to the stormwater fund. The $3.5 million fund 
balance appropriation for one-time expenditures for fiscal year 2014 represented a $448,000 decrease 
compared to the original $4.0 million fund balance appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal year 2013. 

The City Council has since approved budget increases of $3.0 million. or 1.98%, bringing the general 
fund budget lor fiscal year 2014 to $154.2 million. The increases related to appropriations for 
expenditures for which funds were restricted or assigned at June 30. 2013, and were funded by 
additional appropriations from fund balance. 

Requests for Intarmation 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in this 
area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional 
information should be directed to the Chief Financial Officer, City of Fayetteville, 433 Hay Street, 
Fayetteville, NC 28301. You can also call (9 10) 433-1 682, visit our website 
www.cUayettevil1e.nc.us/finance or send an email tolsmith@ci.fay.nc.us for more information. 
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Basic Financial 
Statements 
These basic financial statements provide a summary of the financial position of 
all governmental and business-type activities and the major and nonmajor funds. 
They also se rve as an introduction to the more detailed schedules that follow in 
subsequent sections. 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Net POs ition 

June 30, 2013 


Assets 
Cash and inlleslments 
Taxes receivable 
Accounls receivable 
Internal balances 
Assessment recetvable 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Noncurrent portion of note receivable 
Restricled asset - cash and Investments 
Restricted asset - accounts receivable 
Reslricted asset - collateral pledgea' 
Other assets 
Capital assets' 

land and constnJ.ctiOfl in progress 
Other capital assets , 

net of depreciaiion 
Total assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Charge on refunding 

Tota l deferred outflow of resources 

Liabililies 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Restricted liabiUlies - accounts payable 
Restricted unearned deposits 
Unearned revenues 
Unearned deposits 
long-Ielm liabilities: 

Due within one year 

Due In m()(e than one year 


Otl1er liaOjll lies 

Total liabilities 


Oeferred Inflows of Resources 
Prepaid ta:«!s 

Tota! deferred inflow of resources 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for. 

Capita l projects 
Debt service 
Stabilization by State StaMe 
Downtown 
Recreational and cultu(al 
Donations 
lake Valley Drive MSD 
Public safety 
Economic and physical development 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 


Governmental 

Activities 


S 75,050,352 
3,436,425 
3,506,998 

(1,835,173) 
925,310 

12,896,950 
137,604 
876,573 

8,643,298 
9,400,344 

75,93<1 

41,351,605 

335,216, 297 
489,882,518 

302.233 
302,233 

15,778,104 
83.629 

748.81 0 
1,848 ,985 

9,331,158 
45,068,425 

72,87£1,1 11 

483.548 
483.548 

348,741 .323 

20,022,565 
176 ,156 

4,855.987 
19, 194 
5,420 

1,399,491 
657,197 

40,944 ,759 
$ 416.822,092 

Business 

Type 


Activities 


$ 114,900,661 

44,571,770 
1,635,173 

13,218,094 
1,054, 128 

129,953,868 
4,836,268 

323,624 
23,106.929 

73.131 ,723 

7,393,407 
7.393,407 

36,489,316 
13.451,637 

1,145,91 7 
81 ,808 

3,021,534 

16,957,399 
169.941,431 
12,359,967 

253,449,009 

669, 166,547 

1,824,246 
60.723 

248,376. 752 
$ 919.428,268 

Total 

Primary 


Government 


, 189,951 ,013 
3,436,425 

48,078,768 

925,310 
12,896,950 
13,355,698 

1,930,701 
8 ,643,298 

139,354 ,212 
4,91 2,202 

323,624 
23,106,929 

115.083,329 

7.695,640 
7,695,640 

52,267,420 
13.535,266 

1,894.727 
1,930,793 
3,021,53<1 

26,288.557 
215,029,856 

12,359,967 
326,328,120 

483.548 
483,548 

1.017,907,870 

1,824,246 
60,723 

20,022.565 
176, 156 

4,855 ,987 

5,420 
1,399.491 

657.197 
289.321,511 

$ 1.336,250,360 

The OOlas 10 100 tI"~ nci~1 statements 
~,. an "'Iegral ~a" 0/ !hi, Statemsnl. D·1 
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CITY O F FAY ETTEVILLE, NORTH CARO LINA 

Balance Sheet 
G overnmental Funds 


June 30, 2013 


Assets 
Cash and Investments 
Taxes receivable 
Accounts reGe1vable 
Assessments reaivab!e 
Inventories 
Restricted cash and investments 
Reslricted accounts recei\lsble 

Tota l assets 

Liabili t ies, deferred in!lows of resources and fund 
balances 
Liabilit ies: 

Accounts J>OIy..ble and accrued expenses 
Restricted unearned dep!Jsits 
Unearned revenue 
Restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses 

TOlatliabil1lies 

Deferred inflows 01 resources. 
Taxes receivable 
AcGounts receivable 
Assessment receivable 
Prepaid taxes 

Total defeffed innows of resourtes 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendabie 

For inventories 
Restricted 


Stabili2.alion by State Statute 

Fo, dowmo\l'lTl 

For county rQcrOal ion 

For J P Riddlo Sladium 

For donations 

For l ake Valley Drive M50 

Pubtic: sa fety 

Economic and physical developmen! 

Recreation and community fadliUes 


Commitled 

Adminislfi'lUon 

Public safety 

EnvirOM'lental protection 

Transporta!ion 

Economic and physiCal development 

ReCleation and community facilities 


Assigned 

For subsequent yeafs expenditures 

Fot special purpose 

For capital projecls 


Unassigned 

Total fund balances 


General 

S 44,000.098 
3,239,535 

14.279,246 
925,310 
137.604 

4.922,971 

S 57.504.164 

, 10,356.341 
748,810 
139.225 

11.244.376 

3.239.535 
~7.6J7 

925.310 
483,548 

5.196.030 

137,604 

15,196.662 
25.509 

4,124.037 

19.194 
5,420 

3.529.523 
7.713.907 
2.760,753 

Other 

Government.. t 


Funds 


S 10.737,008 

9,868.040 

4,417.373 
15.934 

S 25. 158,415 

S 1.464.642 

1.597.055 
83,&29 

3.245,326 

8,730,41 5 

8.730.415 

4.825.903 
150.647 

1,399.491 
657,197 
731,950 

1,885,529 
216,373 

1,804,389 
296.016 

1.810,21 3 

Total 

Governmenlal 


Fuod$ 

S 54.737.166 
3,239.535 

24.1 47.286 
925,310 
137.604 

9.400. 344 

, 75.934 
92.563,179 

S 11,820.983 
748.810 

1,836.280 
83.629 

1<1.489.702 

3,239,535 
9.278,052 

925,310 
483.548 

13.926.445 

137,604 

20,022,565 
175.1 56 

4.124.037 

19.194 
5.420 

1.399,491 
657.197 
73 1,950 

1,885.529 
216.373 

l,ro089 
296.016 

1,810.213 

3,529,523 
7.713.907 
2.760.753 

16.956.715 
64.247.032 

Total liabilities, doforred inflows of 
resourcos and fund balances S 67.504.7640 , 25,158.415 , 92.663.179 

1M! r.etes re the nnMld.t i ialem.lO IS ....~ ao 
Integ",,1p.3 rl of this ' "Memenr. E-1 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLlNA 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Govemmental Funds to the 

Statement of Ne t Position 


June 30, 2013 


Amounts reported lor governmental activities in the statement of net position are dIfferent because: 

Ending fund balance - govemmenlallunds $ 64.247,032 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are nOt financial resources and, 
therefore, are not repor1ed in the funds, Those assels consist of: 374.544,203 

Land 
Right 01 Way 
Construction in progress 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles 
Accumulated depreciation 

S 

S 

21,949,695 
16,270,694 

3,1 31,217 
449,740,690 

99,539.460 
29,329,970 
43, 184,129 

(288,601 ,652) 
374,544.203 

liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred inflews 
of resources in fune! statements. 13.442.897 

Costs 01 bond issuance are current-penoe! expene!itures in the funds, but wi ll be 
deferred in the statement of net position and amornzee! over the life of the outstanding 
deb\. 302,233 

Prepaid expenses are current-penee! expenditures In the funds, but are assets not 
available to pay cvrrent-perioe! expenditures and, therefore, are capitalized. 563,480 

Accrued tax penalties receivable are nOI avaIlable to pay for current-period 
expendllures and, therefore. are 1'101recorded in Ihe funds. 188.685 

Internal service funds are used by managemer'lllo Charge the costs of PWC 
neet maintenance and insurance expenses to individual funds. The assets and 
liabIli ties of the inlema! service funds are induded in governmental activities. 17,614,683 

Accrued inlerest payable on long·tenTI debt is nol a current expenditure and therefore 
not recorded in the funds. (327,810) 

Accrued federal subsidy receivable associaled with accrued interest payable and therefore 
not recorded in the funds. 39.238 

l ong-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable In the current 
pelioO and therefore are not repor1ed in the funds. Those liabililJes consist of: (53.792.549) 

General obligation bal'lCls 
Revenue bonds 
Notes payable 
ObligallOtls under capital leases 
Net OPES obligation 
Compensated absences 

$ 

$ 

(1 0 ,312,981) 
(3.797,894) 

(525.000) 
(17.927,434) 
(15,292,945) 

(5,936,295) 
(53,792,549) 

Net position 01 governmental activi ties $ 416,822.092 

The r.oles 10 !he ~nal'o(l'l __Is are an 

IIlIe<Jrnll'4'rI cr IfIIs "alelTIetII. E·' 




CITY OF FAYETIEVlllE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Revenues 
Ad val()(em taxes 
Other taxes and lees 
Unrestric1ed intergovernmental 
Restricted intergovernmental 
Penn its and fees 
Sales and services 
Miscellaneous 
Interest eamed on inveslments 

Tolal revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

Administration 
Public safety 
Environmental protection 
Transportalion 
Economic and physical development 
Planning and development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Debt service : 

Principal 

Inlerest 


Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capitat assets 
Tra nsfers in 
Tra nsfers oul 

Total olher financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance - beginnin g 

Fund balance - ending 

General 

$ 61 ,873,098 
3.747,452 

46.363.857 
10.601 .027 

2.933.818 
4,347 ,871 
1,562,523 

{35,996) ­
131 ,393,650 

22,582,087 
69,501,523 

8,575,475 
6,830,556 
1,747,096 

12,014,739 

5,963,587 
1,092,391 

128,307,454 

3,086,196 

295,425 
11,353,040 

(15,566,151) 
p,917,686) 

(831,490) 

51,895,848 

Other 

Governmental 


Funds 


S 
775.752 

5.51 2.780 

1,980,546 
~6.2 771 

8,262.801 

2,1 87,51 8 
2, 268,701 

5,322, 941 
4,011,970 

21,347 
1,356,962 

675,000 
219,825 

16.064,264 

(7 .801A63) 

731 ,950 
7,601, 152 

8.333,102 

531.639 

12,651.035 

Total 

Governmental 


Funds 


S 61 .873,098 
4,523.2().q 

46,363.857 
16,113.807 
2.933.818 
4,347,87 t 
3,543,069 

{42,273) 
139,656,451 

24,769,605 
71,770,224 
8,575,475 

12,153,497 
5,759,066 

21,347 
13,371 ,701 

6,638 ,587 
1,312,216 

144.371 ,718 

(4,715,267) 

1,027,375 
18,954,192 
p 5,566, 151~ 

4,415,416 

(299,851) 

64,546,883 

$ 51,064,358 $ 13,182.674 $ 64,247,032 

The notes to the financial statefTlenl $ are an 
rm~ral part of thiS SL3lemen1. E·3 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE , NORTH CAROLINA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fun d 

Balances of Governme ntal Funds to the Statement of Activities 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of activities are different because' 

Net change in lund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However. in the 

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 

useful lives and reponed as depreciation expense. This is the amounl by which 

dep.'eciation ($20.982.313) exceeded capital ooUay ($13.595,726) in the current 

period. 


The net effect 01 vanous miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (I.e. sales. 
trade-1M . and donations) is \0 increase net assels. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do nol provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

The j$SUaflCe of long-term debt (e g. bonds. leases) provides cuW'mt financial 

resources \0 governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of Iong· term 

debt consumes the curren t financial resources of governmental funds. Neither 

transaction. however. has any effect on net position. Also. government runds report 

the effect of issuance costs, premiums. discounts. and similar 'items when debl is 

rlrst issued. whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement or 

activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long· 

term debt and rela ted aCCOIJnts, 


Principal repayments , 6,706.320 
Change in net OPES obligation (1 ,730<1.436) 
Change in compensated abse~s (176.862) 
Other miscellaneous 211,476 

$ 5,006,498 

Some expenses reported in Ihe statement of activities do not require the use of 

current financial resources and. thererore. are nol reported as expenditures in 

governmental funds_ 


The nel revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reporte<! with 
governmental activi ties. 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

$ (299,851) 

(7,386,587) 

3.344.515 

(1.309,064) 

5,006,498 

285,645 

1,487 ,616 

$ 1.128,772 

E-4 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Revenues , Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual - General Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Variance 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes 
Other taxes 
Unrestricted intergovern mental 
Restricted intergovernmental 
Permits and fees 
Sales and services 
Miscellaneous 
Interest earned on inveSfments 

Tolal revenues 

Origi nal 
Budget 

$ 61,471.348 
2, 351 .895 

47 ,143,561 
9 ,682,466 
2 ,966.175 
4,459,528 
1.593,127 

$ 

Final 
Budget 

61.471,348 
2.351,895 

47.143,561 
9,682.466 
2,966, 175 
4,478, 128 
1,593, 127 

3 17,200 
130,003,900 

$ 

Actual 

61,873,098 
3,747,452 

46,363,857 
10.601 .027 
2.933.818 
4,347.871 
1.562,523 

(3$,996) 
131 ,393,650 

With Fina l 
Positive 

{Negative} 

$ 401 .750 
1,395,557 

(779.704) 
918, 561 
(32. 357) 

(130,257) 
(30,604) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Adm ini stration 
Public safety 
Environmental prO\edion 
Transpor1ation 
Economic and physical development 
Recreation and community faci lities 

Debt Service: 
PrinCipal 
Interest 

TOlal expenditures 

23,736.064 
70.831,352 

8.439.904 
7,177,210 
1,854,676 

12,874,221 

5,888.582 
1,182.146 

131.984 ,155 

24.007.039 
71.555,699 

8,919.221 
7,554,822 
2 ,318,585 

13,300.055 

6J)46,766 
1.121 .604 

134.823.891 

22,582,087 
69,501.523 

8,575,475 
6,830.556 
1,747,096 

12.014,739 

5.963,587 
1.092,391 

128,307.454 

1.424.952 
2,054 .1 76 

343.746 
724 ,266 
571 ,589 

1,285. 316 

83,179 
29,213 

6.516 ,437 

Excess (deficiency) o f reven ues 
over (under) expenditures (1,998,855) (4,819,991) 3,086.196 7,906 ,1 87 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sale of capi tal assets 
Appropriated fund balance 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total O1her financing sources (uses) 

230.000 
3,978.832 

11,353.041 
(13,563,01 8! 

1.998,855 

230,000 
9.849.298 

11.353.041 
{16.612.348) 

4.819.991 

295,425 

11.353.040 
(15.566.151} 

(3,917 .686) 

65.425 
(9,849,298) 

(1) 
1.046.197 

(8.737.677) 

Net cha nge in fund balances $ $ (831,490) $ (831 .490) 

FUND BALANCE · BEGINNING 51,895,848 

FUND BALANCE · ENDING $ 51.064.358 

The notes 10 ~he financ.al statements are an 
,nt~ral part or !his Slaa:ment. E-5 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 

St:l~mont of Nel Po..ition 

P ropriet:lry Fund s 


Jum' 30. 2013 


Ell cUk 
,~. 

W~ l" "'" 
WUlowa ler 

'OM 

EI\UI~u f .... d5 
Slorm W,t.. 
Ma~e",,,tU 

,~. 

NONMjo< 

Enll '1l nse,-, f e l.1 

Inl!lma l 
Ser.d 
Flln<l J 

M~" 
C....... m ._IS 

C~$h aM ~wncms 
J\c.c:ou\ls lecoivat.'! 
1'1t~na receiv=~ 
m~' 
PreJl8 id e>:p9IIM' 

To~ 1J1\I'f!.M<;t~ cwrer\l .nels 

, &.5,~ 31 ,02. 

27 MS, 3Q3 
(35IU96) 

11.JC6.a&.I 
.... 1,007 

I 03.B ,~457 

, It..MH27 
14.!r.W.3 IS 

(46&.242) 
1.698.529 

613, 121 
42.848.550 

, lO.~74. 2S 1 

101. 901 

10,5 76. 19 

, 12 ,80IUS9 
2.47$ 251 

212.&9& 

IS.497 .S0<5 

S 11 4.9Cll.661 
44.SH .77C 

(!!48.033) 
13,2 18.094 
I.~ S<, 128 

172.696.&1 5 

S 20.3 1:\.197 
663,'.1 17 
11-43 ,033 

313.Cn 
22. 3.n ,244 

Rcnicl... WIIlnl "MIlS 
Re51 riciM cash _ InYeSlm«ll.S 
R..tricled accou<lto ,..:ervilClle 
CobM<&l ~ WI ..... of d«>O$ilS 

89,-<e2.HI 
aC I .2ge 
323.624 

33.509,;01 
3.m .5\7 

$.3».021 
23.661 

• 128 ,314 
78.786 

129.95,3,668 
~.836M 

Total 'Ut/ICIl<! <>-<Tent ......l!. 90.!37.493 37 .• 42 ,AI 5 S.876,6S9 1..207 . 1£.0 

TOlal OJIT"'" '\;$tl!. 1\)<1.461. 900 aom.S6S 16,$5280<1 16,7Q.1 .86d 306.0 1C.375 n,:I-I3 ...... 

Nonwnenl asUIO 
O~.ssen 

Capl lal UUIS 
r~,"" n onQ.o'len'.ssel~ 

12 ,325.0 17 
2~ I.Os.s . ·IS 

253.41 0,~ 32 

10.7S I, GI 2 
$09. J39,~9 

S20.!.21.261 

TOI,iI I.U . t& 447,a~2332 ~~ 0.81 2,229 39.W6.4(.8 n 107.630 1.1&3.000, 659 N. ~~6.94~ 

Dofe rtlO oo.nfIQwS 01 rHoufCU 
Unamon..ld bond refun dl"g cna~. 

T018l <leftlTN .:."ffiows of ,e$OUroes 
70<1.389 
70-=.889 

6,688.518 
a.sea ,sls 

7,393.401 
7 , 3S3~Q7 

U.bWiUtl_ ne. pOsl lk>rl 

C......"",liatIiliU.l s 10 bii paid from 
u'll'OSUlCle<l ..selS 

Accounts ~ayol>le _ accrued e'D<ffi"'" 
CUOIcn\ por1je>n of IOn'l ttnn ow 

lOla! Q.o'Ienl "ablll~u to be o>ald 
!romll/llutri ctea a~t$ 

20,34 l. l53 
2.740 ,987 

23.()6:U SO 

l'i,9-I7 ,4n 
13.250.80<4 

26.198,336 

1.157.002 
/i.S3 12' 

1.8<10. \26 

2 ,o.o Z,659 
2e2,4« 

2.325.103 

36.469,3 16 
'6.957,le9 

53 ,440.7'5 

3t129.l l1 
1\~ .136 

3,7401.001 1 

Cumtnl l,a bliuea 10 II<:"...,!tQtn 
rM:rw;ted 8"UIS 

Ar:counts p.&y.b~ .nd a«:t\Jcd ~.~....~ 
U""~ddt!>=... 

Tot.' CU~ "'tllit>e. 10 be paid 
from ",sll\cle<los>e\$ 

1.001. )49 

7.<)O I ,149 

5, 716, 10' 

5.7 1" .1001 

W.I 66 
1.I44.lI!l2 

1.769 ,053 

110.018 ..", 
9 1.l)43 

13.451 .631 
1.1"-5, 911 

1~. 597.5S4 

13.100,92'.1 

TO ... cunMlliabo li~" J.Q,M-I .4GG 3 1 .~14,440 3.62'l.184 2.416.1"'" ~,()44 ,269 3.7 44.0<11 

Honosre nlliabili tles 
v .... "''''' doe ~$i's 6.296 3,0 '5.2J.6 3,inl.5l4 
NeIOP£6Qb1gaban 2.2&9.346 2.642 ,121 28V)49 1lQ4.249 6,O~. 36~ 4&J.WIl 
U"""medr~ ~2.1 12 39,696 61.808 IVII!> 
l ong. 'etm ~bl 12.095 .776 1 42. 207 . 7~ 9 ,56(1,478 19.0B9 163.8&3.C66 48 ,49 1 
01I>er lo8OiIihl ' 12,J5g,9G7 12,J!>9.9$1 

Total r>OI\CUIT"" 'li.l)a i~ps 14.31 1.4 ' 11 \6O ,22 S.&69 9.8&4 .&39 m .Ol4 I S~ ,401 . 14C "'~ 
Total nbililia s 44 .<l!i5.!l17 192. I.tD.I09 13, 511.823 :) ,3:19 160 2S3.44!1.009 4,Z69,0~1 

N~I gQ$/Tion 

No' ilwes lmetll in upil8l ~soe t s 

RUlncle<l ~ol r>MI~ 
CapO.&\ P'O!ecls 
~~ 

Urn . uic:,e<I 

T """ lie! poUion 

228 ,624,520 

" 175.4ge.65~ 

1 4001.1 21 ,304 

1Ol,EA 72 13 

9. 1~ 
60.694 

~2 S42.973 
1; 4 1S :l6O.&38 

19 .• 9 1.'~ 

&96 .3T1 

5.fI04.5"4 , U69-1 .645 

58.•02,964 

1.111>.117 

~9. 1S6.54 7 

1.82 • . 246 
150,723 

2<l5 .e93,541 
§U'. ~5.C57 

2.023.101 

Some ~"""",rs reported ror t:<JSl<>eu, fYI)t aclMll6s in ,''''' SIll_' 01 nel iX'.if.on are diftorenl 
~",,<;e<tain"'lelfJl1 l ."", ,,,, furnl 3~ MIll laM'"" .... ~W\th b~$inln type 1<;Ii\I\Ile5. 2.463 ,211 

NelllOoition 01 r.o..~ln ~.s. 'Y>~ aaillilles S 919 4~1I..268 

,., 




crrY Of FAVETTEVJl.LE. NORTH CAAOUNA 
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CITY OF FAYEITEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 


June 30, 2013 


Assets 
Cash and investments 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Total cash and investments 

Accounts receivable 

Total assets 


Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

Net position 

Held in Trust for pension benefits and other 
purposes 

Total net position 

Pension 

Trust Fund 


$ 	 2,720,918 
2.720,918 

963 
2.721,881 


37.377 
37.377 

Private-purpose 

Trusts 


$ 1,374 ,544 
1,374,544 

2.545 
1,377,089 


2,684 ,504 1,377.069 
$ 2.684,504 $ 1,377.089 



CITY OF FAYEITEYILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 


Year Ended June 30. 2013 


Additions 
Employer contributions 
Other contributions 
Inveslment earnings 

Total additions 

Deductions 
Benefit payments and premiums 

Total deductions 

Change in net position 

Total net position. beginning 

Total net posjtion - ending 

Pension 

Trust Fund 


s 734.796 

(2.948) 
731,848 

61 9,426 

619.426 


112,422 

2.572.082 

$ 2.684.504 

Private-purpose 

Trusts 


$ 

11 3,856 
8.140 

121,996 

123.407 

123.407 


(1.411) 

1.378.500 

$ 1.377.089 
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Notes to Financial 
Statements 
These notes are intended to communicate information necessary for a fair 
presentation of financial position and results of operations that are not readily 
apparent from, or cannot be included in, the financial statements themselves. 
The notes supplement the financial statements,are an integral part thereof, and 
are intended to be read together with the financial statements. 
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City 01 Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting PolicIes 

The City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the "City") was established in 1783. The City operate~ under a 
council-manager form of government and provides the following services: administration, public safety, 
environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical development, recreation and 
community facilit ies, electric, water, wastewater and storm water utilities, transit, airport, and solid 
waste recycling . The City receives substantial revenues from Federal and State sources. Ad valorem 
taxes on the City of Fayetteville's citizens represent a significant portion of the general government 
revenues. 

The financial statements of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina have been prepared in conformity 
with accounting principles generatly accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GAS B) is the accepted standard­
selting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 
significant accounting policies of the City are described below. 

A - Reporting Entity 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America, these financial 
statements present the City and its component units. GASS Statements number 14, 39 and 61 define 
component units as legaUy separate organizations lor which the elected officials 01 the primary 
government are financiatty accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it 
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and a) it is able to impose its will on thaI 
organization or b) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or 
impose specific financial burdens upon, Ihe primary government. 

These statements provide two methods for reporting component units in the financial statements of the 
primary government: discrete presentation and blending . Discrete presentation means that data will be 
presented in one or more separate columns to the right 01 the primary government data columns. 
Blending means that the component unit's financial data is reported as though the unit is part of the 
primary government. 1/ the units provide services or benefits exclusively, or almost exclusively, to the 
primary government, or if the component units and the primary government have -substantively 
identical boards," the legally separate component units should be incorporated by blending. lithe units 
do not meet these criteria, their data should be incorporated by discrete presentation. 

Based on evaluating these characteristics , the following is a brief reviewal the component units in the 
City's reporting entHy: 

City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation 

The City of FayeHevilJe Finance Corporation is a non-profit corporation formed lor the purpose of 
issuing bonds to build City facilit ies and park improvements, as wett as for the defeasance and 
refunding of 1989 certificates --of participation. The City teases the police administration buildi ng, 
Festival Park and Westover Recreation Center from the Corporation with rental revenues being used by 
the Corporation to retire the bonds. The Corporation is shown in a blended presentation as the 
Corporation provides services exclusively to the City. The operating fund of the Corporation is 
presented in the accompanying financial statements as a nonmajor special revenue fund. 
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City Of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30. 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. 

The City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of assisting 
in the development of the linear Park downtown. Linear Park, Inc. is shown in a blended presentation 
as it provides services exclusively to the City. Its operating fund is presented in the accompanying 
financial statements as a nonmaior special revenue fund. 

B - Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display 
informal/on about the primary government (the City) and its componenl units. These slatemenls include 
the financiat activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double 
counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business­
type activities 01 the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities 01 the City and lor each lunction of the City's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been 
made in the funds have been reversed lor Ihe statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) 
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants 
and contributions Ihat are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues. 

The Government-wide Statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Fiduciary funds are not 
included in these statements. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, 
including its fiduciary fund s and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category 
- governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary are presented, even though the fiduciary is excluded from 
the government-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each disptayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental 
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds . 

Proprietary fund operating (evenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the lund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and 
investment earning s, result from non-exchange transactions or anciilary activities. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30. 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City reports Ihe farrowing major governmental funds: 

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. II accounts for all fina ncial 
resources of Ihe general government except those Ihal are required to be accounted lor in another 
lund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, federal and state grants, and various other 
taxes and licenses. The primary expenditures are for public safety, parks and recreation, street 
maintenance, and sotid waste. 

The City reports the following nonmaior governmental funds: 

Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are 
tegaUy restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The Emergency Telephone System Fund 
accounts for Ihe City's share althe Stale tax charged 10 telephone customers 10 fund the 911 system. 
The Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund accounts for federal and stale grants. The City of 
Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund accounts for debt service on certain municipal buildings and 
park improvements. The Un ear Park Fund accounts for projects associated with development of the 
Linear Park downtown. 

Capital Project Funds. Capitat Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of governmental capital assets. The General Government Fund accounts for 
information technology and other projects supporting the entire government. The Public Safety Fund 
accounts for projects supporting the public safety services provided by the City. The Transportation 
Fund accounts for projecls to improve transportation and related services throughout the City. The 
Bond Improvement Fund accounts for bond proceeds and their use. The Economic and Physical 
Development Fund accounts for construction and improvement of various public facilities. The 
Recreational and Cultural Fund accounts for resources used lor the acquisition and construction of 
facitities such as parks, recreation cenlers and museums. Resources are provided through 
intergovernmental revenues, facility financing proceeds and transfers from other funds. 

The City reports the farrowing major enterprise funds: 

Electric Fund. This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Butler-Warner Generation 
Plant and the transmission and distribution of electricity to customers within the City of FayetteviJle and 
surrounding areas. 

Water and Wastewater Fund. This lund accounts lor the operations, transmission and distribution of 
water and wastewater for customers within the City 01 Fayetteville and surrounding areas. 

The Electric Fund and the Water and Wastewater Fund are operated under Ihe Public Works 
Commission (PWC) of the City of Fayetteville. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Storm Water Management Fund. This fund accounts tor the operations and maintenance of storm 
water facilities for the customers within the City of FayetteviJJe. 

The City reports the following nonmajo( enlerp¥ise funds: The Transit Fund accounts for operation of 
the municipal transit system. The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and capital asset acquisition 
and construction of the Fayetteville Regional Airport . The Solid Waste Recycling Fund accounts for 
specified fees and residential recycling services. 

The City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Funds. Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by one 
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, on a cost reimbursement basis. 
The Insurance Fund is used to account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with 
heallh, workers compensation, and liability claims. The PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund accounts for the 
accumulation and allocation of costs associated with the Cay's and PWC's Beet maintenance activities. 

Pension Trust Funds. These funds accumulate contributions in order to pay retirement benefits to 
eligible participants. The Special Separation Allowance Pension Trust Fund accounts for the Law 
Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance, a single-employer, and public employee 
retirement system. 

Private-Purpose Trust Funds. These tunds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for 
use by others. The Police Benefit and Firemen's Benefit Trust Funds account for resources held in 
trust for these two groups of individuals. AU resources 01 the funds, inctuding any earnings on invested 
resources, may be used to support the organizations' activities. There is no requirement that any 
portion of these resources be preserved as capital. 

C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year 
using the modified accrual basis 01 accounting. 

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Stafements. The government-wide, 
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are 
reported using the accruat basis of accounting . Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at Ihe time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 
Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or 
giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue 
from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been 
satisfied. 
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City 01 Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions. inctuding special assessments. tnternally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

The City's proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operaling revenues and expenses generally resull from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with the funds' pri'neipal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues 01 the City's utility funds are charges to customers lor sales and services, Operating 
expenses for the City's utility funds include the costs 01 sales and services, general and administrative 
services and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available, Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except fot principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and 
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have 
malured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental lunds. 
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. 

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days afler year-end, except lor 
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not 
susceptible to accrual at June 30, since taxes receivable are materially past due and are not 
considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. 

Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of 
property taxes on all registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, 
Cumberland County is responsible lor billing and collecting the property laxes on registered motor 
vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of 
Fayetteville. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first 
day of the fourth month after the vehicles are reg istered, The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal 
year in which they become due. Therefore, the City'S vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in 
Cumberland County from March 2012 Ihrough February 2013 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2013. Uncollected taxes, which were billed during this period, are shown as a receivable in these 
financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources. 

Intergovernmental revenues and sales taxes collecled and held by the State at year-end on behalf of 
the City are recognized as revenue. Sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because 
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues, which are unearned at year­
end, are recorded as unearned revenues . 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments- in-li eu of taxes where the amounts are 
reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the 
government 's eleC1ric, water and wastewater functions and various other functions of the governmenl. 

Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the 
various functions concerned. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first then unrestricted resources, as they are needed. 

D - Budgetary Data 

Budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Slatutes. An annual budget is adopted 
for the general, selected special revenue, and en terprise funds . All annual approprial ions lapse at 
fiscal year end. Project and grant ordinances are adopted for the Federal and State Financial 
Assistance special revenue lund, Linear Park special revenue fund and capital project funds. 
Enterprise capital project funds are consolidated with the operating funds for reporting purposes. The 
City's Inlernal service funds are inlra-governmental service funds, which operate under financial plans 
that were adopted by the governing board at the time the City's budget ordinance was approved, as is 
required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for the 
general, selected special revenue, and proprietary funds and at the projecl level for selected special 
revenue and capilal project funds. Any revisions that alter total appropriations at the departmenl or 
project level, as appropriate, of any fund must be approved by the City Council. During the year, 
several amendments to the original budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by 
July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that cove rs that time unti l 
the annual ordinance can be adopted. 

E - Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Fund Equity 

Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the City are made in board-designated oHicial depositories and are secured as required 
by State law (G.S. 159-3 1) . The City may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings 
association whose principal oHice is located in North Carolina. Also, the City may establish time 
deposit accounts such as NOW and Super NOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of 
deposit. 

State law (G.S. 159-30(c» aulhorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations 
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North 
Carolina; bonds and notes of any Nonh Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of 
certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' 
acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). 
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City 01 Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City's investments with maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market 
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securili~s of the 
NCCMT Cash PortfOl io, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, 
which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio 's securities are valued at fair value. 
Money market investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less 
and non-participating interest earnings and investment contracts are reported at amortized cost. 

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide 
for periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported 
at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize 
investment income. There/ore, all cash and investments are essentiany demand deposits and are 
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Elect ric and Water and Wastewater Funds consider 
demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash and cash equivalents. 

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

In accordance with State law (G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-136(a)), the City levies ad valorem taxes on 
property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The laxes are due on 
September 1 (lien date); however, interest does nol accrue until the following January 6. The taxes are 
based on the assessed values as of January 1,2012. 

Receivables 

The receivables in the utility funds consist primarily of customer receivables for utility services. The 
City provides allowances tor uncollectible receivables equal to the estimated collection losses to be 
incurred. The estimated losses are computed using the experience method. The City grants credit to 
residential, business and industrial customers, substantially all of whom are local to the City 01 
Fayetteville area. 

Allowance tor Uncollectible Receivables 

The City recorded a receivable in the special revenue fund for $2,118,542 related to loans associated 
with grants or other financial assistance that has been awarded. Many of these awarded loans are not 
expected to be collected and are scheduled to be forgiven based upon note compliance; therelore, they 
are included in the allowance for uncollectible receivables. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 1 • Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City operates enterprise lunds that provide credit in the normal course of business to customers 
primarily located in Fayelteville, North Carolina. The City periorms on-going credit evaluations 01 its 
customers and maintains allowances for doubtful accounts by using the experience method to estimate 
collection losses to be incurred. Credit losses, when realized, have been within the range of the City's 
estimations and historically have not been significant. Other receivables that historically experience 
uncollectible accounts are also shown net 01 an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is 
estimated by analyzing the percentage 01 receivables that were written off in prior years. 

The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Position are presented net 01 Ihe following allowances 
for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2013: 

Fund 
General Fund: 

Tax es receivable $ 800,580 
Accounts receivable 142,831 
Assessments receivable 274,163 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Notes receivable 3,4 14,669 

Transil: 
Accounts receivable 25,251 

Airport: 
Accounts receivable 17,988 

Solid Waste Recycling: 
Accounls receivable 928 

Electric Fund: 
Accounts receivable 259,113 

Water and Wastewater Fund: 
Accounts receivable 65,858 

Storm Water Management Fund: 
Accounts receivable 3,225 

Total $ 5 ,084,606 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "Interfund receivable" 
or "Interlund payable" on the balance sheet in the fund financial statements and as "internal balances" 
on the statement of net position in the government-wide financial statements. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Inventories 

Governmental inventories of supplies are valued at cost. Other inventories are valued at the lower of 
average cost or market The costs of governmental fund-type inventories, which consist of materials 
and supplies, are recorded as expenditures when they are consumed rather than when they are 
purchased. The costs of enterprise fund-type inventories, which consist of generation fuel , materials 
and spare parts, are expensed when used rather than when purchased. 

Prepaid Expenses 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2013, are recorded as 
prepaid items. 

Restricted Assets, Restricted Liabilities and Restricted Net Position 

In the general, special revenue, capital project and enterprise funds, the City has classified as restricted 
the assets representing deposits, reserves, capital project appropriations. advance grant funding and 
unexpended bond proceeds because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the 
bonds were issued or the purpose for which the funds were set aside. Liabilities due to be repaid from 
restricted assets are classified as restricted liabilities. Restricted net position represents constraints on 
resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of 
other govemments or imposed by law through state statute reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources related to those assets. 

At June 30, 2013, the Governmental Activ ities had restricted assets offset by restricted liabilities related 
to those assets and unspent bond proceeds, resulting in restricted net position of $27,136,010. The 
purposes of the restrictions are the same as the corresponding descriptions of restri cted fund balance 
on pages F-12 and F-13. The restriction for "Recreational and Cultural" incorporates restrictions for 
county recreation and other recreation and community facilities. Restrictions for Downtown ($176,156) 
and Lake Valley Drive MSD ($19,194) are created by enabling legislation. 

Business type activities include the following restrictions on net position at June 30,2013. The Electric 
Fund had restricted assets and a resultant restricted net position of $29 related to debt service. The 
WaterlWastewater Fund had restricted assets of $1,713,545 related to debt service offset by 
$1 ,643,093 of restricted liabilities related to those assets, resulting in restricted net position of $70,452. 
The Storm Water Fund had restricted assets offset by restricted liabilities related to those assets and 
unspent bond proceeds, resulting in restricted net position of $698,371 . 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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City of Fayeneville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 20 13 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Capita l Assets 

The Ci ty defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost 01 more than $5,000 ($2,500 in 
the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) and an eslimated useful life in excess al one year. 
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the dale of donation. General infrastructure 
assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 and storm water network assets acquired prior to July 1, 2004 are 
reported at estimated historical cost using deflated current cost. Utility (electric, water, and wastewater) 
capital assets purchased or constructed since 1958 are recorded at cost. Contributed utitity assets are 
recorded at estimated value at the date of acquisition. Utility assets acquired prior to 1958 are carried 
on an estimated cost basis. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value 01 
the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and 
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable. Gains and 
losses on dispositions of capital assets are credit ed or charged to operations. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method oyer the following estimated useful lives: 

Estimated 
Asset Class Useful lives (Years) 
Infrastructure 15 - 60 
Buildings 40 
Utility plant systems 20 -45 
Improvements 5 - 15 
Vehicles 5-20 
Furniture and equipment 5 - 10 
Computer software 3 
Computer equipment 3 

Depreciation includes amortization of intangible assets. Interest expense that relates to the cost 01 
acquiring or constructing capital assets in enterprise funds is capitalized. Interest expense incurred in 
connection with construction of capital assets is reduced by interest earned on the investment of funds 
borrowed lor construction in accordance with GASB 62. 

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows 01 
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not 
be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The City has one item that meels this 
criterion, unamortized bond refunding charges for the Governmental and Electric, Water and 
Wastewater refunding bonds. In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until lhen. The City has only one item that 
meets the criterion for this category on the statement of net position - prepaid taxes. The City's 
governmental funds balance sheet has lour items that meet the cri terion for this category - taxes 
receivable, accounts receivable. assessment receivable and prepaid taxes. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Unearned Deposits 

Facility investment fee credits are given on a dollar per dollar basis for off-site water and wastewater 
approach mains necessary to serve City approved projects. The facility investment fee credit , if not 
utilized in the initial development, will be available to the developer for use in other City approved 
projects for a period not to exceed 5 years from the original contracl date, unless otherwise stated in 
the contract or through extension approved by the City. 

Compensated Absences 

The vacation policy 01 the City provides for the accumulation of up 10 seven (7) weeks earned vacation 
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the City's government-wide and proprietary 
funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences, inctuding compensatory time and holiday 
pay, and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned . 

The City's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does 
nol vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the 
determination of length 01 service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the Cily has no obligation for 
th e accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for that sick leave has been made. 
However, the City's sick leave policy fo r Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees allows 
25%" of accumulated sick leave to be paid at the lime of retirement. A liability for the estimated amount 
of this sick leave 10 ultimately be paid is included in Ihe financial statements. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
slatements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business -type aclivities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight­
line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs, except for prepaid insurance costs , are 
expensed in the reporting period in which they are incurred. Prepaid insurance costs are expensed 
over th e life of the debt. 

At June 30, 2013, the City recorded as other liabilities in the government-wide financial statem ents, 
$1,485,000 for an advance from the Electric Rale Stabilization Fund to the Waterf\Nastewaler Fund, 
$952.688 for Ihe non·current port ion in advance payments from Fort Bragg for gross receipt taxes, 
$331,163 tor the non-current portion due to Ihe Department of Transportation, $1 ,531,400 tor the non· 
current portion in advance Irom the Electric Rate Stabilization Fund to the Annex Phase V Reserve and 
$8,100,000 loan advancement from the ElectriC Rate Stabilization Fund to the Electric, Water and 
Waterwaler funds , offset by applicable adjustments. 
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City of Fayel1eville , North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

In fund financial statements , governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Net Position 

Net position in government-wide and proprietary lund financial statements are classified as net 
investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position represent constraints 
on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through slate statute. 

Fund Balances 

In the govern menial fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy 01 constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types classily fund balances as follows: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance - consists of funds that cannot be spent due to their form (e.g. inventories 
and prepaid amounts) or funds that legally or contractuall y must be maintained intact. 

Invento ries - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because il represents the 
year-end balance of inventories. which are nol spendable resources . 

Restricted Fund Balance - consists of funds that are mandated lor a specific purpose by external 
parties, constitut ional provisions or enabl ing legislation. 

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute - portion of lund balance wh ich is not available for 
appropriat ion under Stale law (G.S. 159-8(a)). 

Restricted for downtown - portion of lund balance available for appropriation for projects in the 
Central Business District. 

Restricted for county recreation - portion 01 fund balance available to pay for the recreational 
activities of Cumberland County. 

Restri cted for J.P. Riddle Stadium - portion of fund balance available 10 pay lor the recreational 
activities of J.P. Riddle Stadium. 

Restricted for donations - portion of fund balance that is not available lor appropriation because 
it represents donor-imposed restriclions. 

Restricted for Lake Valley Drive MSD - portion of fund balance available to pay for drainage 
improvements in the Lake Valley Drive Municipal SelVice District. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 20 13 


Note 1 ~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Restricted for public safety - portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source fOI 

certain emergency telephone system expenditures and external grantors. 

Restricted for economic and physical development - portion of fund balance restricted for 
parking deck expenditures. 

Restricted for recreation and community facilities - portion of lund balance restricted by external 
grantor for the NRPA Return and Restore Program . 

Committed Fund Balance - consists of funds that have been set aside lor a specific purpose by formal 
action by the City's highest level of decision making authority (City Council) and thaI remain binding 
unless removed in the same manner prior to the end of the fiscal year. The same formal action must be 
taken to remove or Change the limitations placed on the funds. Any changes or removal of committed 
funds requires the passage of a resolut ion by a simple majority vote . 

Assigned Fund Balance - consists 01 funds that are set aside with the inlent to be used for a specific 
purpose by the City's highest level of decision making authority or a body or oHicial that has been given 
the authority to assign funds. Assigned funds cannot cause a deficit in unassigned fund balance. The 
City's lund balance policy delegates the authority to assign funds to the City Manager. 

Subsequent year's expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the adopted 
2013 - 2014 budget ordinance that is not already classified as reslricted or committed. 

Special purpose - portion of fund balance identified fo r specilic uses in the general fund and 
special revenue funds . The amount reflects Council assigned funding for future transportation 
and technology projects, fire equipment and land, a revolving loan fund , and transit and parks 
and recreation activities; and, City Manager assigned funding lor initiatives to be completed in 
future years. 

Capital projects - portion of lund balance that is assigned to capital related projects. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - consists of excess funds that have not been classified in the previous four 
categories. All funds in this category are considered spendable resources. This category also provides 
the resources necessary to meet unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls. 

Fund Balance Policy 

The City of Fayetteville has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with 
multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use lesources in the following hierarchy : bond 
proceeds, federal funds, Slate funds, local non-city funds, city funds. For purposes of fund balance 
classification , expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by 
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance 
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the City. 
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City 01 Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 201-3 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City of Fayettevil le has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund which 
instructs management to conduct the business of the City in such a manner that unassigned fund 
balance is at least 10% of the succeeding year's general fund expenditure budget, excluding the budget 
lor the County Recreation Program. In the event that the balance drops below the established 
minimum level, the City Council will develop a plan to replenish the fund balance to the established 
minimum lev"e) within two years. 

F - Use of Estimates 

The preparation 01 linancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aHect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabili ties and disclosure of conlingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

G - Upcoming Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 66, "Technica l Corrections - 2012; an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 
10 and No. 62." The requirements ollhis statement are effective for financial statements lor periods 
beginning atter December 15, 2012, however the City does not expect a material impact upon 
implementation. 

GASB Statement No. 67, " Financial Reporting for Pension Plans; an Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 25." This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for the activities 01 
pension plans that are administered through trusts with certain characteristics. This statement is 
effect ive for linancial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

GASB Statement No, 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension Plans; an 
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27." This statement replaces the requirements of Statements 
No. 27 and No. 50 related to pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent 
arrangements. The requirements 01 Statements No. 27 and No. 50 remain applicable lor pensions that 
are not administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for financial statements for fi scal years beginning after June 15, 20 14. 

GASB Statement No, 69, " Government Combinations and Disposals at Government 
Operations." This statement establishes accounting and 1inancial reporting standards retated to 
government combinations and disposals of government combinations and disposals of government 
operations. As used in this statement , the term government combinations includes a vari €l ty of 
transactions referred to as mergers, acquisitions, and transfers 01 operations. The requirements of this 
statement are effective for government combinations and disposals 01 government operations occurring 
in the financial reporting periods beginning atter December 15, 201 3, and should be applied on a 
prospective basis. Earlier application is encouraged. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30. 201 3 


Note 1 • Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

GASB Statement No. 70, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial 
Guarantees." This statement requires a government thaI ex1ends a nonexchange financial guarantee 
to recognize a liability when qualitative factors and historicat data, if any, indicate that it is more tikely 
than not that the government wilt be required 10 make a payment on the guarantee. The provisions of 
this statement are eHective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2013. Earlier application is 
encouraged. Except for disclosures related to cumulalive amounts paid or received in relation to a 
financial guarantee. the provisions of this statement are required to be applied retroactively. 
Disclosures relaled to cumulative amounts paid or received in relation to a financial guarantee may be 
applied prospectively. 

H - Pronouncements Implemented 

GASB Statement No. 60, " Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession 
Arrangements." This statement establishes guidance for accounting and financial reporting for 
service concession arrangements (SeAs). These arrangements are often referred to as public-private 
partnerships or public-public partnerships (PPP). The requirements of this statement are effective tor 
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011, however there was no material 
impact during fiscal year 201 3. 

GASB Statement No. 61, " The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus; an Amendment of GASe 
Statement No. 14 and No. 34. " This statement modifies ex isting requirements for the assessment of 
potential component units in determining what should be included in the financiat reporting entity. the 
display of component units (blending vs. discrete presentation) and certain disclosure requirements. 
The requirements of this stalement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
June 15,2012, however there was no material impact during fiscal year 20 13. 

GASB Statement No. 62, " Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30,1989 FASS and AICPA Pronouncements." This statement codifies 
into GASB accounting and financial reporting standards the "legacy" standards from the private-sector . 
The requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2011, however there was no material impact during fiscal year 2013 . 

GASB Statement No. 63, " Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position." This statement establishes standards for reponing deferred 
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement 01 financial position 
and also requ ires related disclosures. The requirements of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011 . See Notes 1 and 15. 

GASS Statement No. 65, " Items Previousty Reported as Assets and Liabilities." This statement 
specifies the items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities that should now be reported 
as deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, outflows of resources, or inflows of 
resources. The requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods 
beginning after December 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted. See Notes 1 and 15. 
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Cily of Fayetleville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

A - Deposits 

All of the City's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two melhods. Under the 
Dedicated Method. all deposits that exceed the Federal Depository Insurance coverage level are 
collaterali zed with securities held by the City's agents in the Cily's name. Under the Pooling Method. 
which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State 
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the Stale Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary 
capacity for the City. these deposits are considered to be held by the City's agents in their names. The 
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non· interest bearing 
deposits and the actual current balance for interest·bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling 
Method report to the Stale Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured 
deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the City or the escrow agent 
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged lor the City under the 
Pooling Melhod, the potential exists for under collaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of 
high cash flows . However, the Slate Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial 
stability lor each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. 

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization tor all pooling method financial 
institutions. The City relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions for compliance. 
The City analyzes the financial soundness 01 any other financial institution used by the City. The City 
complies with the provisions of G.S. 159·31 when designating official depositories and verifying that 
deposits are properly secured. The City's policy for custodial credit risk associated with deposits is to 
comply with the applicable North Carolina General Statutes. 

The City places its cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institut ions in the United States. 
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) covers $250,000 lor substantially all depository 
accounts. The City from time to time may have amounts on deposit in excess of the insured amounts. 

The remainder of this page intentionally lett blank 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 


AI June 30, 2013, the Cily's demand deposits had a carrying amount of $59, 159,713 and a bank 

balance of $57,522,234. Of the bank balance, Federal Deposit Insurance covered $765,871, and 

$56,756,363 was covered by collateral under the Pooling Method. 


AI June 30,2013, the City had certificates 01 deposit lolaling $14,413,528. Of this amount, Federal 

Deposit Insurance covered $250,000, and $14 ,163,528 was covered by coiJateral under the Pooling 

Method. 


The City had $13,425 in the pelty cash and change funds. 


B - Investments 


The funds 01 the City of Fayetteville are invested in compliance with the provisions of North Carolina 

General Statutes 159·30 and 159-31. The City's Investment Policy is a board-approved policy. 


AI June 30,2013, the City investment balances were as tollows: 


less man 6 

U.S. Govemmenl AgencIeS S 
Fair Value 

92.tl9.l327 S 
Monills 5t.IQs ·1Y, 

S S 
1·5 Yeal$ 
66 .696,199 , 5- 10 Years 

25.397.1 28 
Commercial Paper 95,~87,156 S3.4S8,937 11,788.219 
N.C. CapItal M~emen l TN$! · Cas~ 

""'"" 42,693.275 42.693.215 
N.C. Capital Managem ent T/Us!· Term

""""'. 29.740.263 29,140.263 

TOlal Plimary Govemmenl 259,814,021 155 ,932147 5 11,756.219 66.696,199 25,397, 128 

Rep.1f\ir19 Enlily l Olal S 259,61 4,021 , 155,932.475 , I l,188,219 S 60.696.199 $ 25.397,128 

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
rales, the City's investment policy provides for structuring the investment portfolio so that securities 
mature to meet cash requirements for the ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell 
securities on the open market prior to maturity. Also the City's investment policy requires purchases of 
securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities other than Treasuries, 
Agencies, and North Caro lina state and local bonds to a final maturity 01 no more than three years, 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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City 01 Fayetteville , North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 

Credit Risk. The City has no formal policy regarding credit risk; however, the State law limits 
investments ;n commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally recognized statistical raling 
organizations (NRSROs). The City minimizes credit risk by limiting investments to the types allowed by 
North Carolina General Statutes 159-30. The City diversilies the investment portfolio to minimize the 
impact of potential losses from anyone securily or from anyone individual issuer. Also, the City pre­
qualifies the financial institutions' brokers/dealers and requires them to meet specific financial and 
registration conditions. As of June 30, 2013, the City's commercial paper was rated P1 by Moody's 
Investors Service and A 1 by Standard & Poor's. The City's investments in the NC Capital Management 
Trust Cash Portfolio ca rried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor's and the NC Capital 
Management Trust Term Portfolio was unrated as of June 30, 2013. The City's investments in US 
Agencies (Federal Home Loan Bank, Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Federal Farm Credit Bank) are 
rated AA+ by Standard & Poor's and Aaa by Moody's Investors Service as.of June 30, 2013. 

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of failure of 
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party. The City requi res that investment securities are in the 
name of the City of Fayetteville and are hetd by a centralized independent third-party custodian. The 
City requires that the independent third·party custodian issue a safekeeping receipt to the Chief 
Financial Officer listing Ihe specific instrument, rate. maturity , and other pertinent information as 
evidence. All investment security purchases and sales are on a delivery verses payment basis and are 
made through the independent third-party custodian by written inslruction. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount thai the City may invest in any 
one issuer. More than 5% of the City's investments are in NC Cash Management Trust securities, 
Federal Home Loan Bank securities, Fannie Mae securities and FeAR Owner Trust commercial paper. 
These investments 
investments. 

are 27.88%, 17.34%, 14.77%, and 14.55% respectively, of the City's total 

Reconciliation to cash and investments: 

Totals per footnote : 
Total investments (including escrow) 
Cash (d~mand deposits) 
Certificates of Deposit 
Fireman's Reli e! Fund Certificate of Deposit 
Petty cash 
Total cash and investments 

$ 259,814 ,021 
59,159,713 
13,050,945 

1,362,583 
13, 425 

$ 333,400,687 

Totals per Statement of Net Assets: 
Cash and investments · unrestricted 
Cash and investments - restricted 
Pension trust cash and investments 
Private-purpose trust cash and investments 
Tota! cash and investments 

$ 189,951,013 
139,354,212 

2,720,918 
1,374,544 

$ 333,400,687 
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City of FayeNeville, North Caro lina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 3 - Capital Assets 

Capilal asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows: 

Primary Government 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary 
government as tallows: 

Balance Balance 
July 1, 20 12 increases Decreases Transfers .JJne 30, 201 3 

Governrrontal activities: 
Capilal asselS not being (jepreciated: 

LatId and land r ights 
eooslruction in progress 

, 37,983,860 
2,041 ,699 

$ 2.:36,527 
1,336.320 • S 

(246,8001 
$ 38,220,387 

3, 13 1,219 
Total capital assets 

001 being depreciated 40,025,559 1,572,847 (246,800) 41,35 t ,606 

eaptal assets being depreciated: 
hlraslruclure 442,073, 128 7,430,633 236.928 449,74 0,689 
Suikfings and MTproverrenis 101,269,0 18 1,225,413 (4 ,540) 9,a72 102,499,763 
Equipmanl. furnhure and fix tures 22,674,501 2,698.402 (69.373) 1,272 25,284,602 
Corrpuler sofI'W are 4.766,742 193,1I6 4,959,8513 
Vehicles 41 ,944,582 3,866,334 (2,332,872) ',583 4:3,485,627 

TOlal caprtaJ assets 
being depreciatoo 612,727,971 15,413,898 (2,425,785) 255,655 625,970,7;J9 

Less accum;lated depreciation for: 

Infrastructure (188,634,327) (12,537,070) (?0 I,I71 ,397) 
Bu.6dings an<;lliTproven-ents (34, 146,94 1) (3,562,038) 3,469 (37,705,510) 
Equipment, lurni\ure al1d IDal,lres ( \8,980,575) ( 1,672,846) 89,373 ( 1,272) (20,565,320) 
CorrpUIe' softw are (4,O72,164) (238,n3) (4,310,937) 
Vehicles (26,204,808) (3, 11 5,687) 2,326,800 (7 ,583) (27,ool ,278) 

TOlal accl,lm..rfated deprecialioo (272,038,8 15) $ (21•126,414) $ 2.4 19,642 (8,855) (290,754,442) • 
T04.al capilal assets being 

depreciated, nel 340,689, 156 3.:35,216,297 

Govornrrental aCTivity cap~al assets, ~, $ 380.7 14,7 15 • 376,567,903 

Administr3tioo $ 334,497 

Public safety 3,861,61 3 

Environmental prote<:tion 1,001 ,749 

Transportal ion 13,189,0 22 

Economic and p hysical development 1,005,948 

Recreal ion and community facilitieS 1,609,484 

Capital assels held by certain internal 


service funds are charged to Ihe various 

governmental lunctions based on the 

usage olthc funds 144,101 


Total deprccialion expense $ 21,126,414 
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City Of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 201 3 


Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 
• Disposals in conslruclion in progress are shown as additions 10 capital assets being depreciated . 

-~. .-" 
July I, 201 2 hcreilses Decreases' Ttilnsters JlIfIe 30, 201 3 

6us iness-lype acttvKies : 

Becltic Fund 
Gapnal assetS 1"\01 being depre<;laled: 

Land and land righlS , 5,320.460 S 874.792 , , , 6,1 95.252 
ConSlruction in progress 11,767,93:2 21 ,166,298 (1 5.5 17,418) 17.416,812 

TOlal capilal assets nol being depreciated 17.0aa.392 22,04 1.090 (15,517,416) 23.612.064 

Capilal assels being deprecialed: 

Bectr ic ul6ty system 389.701 ,603 14.1 85.952 (2.1\83,725) 401 .403,830 
Buddv1 gs 43,496.470 854.470 (30.693) (l5 1,e22) 44.078,225 
6:luiptl"efl1 and machinery 16,783,640 59 1. 194 (347,306) 3$.377 17,065.905 
~ langiOles 11. 181,518 307,437 11 .488.955 
Co~vler eQu"pTent 3,663,932 604,033 ( 121,OO8) 130,000 4,276,957 

VehICles 6.971,407 220.621 (534.453) 6.657.575 
O lice eQViprrelll 1,145,37 1 108,303 1.237,124 

TOlal capital assels being depreciated 472.943,9-41 16,882,010 486,2Of!,571 

l ess acclllTlJia led depreciatiort lor: 
8ectnc Ul~ system (211 .863,108) (14.996,283) 1,98 1,274 (224.878,117) 
6ullCings (16,995.71 5) ( 1,07 1,91 5) 14,675 1,092 (18.051,853) 
EquipfT"ef\1 and maclJinery (8.697,385) (598.474) 317,99" (8.977,61 2)2" 
~Iilngibles (8,995.622) (268,582) (9,264.204) 
Coopvter equipment (2.822.3.4 1) (368.690) 121,1)10 (3.070,02 1) 
Vehlc:les (3,502.948) (484.850) 518.96 1 (3,468.837) 

Of ice eQu;pmenl (17,504) 37.005 1,27 1 

TOtal acclJmJlated depceciallon 
 $ (1 7.806,298) , 2.990,9 19 , 2.6 16 

Total caprlai assels Oelflg depreciated. net 

Beclri:: lurld capital assets . nel S 236,109,876 $ 24 1,085.415 

. .. .. H . ... 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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City ot Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 3 - Capital Assets (con tinued) 

Balance 
July 1,2012 

• 
hereases Decreases' 

Business-type activnies: 

Water and Wastew ater RJnd 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and !and rights , '.},2'9S,327 S 394,2 12 $ 
Construction In progress 15,328,123 38,1 38,030 (28,621,183) 

Totat eapilaJ asse(s not beirog oopreciated 24,623,450 38,532,242 (28,621,183) 

Capital assets being Clepreciated: 

Water system 283.259,674 9,429,322 ( 1,270.095) 
Sawet system 423,787,212 18,487 ,200 
Buildings 4,959,258 234,785 (30,893) 
Equipmenl aJld rmehinery 10.409,524 724,729 (309,270) 
n tanglble-s 8,674,086 10,947 
Corllluler eqtJipmenl 3.445,613 349,299 (78,691) 
Vehides 6.724,55 1 559,849 (353,381) 
OHiee equlprrent 467,120 5,843 (6,570) 

Total capllal assets being dep!'e<;aated 74 1.727.038 29,801,974 (2.048 ,!I8O) 

less accurrutaled depreciatiOn lor: 

Water system (1 05. 165,907) (7,683,944) 294,428 
$ewe! system (146,o76.0OQ) (9 ,318,074) 
&;oIdirrgs (2,681,439) (1 10.298) 14.675 
Equiprrenl and rrechW"lery (7,278,595) (671,141) 287,993 
~tangilles (8 ,283,257) (187,879) 
Corrpuler eQUiprrenl (2,686,355) (30 1,266) 78,686 
Venicles (3 ,34 1,669) (521.357) 330,921 
Office equipmenl 
TOlal accurrulaled depreciallOn 

Total eapnai assets being depreciated. nel 

(430.9 11) 
(276.544,133) 

465,182,905 

(10.469) 
$(18,004,428) 

6,570 

• 1,013,273 

Walet and Was lew aier fvnd capi1a1 assets , net $ 489,806,355 

.... .....
- ~ 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 

Transfers 

, 


39,237 

0,583) 
22,103 
53,757 

(1,344) 

7.583 

, 6,239 

"""'"
.A.ine 30, 20 13 

$ 9,689,539 
24,844,'.}70 
34,534,509 

291,41 8,90 1 
442,274,41 2 

5,202,387 
10,824,983 
8,685,033 
3,716,221 
6,923.456 

488,496 
169,533.889 

( 11 2,555,423) 
(1 55,994,074) 

(2 ,178.406) 
(1,661.743) 
(8,471.136) 
(2,<J08,935) 
(3 ,524.522) 

(434,810) 
(294,329,049) 

415,204,840 

$ 509,739,349 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 

Bus~ess-type ac tIV ities (COflUll1Je<:I): 

Storm Waler MMI.1gerren\ Fund 

Capital assets fIOI. being depfeciated: 

Land ancIland rights 

Construction in progress 

Total capilal assets nOl beillg depreciated 

"""""Ju,."I , 2Q12 

S 233,961 

4.140,646 

4,374,807 

hcreases 

$ 12,045 

3,481 ,091 

3,493,136 

Decreases 

$ 

Transfers 

, 
(3.475,169) 

(3,475,169) 

"",,,,,, 
.A.me 30, 2013 

, 246,006 

4,146,768 

4,392.n4 

capital aSSe\s be~g depr ec~ted: 

hrraslluc\Ur€ 

Furniture. lixtures and equiptrenl 

Cocrpu1er $oltw are 

Vehir,;tos 

Total capilat assets t:clng dep<'eciated 

28,645,046 

957,886 

6,94 1 

1,094,923 

30,90.4,796 

91 7,316 
132,90<) 

1,000,276 

(38,851) 
(38.85 1) 

3,475,169 

3,475,169 

33,237,591 

1.040,186 

6,S41 

1,056.072 

35,341,S90 

Less accunulated d~ecialion lor: 

~j ril S lructure 

FuftlilUre, 1I~1ufes and equ~nt 

CorrpJI6f Software 
Vehicles 

Total accurTlJlate<l depreciatior'l 

T(){aI capital assets be;,g: deprecialed, nel 

StormWaler N'anagerren! fund capilal asselS, net 

(15,302,050) 

(483,708) 

(6,941) 

(692,367) 

(16,485,076) 

14,419,720 

, 18,794,527 

(443,316) 

(12:2.658) 

'9< 

S 
38,851 

38,851 , 

(15.745,376) 

(606,366) 
(6,247) 

(720,548) 

( 17,078,537) 

18,262,853 

, 22,655.627 

...... ..
~~ 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 
Balance 

July 1. 2012 
Business-type acUvilies (continued): 

J\bnf'roior enlerpr~e funds 

Capilal a.ssets nol being depreciated : 

Land and Lane! righlS • 4,475.350 
Cons truction to progress 11,629.829 

Totaj capital assets nO! being depJecialed 16.105, 179 

Capilal assets being depreciated: 

I'1lfaSLruClure 275,562 
Buildings and PrTprovementS 61,738.48\ 
Furn~ure, fix tufes and equiprrenl 3,665,78 1 
COrrpuler sOf tware 289.880 
Vehicles 11,&47,1 18 

Total capnal asselS oeir1g de.,reciated 77,817,822 

Less accufl'V\ated depreCiatIOn foe 
~lrast(llClure (4.48 1) 
Buiklings and rrproverrenls (33,682,013) 
Furnilure, lixlLHes and equipmonl (2.837,240) 
ColTputer sol tware (68,269) 
Vehicles (3,911,201 ) 
TOIal accufT\llated depreclalion (40.503,204) 

Tolal cSj:l~al asselS being depreciated, nel 37,314,618 

N:mrMjO<' enterprise 'unci capila l assets, net $ 53,419.797 

Business·type aCtivities capital assets . net $ 798.130, 555 

hcreases D:!ereases Transfefs 
Balance 

June 30, 201 3 

$ 428.837 
7,196.157 
7.625.994 

$ $ 
{12,539,796) 
(12,539,795) 

, 4.904.187 
6,288. 190 

11.1 92,377 

135,730 
32,367 

487.507 

521,913 
1.1 77.517 

(5 19.1 85) 
(519,185) 

12.069.462 
470,334 

12.539,796 

41 2,292 
73.840.3 10 

4,623,622 
289,880 

11,849.846 
9 1.015,950 

(8,327) 
(2,530,1 351 

(346,398, 
(63.825) 

(872,1>58) 
$ (3,82 1,344) $ 

519.185 
5 19.165 $ 

(12,808) 
(36,212,148) 

(3,183,638) 
(132,095) 

(4,264,674) 
(43.805,363) 

47,2 10,587 

S 58.402,964 

$ 831,883.355 

Depreciation expense was charged 10 buSiness-type acli'.4ties of the primary QO\oE!mment as follows: 

8eclr~ 17.806.298 •Water and WBstew aIel 18.804.428 
Stolm Waler Managen-eot 632,312 
Transit 1,068,92\l 
A:'-POII 2.744 .928 
Recyling 7,496 
Total depreClalion expense , 41.Q6.4,382 

• Disposals in construction in progress for the ElectriC, Water and Wastewater funds are shown as 
additions to capital assets being depreciated . 

•• Depreciation includes amortization of intangible assets . 

•• In the current year, the Electric, Water and Wastewater funds changed the useful lives of electric and 
water meters from 30 a,nd 45 years to 12 and 15 years respectively, resulting in an increase in 
deprecialion expense 01 $2,156.374 and $1 ,811 ,361, respectively. 
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City of Fayetteyille, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 4 - Accounts Payable 

Unrestricted and restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of June 
30,2013: 

WI I", and $lC!1l1 Wale< -, - , W.~tewa/ef Man30tment ~,-'''''''' , ,, 25,SE; t.20t t~ .aw.~J $ »>M' $ W .8M 
9S5.m "'''' l .QS.1. m 910.27! 

Ir :erest p.ayatIe 191.1 M 2,O!O.24~ 12"1,(.25 160.79& 
RiMlIIlO' payat:lo Z~.7oa 'J'>.'-'6 " 

3.9~_8S5 1S1ll !? 768,566 ~g.UJ 21 5.137 31F' 
S J.629 ,lIt IS.!ill.m 

, Z1,J.1J~I ~ , 18.%3.596 1.801.168 $ 2,t 12.&n $ J1 3Ti '. 
327.8 10, 1 5.S61 , 1~ 

~ 10 KCQJnlS cayatI~ 4n tr.e nrweat IlalemM'.I· 

~ S 10~W S 1.~,S:l 2 S 3,62S,l1l S 15,450."294 S 20.342,103 S 12,9-1 7,4S2 S 1.1S7,OO2 

Res:.li;lotj &.),629 ~m 5716.tQ.! 1lM.1M 

S 10 356.).11 $ 1 .~ 111 S 3 ,62<), 31 I S 18.00.596 S 1.801,168 

327,810 
S 15.861,733 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations 

A ~ General Obligation Indebtedness 

The City has issued general obligation bonds (to inctude general obligation bonds for the benefit of the 
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds) to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities . General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the lull faith, credit, and 
taxing power of the Cily. They are serviced by the general fund and the water and wastewater fund. 
Principal and interest payments are appropriated when due. General obligation bonds outstanding for 
the year ended June 30, 2013, are as follows: 

Goyernmental activities 

$5,535,000 Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 due in various 
annual installments through June 1, 20t 6; 
interest at various rates between 3.75% and 4.0%. $ 91 0 ,000 

$8,450,000 Public Improyement Bonds, Series 2005 due in 
various semiannual installments through June 1, 2025; 
interest at various rales between 3.7% and 4.25%, 5,050,000 

$7,896,115 Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 due in 
various annual installments through March 1, 2021; 
interest at various rates between 4.0% and 5.0%. 3 ,956.551 

9,916,551 

Add: Unamortized Premium 396.430 

AecQcn:s p3)~ 

~ bill ""I mpoc'Ied"""'",.,... 
""""""beneI:\$~ 

'oW 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Total governmental general obligati on bonds $ 10,31 2.98 1 

Business-type activities 

$3,625,000 Street Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 
due in various annual installments through June 1, 2021 ; 
interest at various rates between 4.00% and 4.5Q/Q . 1,625,000 

$4,403,885 Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 due in 
various annual installments through March 1, 2021; 
interest at various rates between 4.0% and 5.0%. 2,4 13,449 

4,038,449 

Add: Unamortized Premium 231 ,923 

T alai business- type general obligation bonds 4,270,372 

Total general obligation bondS $ 14.583,353 

B - Revenue Bonds 

The City has issued revenue bonds, which have been used to finance the construction of facilities used 
in the Cily's operations. Resources generated by the facil ities' operations are retiring the bonds. 
Revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2013, are as follows: 

Governmenlal activities : 

$5,835,000 Municipal Building Project Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, 
due in various annual installments through February 1, 2018; 
inlerest at various rates between 5.0% and 5.25%. $ 2,380,000 

$2,685,000 Municipal Building Project BondS, Series 2005, 
for the construction 01 Westover Recreation Center due in various 
annual installments through February 1, 2019; interest at various 
rates between 5.0% and 5.25% 1.140,000 

3,520,000 

Add: Unamortized Premium 277,894 

Total governmental revenue bonds 3.797,894 
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City of Fayetteville , North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities 

$17,025,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 

due in various annual installments through March 1, 2023; 

interest at various rates between 3,75% and 4.5%. $ 14,025,000 


$114,155,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009A 

due in various annual installments through March 1, 2024; 

interest at variouS rales between 4,0% and 5.0%. 79,655,000 


$36,710,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2009B 

due in various annuat installments through March 1,2035; 

inlerest at various rates between 4.0% and 5.0%. 35,010,000 


$10,595,000 Storm Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 

due in various annual installments through August 1, 2026; 

interest at 3.135%. 9.755,000 


Total business·type revenue bonds 138,445,000 

Add: Unamortized Premium 11 ,782,819 

less: Unamortized Discount (2 1 ,789) 

Total revenue bonds $ 150206030 

Interest expense related to the revenue and general obligation bonds totaled $7,713,843 for the year 
ended June 30,2013 and 01 that amount, $792,139 was capitalized during the year. 

The City has pledged future electric, water and wastewater customer revenues , net of specilied 
operating expenses, to repay $167,890,000 in revenue and revenue refunding bonds issued at various 
times from 2008 through 2010. Proceeds from the bonds provided linancing lor extensions, additions 
and capital improvements to or the renewal and replacement of capital assels of, or purchasing and 
installing new equipment for, the electric, waler, and wastewater systems. The bonds are payable 
solely from electric, water and wastewater customer net revenues and are payable through 2035. The 
total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $169,607,388. Principal and inlerest 
paid for the current year and total customer revenues were $17,830,000 and $268,571,535, 
respectively. 

The revenue bond order contains significant covenants respecting annual debt service requirements, 
use of the system and minimum revenue bond coverage, and requires that a reserve fund be 
established and maintained for the 2008 bonds. The reserve fund requirements have been met by the 
City Ihrough funding a reserve fund account and Ihe purchase of surety bonds in full amount of the 
bond requirement. The City is in compliance wilh all such significant covenants at June 30, 2013. 

F·26 




City of Fayetleville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

The Cily issued the 2011 series of Storm Water System revenue bonds in August 2011 to acquire, 
construct and equip various improvements 10 the City's nalural and structura l storm water and drainage 
system, including, without limitation, erosion control projects, drainage projects, culverts, outfalls and 
the acquisition of any relaled land, rights of way and equipment. With these bonds, the City pledges 
income derived from the operation of the storm waler system to pay debl service. Revenue bonds 
outstanding at year-end are as tallows: 

Balance 
Dale Series Amount of Oulslanding 

Purpose In terest Rate Dale Issued Iv1arures Original Issue June 30 , 20 13 
Series 2011 Storm water System 3.135% 811112011 812 1/2026 $ 10,595,000 $ 9,755,000 

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows : 

Year SlOrmwater Rewnue Bonds 

e""", Principal Interest Totals 

2014 595,000 301.195 896,195 

2015 610.000 282,385 892.385 

2016 625,000 2&3,163 888,183 

2017 845,000 24.3,433 888,433 

2018 665,000 223.055 888,055 

2019-2023 3,680,000 784,769 4,464)69 

2024-2028 2,935.000 186.846 3,121,846 

• 9,755,000 S2,284 ,866 S, 2,039,866 

As 01 June 30, 2013, deposits under the Trust Agreement for the Storm Water Revenue Bonds are held 
by the Trustee and the City in institutions designated by the City as an official depository. The deposits 
are held as follows: 

Cily $ 11,776 ,355 
Trustee - Regions Bank 2,993 ,776 
T(lJslee - NCGMT 1,657,141 
Tolal $ 16,427,273 

The lotal principal and interest remaining to be paid on the outstanding revenue bonds was 
$12,039,866 as of June 30, 2013 . These revenue bonds are secured by a covenant to budget and 
collect revenues in the storm water system suHicient enough to pay the principal and interest 
requirements. The City has been in compliance with the covenants for the bonds, which required the 
debt service coverage for parity indebtedness (revenue bonds only, as of June 30, 2013) to be 1.20 
and for all indebtedness to be 1.00. Financial information below is from the Storm Water Management 
Enterprise Fund. 
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City of Fayetteville , North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30, 2013 


Note 5· Long·Term Obligations (continued) 

Income Available for Debt Service 

Storm water fee revenues $ 
Other operating revenues 

Nonoperating re venue (expense) 

less/plus adjustments for: 

Interest earned on bonds proceeds offset by capitalized interest 

Unrealized ga in/loss on investments 

Total revenues 

Operating expenses 


l ess adjustments for: 

Depreciation 


Change in OPEB accrual 


Total current expenses 


Income Available for Debt Service 


Unrestricted cash 6/30/2012 (prior year) 


15% of unrestricted cash 


Total resources available for debt service 

Pari ty Indebtedness Debt Service Requ irement 

Series 2011 Revenue Bonds · Principal $ 
Series 2011 Revenue Bonds· Interest 

Total Available Resources Debt Service Coverage· Parity Indebtedness 

Revenue Bond Covenant Requirement 

Pa rity, Subordinated, and System G.O. Debt Service Requirement 

NC Storm water Note Payable 0196 $ 
NC Storm water Note Payable 0231 

Series 2011 Revenue Bonds - Principal 

Series 2011 Revenue Bonds -Interest 

5,233,338 

14,327 

(6,841) 

(5,039) 

59,466 

47, 586 

5,295,251 

3,017,236 

(632,312) 

(30,751) 

2,354,173 

2,941,078 

11,929,393 

1,789,409 

$ 4,730,487 

575,000 

319,378 

$ 894,378 

5,29 

1.20 

11,613 

13,417 

575,000· 
319,378 

$ 919,408 

Income Available for Debt Service Oebt Service Coverage - All Indebtedness 3.20 

Revenue Bond Covenant Requirement 1,00 
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City 01 Fayetteville, North Carolina 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


June 30,2013 


Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

C - Notes Payable 

Notes payable financed by the governmental funds are serviced by the Federal and State Financial 
Assistance Fund. 

On July 23, 2009, the Cny entered into a $750,000 loan agreement with the U.S. Department 01 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The loan was made under the Section 108 Loan Guarantee 
Program. During fiscal year 2012 the Series HUD 2011·A was refinanced to fix rates, between 0.31% 
to 2.05%. The purpose of the note is for the financing of a community development projecl. 

Notes payable financed by the Electric, Water and Wastewater and Storm Water Management Funds 
are accounted for in Ihe respective funds. 

The City has entered into revolving loan agreements for $7,595,127, $16.969,848, $382,788, 
$5,216,071, $3,922,282 and $14,801,858 with the Slate of North Carolina. The loans were used lor 
various Wastewater capital projects. The City has also entered into a loan agreement with South River 
Electric Membership Corporation (SREMC) utilizing funds made available to SREMC by USDA·Rural 
Development for a water capital project. These notes payable are junior, inferior and subordinate in all 
respects to the Revenue Bonds and General Obligation Bonds 01 the City of Fayetteville as to lien on 
and source and security for payment 110m the revenues and in all other respects. 

Additionally, in 2010, the City completed two storm water projects which were linanced through two 
federal revolving loans lor $464 ,503 and $536,692 administered through the State of North Carolina, 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources. As part of the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act 01 2009 (ARRA), the unpaid principal was immediately reduced by one half 01 Ihe 
loan amount to $232,252 and $268,346 as ~Principal Forgiveness. Q These notes are reported as 
business· type activities in the Storm Water Management enterprise fund . These notes payable are 
inferior and subordinate to the Storm Water Revenue Bonds of the City of Fayetteville. 

Notes payable in the accompanying financial statements are comprised of the following : 

Governmental activities 

$750,000 HUD Note Payable due in various annual installments of $75,000 
through August 1, 2019; interest rale between 0.31 % to 2.05% 
paid semiannually. $ 525,QOO 

Total governmental notes payable 525,OQO 
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Note 5 ~ Long~Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities 

$7,595,127 State revolving loan due in annual installments through 
May 1, 2021 ; interest at 2$% paid semi-annually on May 1 and 
November 1. $ 3,038,051 

$16,969,848 State revolving loan due in annual inslallments through 
May 1, 2026; interest at 2.66% paid semiannually on May 1 and 
November 1. 11,030,401 

$396,000 SREMC Loan due in 10 annual insta1tmenls beginning 
April 5, 2006; no interest 79,200 

$382,788 Slate Revolving Loan due in 20 annual installments beginning 
May 1, 2014; interest at 2.0% paid semi-annually on May 1 and 
November 1; construction draws complete. 382,788 

$5,216,071 State Revotving Loan due in 20 annual installments 
beginning May 1, 2014; no interest ; construction draws no yet complete . 4,877,609 

$3,922,282 Stale Revolving Loan due in 20 annual installments beginning 
May 1, 2015; interest at 2.0% with 1 S1 payment due November 1, 2014 
and semi-annually thereafter; construction draws not yet complete 1,797,501 

$14 ,801,858 Stale Revolving Loan due in 20 annual installments 
beginning May 1, 2015; no interest; construction draws no yet complete 1,019,386 

$232,252 Federal revolving loan due in annual installments through 
May 1,2030; non interest bearing, paid annualJy on May 1. 197,414 

$268,346 Federal revolving loan due in annuat installments through 
May 1, 2030; non interest bearing , paid annually on May 1. 228,094 

T olal business-type notes payable 22,650.444 

Tota l notes payable L23.175.444 

Interest expense related to the notes payable obligations totaled $406,007 for the year ended June 30. 
2013. 
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Note 5 ~ Long~Term Obligations (continued) 

o ~ Lease Agreements 

The City has entered inlo lease agreements as lessee for financing certain equipment, vehicles and 
fixtures. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases lor accounting purposes and, therefore, 
have been recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments as 01 the date 01 their 
inception. 

Capital lease obligations are comprised of the following: 

Governmental activities 

Capilallease obligations payable in various semi-annual 
instal1men1s of approximately $209,636 in 2014 
including interest at rates ranging from 4.19% $ 3,473,244 

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments 01 approximately $75,388 in 2014 
including in teres! al 2.06%, 1,733,913 

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments of approximately $50,235 in 2014 
including interest al 1.81% 602,825 

Capital lease obligalions payable in various semi-annual 
instaUments of approximately $322,242 in 2014 
including interest at 5.1 %. The City receives a subsidy of 
39.9 percent of interest cost from the Federal Government 
reducing the effective interest rale to 3.07% 6,602,022 

Capital lease obligations payable in various semi-annual 
installments of approximately $199,367 in 20 14 
including interest at estimated .996% 5,857,240 

Capital lease obligations payable in various semi-annual 
installments of approximately $97,269 in 2014 
including interest at estimated 0.73% 2,430,650 

20,699,894 

Less: amount representing interesl 12,772,463} 

Present value of the minimum lease payments 17.927,431 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities 

Capital lease obligations payable in va rious monthly 
installments of approximately $1 ,751 in 20 14 
including interest at 2.06% $ 40,284 

Less: amount representing interest (8 191 

Present value of the minimum lease payments 39.465 

Total capital lease obligat ions $ 1 Z 966,896 

The fo llowing is an ana lysis of leased property under capital leases as of June 30, 201 3: 

Classes of Pro2enl Cost De2reciation Value 
Equipment $ 2,228,170 $ 2,144,074 $ 84.096 
Vehicles 903.631 451,568 452,063 
Buildings and improvement 24,931.255 21,642,699 

Total $ 28,063,056 $ 22,178.858 

Interest expense related to the capital lease obligations totaled $628,715 for the year ended June 30, 
2013. 

E - Changes In Long-Term Obligations 

The following is a summary of changes in the City's long· term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 
30,2013 

Balance Balance Qlrrent 
-Ally 1, 2012 hcreas es Decreases June 30, 2013 Fbrlioo 

Governn-enta! ac~vities: 
General ob!igalion debt 
Revenue bonds 

• 11.876,406 
4, 120.000 

• $ 1,959,855 
600.000 

$ 9,91 6.55 1 
3.520,000 

$ 1. 954,855 
620,000 

Noles payable 600. 000 75.000 525,000 75.000 
Capll.araed leases 2 1.998.896 4,071,465 17,927.431 2,699.524 
Corrpens3ted absences 5,909.422 6,497,694 6,307,592 6,099,524 3 ,981.n9 
Nel OPES OllgaliOn 13,943.524 1, 15,756,753 

58,448,248 $ 13,013,912 53,745.,259 9.331.158 

Add: lKJarrorlized premum 863,496 67" ,324 
Total gove(Mmental activities $ 59,311 .744 $ 54.4 19,583 $ 9.331,1 58 
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Note 5· Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Susiness 'type aCttvilies : 
General obligal ion debl 
Revenue bonds 
f\bles payable 
Gapilaize<! leases 
Corrpensaled abseroccs 
Nel OPES Obligalio.' 

Balance 
June 30, 2012 

$ 4JK3.594 
150.245.000 

15,866,039 
59,445 

3.534.106 
5,045,780 

179.593,964 

hcreases 

8,077,284 

3 ,863,601 
1,01 2,585 

$ 12,953,470 

Decreases 

$ 805, 145 
11 ,800,000 

1,292,879 
19.980 

3.723,553 

• 17,64 1,557 

Balance 
June 3D, 2013 

• 4,038,449 
138,445,000 
22.650,444­

39,465 
3,674,154 
6.058,365 

174,905,877 

OJuent 
Fonion 

$ 800,145 
12,380,000 

1,572.822 
20,396 

2 .184,036 

16,957,399 

Add: Un31TWlrt iz ed prenium 
less; UnamoriUed diScount 
Total busines s-type aCliv~ies 

13,273,174 
(22,795) 

$ 192,844,343 $ 

12.014,742 
(21,789) 

186,m,a30 S 16.957.399 

Governmenlal compensated absences typicaUy have been liquidated in the general fund. 

~"h_H.· 
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Note 5 ~ Long ~Term Obligations (con tinued ) 

F - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations 

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all general long~term debt 

outstanding (excluding compensated absences and net OPES obligation). 


Governmental activities: 


Construction and 
Year General ObligatIOn Bonds Revenue Bonds Improvement leases 

Ended 
2014 

PrinCipal, 1,954 ,855 S 
Interest 

430,483 S 
Principal 

620,000 S 
Interest 

183.250 S 

Principal 

1.224 .670 , Interest 

432.354 
2015 1.939.855 341,502 640.000 152,250 1,235,693 394,885 
201. 1.684.855 252.960 665,000 118.650 1,247,062 357,310 
2017 839.855 176.542 685,000 83.738 1,258,793 319,625 
2018 529.47<$ 143.798 720,000 47,775 1,270.896 28 1.827 

201 9-2023 2.167.657 438,384 190,000 9,975 6.398,677 837.944 
2024-2027 800.000 2.996,008 107,407 

9.916.551 3,520.000 595.638 15.831,799 2.731,352 
Add: Unamortized premium 3%,430 277.894 

S 10,312.981 S 1.833,607 S 3.797 ,894 S 595.638 S 15.631.799 S 2.731 ,352 

Year Capitalize<! Leases Notes Payable Total Debt Due 
Ended 
2014 S 

Principal 
1,474.854 S 

Interest 

32.625 S 

Principal 
75,000 S 

interest 

6.296 S 

Principal 
5.349.379 

Interest, 1,085,008 
2015 820.778 8.484 75,000 5,683 4.711.326 903.004 
2015 75.000 5,284 3.671.917 734,204 
20 17 75.000 4.478 2,858.648 584,383 
2018 75 ,000 3.443 2.595.370 476,B43 

2019-2023 150.000 2,970 8,906,334 1.289, 273 
2024-2027 3,796.008 1571345 

2,295.632 41.109 525,000 28,354 31 ,888.982 5.230.060 
Add: Unamortized premium 674 .324 

S 2,295,632 S 41,109 , 525.000 S 28.354 S 32 .563,306 S 5,230,060 

The following schedule includes the City's expected estimated schedule of maturity for the business­
type activities, noted above as well as the annual requirements to amortize all business-type long-term 
debt outstanding (excluding compensated absences and net OPEB obligations). 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities: 

Year General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bol'Ids Noles Payable 
Eoded Prloc ipal Inleresl Principal Interes! Principal Inwest 
2014 , 800, \45 , \ 78,517 , 12,380,000 $ 6,462,420 , 1,572,822 , 383.609 
20 15 625,145 140,510 12,755,000 5,873.510 1,696,743 514,433 
20 16 520,145 11 1,253 13,7 10,000 5,265,858 1,657,1 4.3 423,077 
2017 575,145 87,246 15,520,000 4,61 5,908 1,657, 143 384.531 
2018 375,526 63 ,840 16,635,000 3,868,830 1,657, 143 34$,985 

201 9-2023 1,142,343 98,077 43,440,000 10,763,882 7,526,202 1,161 ,605 
2024-2(}28 12, 790,000 4,123,347 4,689,948 408,122 
2029-2033 8,005,000 1,987,750 2,069,380 120,135 
2034-2035 5,721 

4,038,449 3,747,218 
Add : UnamortiZed ptemium 23 1,923 
Lass: Unamorized loss {21,789) 

$ 4,270,372 S 679,443 S 150,206.030 , 43,202,254 , 22,650,444 $ 3,747,218 

Year Capilalized Leases Total Dabt Due 


End'" Principal Interest PrinCipal Interest 

2014 S 20,396 , 622 • 14,773,363 , 7,025, 168 

201 5 19,069 197 15,095,957 6,528,650 

20 \6 15,887.288 5,800,188 

2017 17,752,288 5,087,685 

2018 18,667,669 4,278,655 


2019·2023 52.108,545 12,023.564 

2024·2028 17,479,948 4,53 1,469 

2029·2033 10,074,360 2,1 07.885 

2034-2035 3,333,920 245,470 


39,465 819 165, 173,358 47,629 ,734 
Add: UnamQr1ized premium 12,014.142 
Less: Unamorized !oss 12 1,7891 

39,465 , 819 $ 171,166,3 l1 $ 47,629,734 • 
G - Legal Debt Margin 

The legal debt margin of the City at June 30, 201 3, approximated $1 ,024,907,185. 

H - Authorized But Un-Issued Debt 

At June 30,2013, the City had $1 ,700,000 refunding bonds authorized but un-issued, 
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Note 6 - Unearned Revenue 

The governmental and proprietary funds defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that 
have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components 
of unearned revenue reported in the government-wide financial statement were as follows: 

Unavailable 
Amounts arising from cash : Revenue 

Unearned revenue (General) $ 139,225 
Unearned grant receipts (Special Revenue) 59,655 
Unearned grant receipls (Capital Projects) 1,637,400 
Prepaid retiree insurance premiums (Internal Service) 12,705 
Unearned revenue (Enterprise) 81,808 

Total $ 1,930,793 

·..·.·H•. 
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Note 7 - Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 


Deferred inflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the following: 


Unavailable Uneamed 
Revenue Revenue 

Prepaid licenses and fees not yet eamed (General) $ $ 483,548 
Taxes receivable, net (General) 3,239,535 
Accounts and notes receivable (General) 547,637 
Special assessments receivable, net (General) 925,310 
Accounts and noles receivable (SpeciaJ Re\€nue) 8,730,415 

Total $ 13,442,897 $ 483,548 

Deferred outflows of resources is the deferred amount for unamortized refunding charges. 

Gains and losses from debt refunding must be deferred and amortized over [he lesser of the orig inal 
remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. In addition, gains or losses related to debt 
refunding are to be used in determining the carrying value of the new debt issued to finance debt 
refunding, The carrying values of the 2009A Revenue Refunding Electric Waler and Wastewater Bonds 
and the 2009 GO Refunding Bonds have been adjusted for the loss from defeasance (net of 
amortization) of $7,275,565. 

In fiscal year 2011, the City exercised its option to call for early redemption the remaining outstanding 
maturities of the 2001 Revenue Refunding ElectriClWater and Wastewater Bonds totaling $7,680,000 at 
a redemption price of 101%. The difference between the amount paid upon reacqu isition and the face 
value, plus any unamortized premium, less any unrelated unamortized debt expense, unamortized 
discount and reacquisition cosls applicable 10 the debt redeemed is recorded as an Unamortized Loss 
on Reacquired Debt and is amortized equally on a monthly basis over the original life of the deb1. At 
June 30, 2013, the unamortized value ollhe loss was $117,842. 

Refunding and defeasance losses of $302,233 (net of amortization) from the 2002 and 2009 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds and the 2005 Revenue Refunding Bonds are also reported as unamortized 
bond refunding charges in the statement of net position. 

This deferred outflow of resources is included as unamortized bond refunding charges in the statement 
of net position. 

Note 8 - Risk Management 

The City (excluding the electric and water and wastewater funds) is self-insured .. (sell-funded) with 
respect to insurance claims as follows : health insurance (up to $150,000 per individual and 
approximately $12,157,909 for all employees lor the policy ending June 30, 2013), general liability (up 
to $350,000 per occurrence), workers' compensation ($600,000 per occurrence), public officials liability 
(up to $350,000 per occurrence), law enforcement liability ($350,000 per occurrence), and automobile 
liability (up to $350,000 per occurrence). The City maintains excess liability insurance ($10,000,000) to 
cover catastrophic losses. Property insurance on city buildings is for replacement value (less $100,000 
sell-funded retention). The health insurance plan 's excess coverage allows expenditures by the City up 
to 125% of expected claims adjusted for industry standard trend adjustments, and for expenditures by 
the City of up to $150,000 per individual. Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims 
iden1ified under the City's incident reporting system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate 
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Note 8 - Risk Management (continued) 

the City's past experience, as well as other considerations including the nature of each claim and 
relevant trend factors . 

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. Claims have not exceeded coverage in 
any of the last three fiscal years. 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds are self-insured with respect to workers' compensation 
(up to approximately $1.000,000) and self-insured with respect to heallh insurance claims (up to 
approximately $2,000,000). In addition, these funds are sell-insured with respect to certain policy 
deductible amounts as follows: up 10 $100,000 per occurrence on public officials' liability, up to 
$1,000,000 per occurrence on liability claims, and up to $250,000 per occurrence on property claims. In 
addition, the Electric and Waler and Wastewater Funds maintain excess liability insurance 
($10,000,000) to cover catastrophic losses and auto liability coverage with a $5,000 deductible per 
occurrence. These funds maintain an investment account amounting to $3.500,000 to cover possible 
workers' compensation and other claims. This investment is classified under restricted assets in the 
financial statements. No accrual for possible losses atlributable to incidents that may have occurred 
but that have not been identified under the incident reporting system has been made, because the 
amount is not reasonably estimated. 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carry commercial coverage for all other risks at loss. 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage since the prior year, and settled 
claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three liscal years. 

At June 30, 2013, a liability for incurred but not reported claims 01 $4,689,472 is included in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses on the accompanying financial statements. An analysis of claims 
activity for the City and the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds is presented below. 

2013 2012 

Liability at June 30, $ 4,528,254 $ 3,486.794 

Current year claims and changes 
in estimates 20,944,041 17,365,312 

Actual claim payments (20. 782.82~) (16,323,8;;2) 

Liability at June 30, ~ ~ 68~,~Z2 $ ~ ~~8,2~~ 

The City (excluding the electric and water and wastewater funds) carries flood insurance through the 
National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP) on a particular property commonly known as the police training 
facility located at 671 North Eastern Blvd. This property is covered by a separate insurance policy with 
damage limits of $500,000 for building and $250,000 for contents with a $5,000 deductible. The City's 
insurance carriers performed an analysis of the flood maps and made a determination thaI the 
remainder of the City facililies was not designated an "A~ zone (an area close to a river, lake or stream) 
by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carry flood insurance thro ugh the commercial insurance 
market. The current policy limit is $50 million with a $1 million sublimit applicabJe fOf loss in flood zones 
that are designated '"AI> zones . The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds' standard deductible is 
$100,000 with the exception of a $250,000 deductible set for combustion steam generators. 
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Note B - Risk Management (continued) 

In accordance wilh G.S. 159-29, City employees (excluding employees of the electric, waler and 
wastewater funds) who have access to $100 or more of the City's funds at any given time are 
performance bonded through commercial surety bonds. The City's Chief Financial Officer is 
individually bonded for $1 00,000. The remaining employees who have access to funds are bonded 
under a blanket bond for $1 00,000 per theft coverage, with a $1 ,000 per occurrence deductible. 

All Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employees, including the Chief Financial Officer, Controller 
and Director of Planning and Capital Projects, are insured under the funds' commercial crime policy in 
accordance with G.S, 159-29. The crime policy provides coverage for losses related to employee 
dishonesty, fraud, forgeryJalleration and theN of money or securities up to $1,000,000. This crime 
policy has a $25,000 deductible per loss. 

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liabilily of the applicable funds . The amount, if any, of expenditures which 
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such 
amounts, il any, to be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial 
stateme nts for Ihe refund of grant money. 

The Cily is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these proceedings is not presently 
determinable, it is the opinion 01 management that the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial condition of Ihe City. 

The City is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. While it is not 
possible to quantify with certainly the potential impact of actions regarding environmental matters, 
particularly any future remediation and other compliance efforts, in the opinion of management, 
compliance with the present environmental protection laws will not have a material adverse eNact on 
the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the City. 

The City's bond issues are subject to Federal arbitrage regulations, and the City has elected to review 
its potential arbitrage liability annually on the bond issue dates. The arbitrage rebate payments are 
payable on the fifth anniversary of the bond issue date and every fifth year subsequent to that 
date. Although Ihe actual amount to be paid is not presently determinable, the City believes that an 
adequate provision for arbitrage payables has been provided for in the accompanying linancial 
statements. 

The Cily has authorized expenditures totaling approximately $219.7 million for capital additions and 
construction of various administration, public safety, recreation, Iransportation, economic development, 
bond improvement, Linear Park, electric, water and wastewater, storm water , transit and airport 
projects. At June 30, 2013, cumulative expenditures to date totaled approximately $161 .1 million 
leaving an unexpended balance of $58.6 million for projects that are expected to be completed at 
various dates in future fiscal years. 

In June 2009 the City executed a 20-year full requirements Power Supply and Coordination Agreement 
with Progress Energy (PEC) effective July 1, 2012. Subsequent amendments extended {his term to 30 
years. Under this agreement, PEC will provide the City's full power supply requirements at an annually 
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Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (continued) 

determined capacity and energy price based on PEC 's average system cost. The City will continue to 
utilize its SEPA allocation as permitted in the contract. The City may terminate this agreement effective 
July " 2022 with written notice provided by June 30, 2015, Also in June 2009, the City an'd PEC 
executed a 5-year Butler Warner Power Sales Agreement effective July " 2012, Under this 
agreement, the City will generate and deliver energy to PEC pursuant to scheduled energy requests 
provided by PEC , PEC will pay the City for capacity, energy (including any fuel costs) and stan costs. 
Either pany may terminate this agreement by 3 years advance written notice. 

In addition 10 the purchased power contract, the City pays power transmission costs to its power supply 
provider, DEP. The transmission rates are established by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
(FERC). 

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the purchased power cost, including gross receipts tax and 
transmission cost to DEP was $143,157,210. 

The City teases oHice space to others in the Robert C, Williams Business Center at Lafayette Plaza and 
the Administration Building on Old Wilminglon Road. These lease agreements provide for minimum 
rental, have terms of 3 to 10 years and are due to expire at various dales from 2014 to 2016, Minimum 
lease provisions at June 30, 2013 will result in rental income for fulure years as follows ; 

Year ending June 30 Rent 
2014 $ 625,299 
2015 31 6,948 
2016 253,118 
Total $ 1, 195,365 

Note 10 - On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the City has recognized on-behalf payments lor pension 
contributions made by the Stale as revenue and an expenditure 01 $37,638 for the 102 employed 
firemen who perform !irefighting dulies for the City'S fire department. These employees elected to be 
members of the Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund, a cost sharing, multiple­
employer public employee retirement system established and administered by the State of North 
Carolina. The plan is funded by a monthly contribution paid by each member, investment income, and 
a State appropriation. 

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems 

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (the Law Enforcement Officers' 
Special Separalion Allowance System), which covers the law enforcement officers of the City. In 
addition, the City continues to participate in the statewide local governmental retirement system, a 
multiple-employer, cost-sharing public employee pension plan that covers substantially all employees. 
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 

A - Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 

Plan Description 

The City contribu tes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (lGERS) . a 
cost sharing . and multiple-employer def ined benefit penSion plan administered by the State of North 
CarOlina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 
3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North 
Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System is included in the 
Comprehensive Annual Financ ial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for lGERS. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the OHice of the State Controller; 141 0 Mail Service Center; Raleigh, North 
Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

Funding Policy 

Plan members are required to contribute six percenl of their annual covered satary. The City is 
requ ired to contribute at an actuarially determ ined rate. For the City, exclusive of the Electric and 
Water and Wastewater funds. the current rate lor employees not engaged in law enforcement and for 
raw enforcement off icers is 6. 74'% and 6.77%, respectively , of annual covered payroll. The rate for the 
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds is 12.1 1%. The contribution requirements of members and of 
the City are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The City's 
contribu tions to LGERS for all employees, including law enforcement officers and ElectriC and Water 
and Wastewater funds. ior the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, were $8,457,339, 
$8,267,967 and $7.714,470, respectively. The contributions made by the City equaled the required 
contributions for each year. 

B - Supplemental Employees ' Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Effective April 1, 2001, the Commission transferred the assets of the Employee's Reti rement Plan of 
the Public Works Commission of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina ("ERP plan"), a single-employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Works Commission Employees' Retirement 
Plan Board of Trustees into a new retirement plan: The l ocal Governmental Employees' Retirement 
System plan ("LGERS") (A cost-Sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the 
State of North Carolina). At the dale of transition . approxim'!-tely $49.7 million of the plan assets were 
transferred to the LGERS plan. 

C - law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 

Plan Description 

The City administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Allowance"). a single­
employer; defined benefit pension plan {hat provides retirement benefits 10 Ihe City's qualified sworn 
law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of 
the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. 
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or reti rement allowances that may be 
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 

authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G. S . Chapter 143 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Separation 
Allowance is reported in the Cily's report as a pension trust fund and does not issue separate financial 
statements. The Separation Allowance covers all lull-time Cily law enlorcement officers. 

At December 31, 2012, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of : 

Retirees receiving benefits 
Active plan members 
Tolal 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting: Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accruat 
basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the City 
has made a lormal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms 01 the plan. 

Method Used to Value In vestments: Investments are reported at lair value. Short· term debt, deposits, 
and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust Investments are reported at cost or amortized cost , 
which approximates fair value. Certain longer term United Slates Government and United States 
Agency securities are valued at the last reported sales price. 

Contributions 

The City is required by Article 120 of G. S. Chapter 143 10 provide these retirement benefits and has 
chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on 
actuarial valuations. For the current year, the City contributed $734,796, or 3.83% of annuat covered 
payroll. There were no contributions made by employees. The City's obligation to contribute to this 
plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. 

The annual required contribulion for the current year was determined as part of the December 31,2011 
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial method. The actuarial assumptions included 
(a) 5.00% investment rate of return (net of adminislrative expenses) and (b) projected satary increases 
of 4 .25% . 7.85% per year . 80th (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.00%. The 
assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was market 
value. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a 
ctosed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31 , 2011 was 19 years. 
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Note 11 . Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation 

The City's annual pension cost and net prepaid pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the 
current year were as follows : 

Annual required contribution $ 722,602 

Interest on net pension obligation (27,906) 

Adjustment to annual required contribution 34,732 

Annual pension cost 729,428 

Contributions made 734,796 

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation (5,368) 

Net prepaid pension obligation beginning of year 1558.112) 

Net prepaid pension obligation end of year $ 1563.480) 


Three-Year Trend Information 
Annual Percentage Net Prepaid 

Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension 
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 
2011 $ 689,01 2 102.27% $(549,414) 
2012 677,846 101 .28 (558,112) 
2013 729,428 100.74 (563,480) 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

As Of June 30, 2013 the plan was not funded. The most recent actuarial valuation was December 31, 
2012. The actuarial value of plan assets was $2.661,060. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) lor 
benefits was $7,809,998 and the unfunded actuarial accrued liabitity (UAAL) was $5,148,938. The 
tunded ratio was 34.07 percent. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by 
the plan) was $19,305,057 and the ratio of Ihe UAAL 10 the covered payroll was 26.67 percent. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes 
to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whelher the actuarial value of 
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the aCluarial accrued tiability for benelits. 
The general fund typically liquidates any net pension obligation. 
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Note 11 • Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 


The fiscal year 2012·20 13 financiat statements for the City's pension trust fUnds are as follows: 


STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
AccounlS receivable 

Tolal assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payabie 

Tolal liabililies 

NET POSITION 
Held in trust for benefits and other purposes 
Tolal net position 

Special 

Separation 


All owance 

Pension 


Trust Fund 


$ 2,720,918 

963 
2, 721,881 

37,377 
37,377 

2,684 ,504 

$ 2,684,504 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCI ARY NET POSITION 

ADDITIONS 
Employer contributions 
In\.estment eamings 

TOlal additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefit payments and premiums 

Total deductions 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
Total net posilion - beginning 
TOlal nel pos ition - ending 

Spec ial 

Separa tion 

All owance 


Pension 

Trust Fund 


$ 734,796 
(2,948) 

731,848 

619, 426 
619,426 . 

112,422 
2, 572,082 

$ 2,684,504 
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 

D - Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 

Plan Description 

The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (the "Plan") , a defined contribution 
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan 
provides ret irement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the City and also those non-law 
enforcement employees who choose to make their own contributions. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions for the law enforcement officers to the 
North Carolina General Assembly . The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement 
Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Stale of North 
Carolina. The state 's CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial slalements for the Internal 
Revenue Code Section 401 (k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law 
Enforcement Officers . That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the Slate Controlier, 1410 
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

Funding Policy 

Article 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equat 10 five 
percent of each law enforcement officer's salary, and ali amounts contributed are vested immediately. 
The City does not make any contributions for non-law enforcement employees. All employees may 
make voluntary contributions to the Plan. Contributions lor the year ended June 30, 2013, were 
$1,982,914, which consisted of $1,003,373 from the City and $979,541 from employees. 

E • Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund 

Plan Description 

As discussed in Note 10, the State of North Carolina contributes, on behalf of the City of Fayel1eville, to 
the Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension ptan with a special funding situation administered by the State of North 
Carolina. The Fund pfOvides pension benefits for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have 
elected to become members of the Fund. Article 86 at G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Firemen's and 
Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annuat Financial Report 
(CAFR) jar the Slate of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the 
State Controlier, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 
9B l-5454. 

Funding Policy 

Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The Stale, a non employer 
contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not contribute to the Fund. 
Contribution requirements of plan members and the State of North Carolina are established and may be 
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. 
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Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11. the City (excluding the City's Public Works 
Commiss ion) administers the Other Post Employment Senefit Retiree Healthcare Plan, a single­
employer defined benefit healthcare plan. For employees hired on or atter February 1, 2008, this plan 
provides postemployment heallhcare benefits to retirees ollhe City, up to the age of 65 or untillhey are 
eligible to receive medicare benefits, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local 
Governmental Employees' Retiremenl System (System) and have at least twenty years of creditable 
service with the City. For employees hired prior to February 1, 2008, employees Qualified for similar 
level benefits atter at least five yea rs of creditable service with the City and 10 years of service credit 
with the System. The City and retirees contribute to the cost 01 coverage for these benefits through a 
self·insured plan. Also. the City's retirees can purchase coverage for their eligible dependents at the 
City's group rates . The City also provides a death benelit through the plan based on the number of 
years of service at retirement. The City may amend the benefit provisions. A sepafate report was not 
issued lor the plan. 

Membership in the healthcare and tile insurance benefit plan consisted of Ihe fonowing at Oecember 
31 , 2011, the date of the latest acluaria! valuation: 

Retirees receiving health andJor life insurance benelils 520 
Active plan members 1,456 

TOlal 1,976 

Funding Policy. The City and the qualified retirees share in the cost of heallhcare coverage. Also, the 
City's retirees can purchase healthcare coverage for Iheir dependents at the City's group rates. The 
City pays the cost of death benefits. 

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 5.0 1 percent of annual covered payroll as 
reflected in lhe latest actuarial valuation. For the current year, the City contributed $1,225,435 or 1.99 
percent of annual covered payroll. The City is self· insured with respect to healthcare coverage up to 
$150,000 per individual and approximately $1 2, 157,909 for all employees and retirees for the policy 
ending June 30, 2013. Retiree members contributed $280,416 or 0.46 percent of annual covered 
payroll for retiree and dependent coverage. The City also provides death benefits to retirees . Retirees 
that retired prior to June 1, 1988 are provided with a $1,000 death benefit. Retirees that retire on or 
after June 1, 1988 and have at least five (5) years of service with the City, are provided a $100 death 
benefit for each year of service up to a maximum of $3,000. The City's and retiree members' obligation 
to contribute to the healthcare plan. including the death benefit, is established and may be amended by 
the City Manager consistent with the annual budget approved by City Council. The City has chosen 10 
fund healthcare and death benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Post·employment expenditures are made from the 
Insurance Internal Service Fund, which is maintained on lhe full accrual basis of accounting. The 
Insurance Fund charges a monthly rate per re(iree 10 the General Fund, special revenue tunds and 
enterprise lunds (other Ihan the funds managed by the Public Works Commission) based on the 
number of retirees attributed 10 each lund to pay for post·employment expenditures . 
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Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPES) (continued) 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated 
based on the annual required con tribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance within the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, 
il paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuari al liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table 
shows the components of the City's annual OPES cost for the liscal year ended June 30, 201 3, the 
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's nel OPES obligation for the 
healthcare and death benefits: 

Annual Required Contribulion (ARC) 
Interest on nel OPES obligation 
Adjustment to annual required conlribulion 
Annual OPES cost (expense) 
Contributions Made 
Increase (decrease) in net OPES obligation 
Net OPES obligation, beginning of the year 
Net OPES obligation, end of the year 

$3,087,518 
584,941 

(558,800) 
3, 113,659 
(1,225,435) 
1,888,224 

14,623,514 
$16,51 1,738 

The City's annual OPES cost. the percentage of annual OPES cost contributed to the plan , and the net 
OPES obligation for 201 1 through 2013 were as follows: 

For the Year Annual OPES Percentage 01 Annual Net OPE S 
Ended June 30 Cost OPES Cost Contributed Obligation 

20 11 $ 3,226,270 26.44% $ 12,212,791 
2012 3,399,926 29.09% 14,623,514 
2013 3 ,1 13,659 39.36% 16,511 ,738 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2013 the plan was not funded. The most recent 
actuarial valuation was December 31, 2011. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the 
unfunded actuariat accrued liability (UAAL) was $31,318,000. The covered payroll (annual payroll 01 
active employees covered by the plan) was $6 1,529,547 and the ratio 01 the UAAL to the covered 
payroll was 50.90 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far inlo the future . 
Examples include assumptions about fUlure employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual requ ired contributions 01 Ihe 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and 
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule 01 funding progress, presented as required 
supplementary information following the notes to the finanCial statements, presents multi-year trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over lime 
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits . 
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Note 12 • Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based 
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benelit costs between the employer and plan members al that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques Ihat are designed 10 reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective 
of the calculations. 

In the December 31 , 201' actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method was 
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return which is the 
expected long-term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the 
funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 9.50 to 5.00 
percent annually. 80th (ates included a 3.00 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of 
assets. if any, was determined using techniques that spread the effects 01 short-term volatility in the 
market value of investments. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll 
on an open basis . The remaining amortization period at December 31,2011, was 30 years. 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11 , the City's Public Works Commission 
administers the Public Works Commission Other Post Employment 8enefit Reliree Healthcare Plan, a 
single·employer defined benefit healthcare plan for the Electric, Water and Wastewater, and PWC Fleet 
Maintenance funds . This plan provides postemployment health care benefits to retirees and their 
dependents up to the age of 65. The Commission may amend the benefit provisions. 

Membership in the Commission's healthcare benefit plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2013: 

Retirees 73 
Active members 520 
Total ~ 

Funding Policy. The Commission and the qualified retirees share in the cost 01 coverage. Also, the 
Commission's retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at Ihe Commission's group rates. 
The Commission has chosen to fund the health care benefits on a pay as you go basis. 

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 6.3 percent 01 annual covered payroll. The 
Commission is self-insured with respect to healthcare coverage. 

The Schedule of Funding Progress for the postemployment plan immediately following the notes to the 
financial statements presents multi-year trend infor.mation about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits over time. 

Annual OPE8 Cost and Net OPEB Obfigation. The Commission's annual OPE8 cost (expense) is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount aCluariaUy 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, il paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years, The following 
table shows the components of the Commission's annual OPEB cost lor the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2013. 
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Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPES) (continued) 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 2, 140,755 
Interest on net OPE8 obligation 174,630 
Adjustment to annual required contribution (242.764) 
Annual OPES cost (expense) 2,072,621 
Contributions Made (1 ,135,031) 
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 937,590 
Nel OPES obligation, beginning 01 the year 4,365,790 
Net OPES obligation, end of the year $5,303,380 

The Commission's annual OPES cost, percentage of annual OPES cost contributed 10 the plan, and 
the net OPES obligation for 20 11 through 2013 were as follows : 

For the Year An nualOPEB Percentage of Annual Nel0PEB 
Ended June 30 Cost OPES Cost Contribu ted Obligation 

201 1 $ 2,096,449 45.45% $ 3,743,672 
2012 1,143,510 45.59% 4,365,790 
20 13 2, 072,621 54.76% 5,303,380 

As 01 June 30, 201 3 the plan was not funded. The most recent actuarial valuation was June 30, 20 13. 
The actuarial accrued liability for benelits and, thus, Ihe unlunded actuarial accrued liabi lity (UAAL) was 
$25,051,694. The net OPES obligation and related OPES expense are reported in the Electric, Water 
and Wastewater and PWC Fleet Maintenance funds as a noncurrent other liabilily and a general and 
administrative expense, respectively. 

The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) al the last actuarial date 
was $34 ,013,831 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 73.65 percent. Actuarial 
valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value 01 reported amounts and assumptions 
aboutlhe probability of occurrence 01 events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about 
lulure employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status 
at the plan and the annual required contribu tions of the employer are subject to continual revision as 
actual resu lts are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future . 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financiat reporting purposes are based 
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing 01 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective 
of the calculations. 

In the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit Method was bused . The actuarial 
assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return which is the expected long-term 
investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan 
at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 8.00 to 5.00 percent annually. 80th 
rates included a 2.50 percent inflation assumption. The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar 
amortization on an open basis. The remaining amortization period was 30 years. There are no assets 
set aside for Ihese benefits. The plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis . 
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Note 13 -Interfund Balances and Activity 


Balances Due tollrom Other Fund~ 


Balances due lol/rom other funds at June 30, 2013, consist of the following: 


Due To: 

Due From: Internal Service Fund TOIal 
ElectriC $ 359,796 $359,796 
Water Wastewater 488,242 488,242 

$ 848,038 $848,038 

The inlerfund balances resulted from the time Jag between the dates thai (1) inlerfund goods and 
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 

Transfers to/from Other Funds 

Transfers due to/from other funds at June 30, 2013, consist of the following: 

Transfer in: 

""""'iO< Waler and Nonrrapr t'ote.rnal 
Transf er out 
General 

General , Governrrental 

$7,601. 152 S 
8eclr ic 

20,847 
Wastewater 

52,913,651 
BnerlYise 

$4,$43,196 
Service 

$ 467,303 
TOlal 

$ 15,566,151 
Nonmajor Govemrr.enlal 

8ectfiC 10.961,399 21,229 10,982,628 
Waler and Waslew aler 21,229 21.229 
NoM'\!ljor C1lerprise 391 .641 391,641 

TOl2ls S 11,353.040 57,601, 152 , 20.847 $2,91 3,551 $4.543. 198 , 529,761 S 26,961,649 

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs thai the government 
must account lor in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and include amounts 
provided as matching funds for various grant programs. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, a total of $10,961,399 was transferred from the electriC 
fund to the general lund. This transfer represented 3. 1% of electriC fund net position at June 3D, 201 1 . 

Transfers totaling $7,601,152 were made during the fiscal year from Ihe general fund to non-major 
governmental funds. Of this tolal, transfers for capital projects consisted of: $4,070,996 for 
transportation projects including street resurtacing and improvements, sidewalk improvements, and 
transportation and railroad crossing improvement project commitments under municipal agreements ; 
$2,692,210 for general government projects inCluding major facility maintenance projects and computer 
replacements; $416,767 for economic developmenl projects including property acquisition for 
redevelopment; $90,960 for a recreational and cultural project for playground equipment improvements; 
and $994 for a public safety project to fund final costs for a new fire station. AdditionaJly, transfers for 
special revenue funds inctuded $329,225 transferred for local matches lor Federal and State funded 
programs. 
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Note 13 -Interfund Balances and Activity (continued) 

The general lund also made transfers totaling $4,543,198 to a non-major enterprise fund 10 support 
transit system operations, planning functions and cap ital purchases, including a local match for the 
construction of a mull i-modal transportation center , and $2,913,651 to the water and wastewater fund 
for infrastructure installation and debt service related to annexed areas. 

Note 14 - FUnd Balance 

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General 
fund balance that is available for appropriation: 

Total fund balance - General Fund $ 51064358 

Less : 
Inventories 
Stabilization by State Statute 
Central8usiness Tax DistriCt 
Cumberland County Recreation District 
Dona1ions 
Lake Valley Drive MSD 
Appropriated Fund Balance in 2014 budget 
Specific purpose assignments 
Capital funding plan 
Working Capital/Fund Balance Policy 

RemaininQ Fund Balance $ 

137,604 
15,196,662 

25,509 
4,124,037 

19,194 
5.420 

3,529,523 
7,713,907 
2,760,753 

14,740,174 

2,811,575 

The City's fund balance policy is discussed in Note 1. 

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase 
orders and contracts that remain unperformed at year end. 

TOTAL 
Encumbrances General Fund Non·Ma"or Funds 

$ 5,077 ,396 $ 1,465,051 $ 3,612,345 

Note 15 - Change in Accounting Principle 

EHective July 1,2012, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 65, lIems Previously 
Reported as Assets and Liabilities (Statement No. 65). The provisions 01 Statement No. 65 relevant 
to the City related to changes in the accounting and reporting of bonded debt activities. Specifically, 
bond issuance costs incurred are recorded as current period expenditures as opposed to being 
deferred and amortized over the maturity period of the debt. Statement No. 65 also requires that 
deferred charges (credits) resulting from the refunding 01 debt and revenue that applies to a future 
period and will not be recognized as revenue until then be presented as deferred outflows (inflows) 
of resources and not as assets or liabilities. The City's governmental funds balance sheet also 
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Note 15 - Change in Accounting Principle (continued) 

reflects unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to 
be available 10 liquidate liabilities for the current period and is presented as deferred inflows of 
resources, taxes receivable, accounts receivabte, assessment receivable and prepaid taxes. As 
the provisions of Statement No. 65 were ef1eclive July 1, 2012, net position as of that date has been 
adjusted accordingly: 

Buslness·Type 
Activities 

Electric 
Fund 

Water 
Fund 

Storm Water 
Maoagement 

Noomalor 
Entetprl$fl 

Intemat 
Service 

Fund TotDI 

Net position. as 
preVIously reported 

$ J96,S90.812 $ 409.717,676 S23.736.085 563.781.595 $2.483,211 S 896.609.379 

Adjuslmerlls: 
Debt issuance costs 
Deferred refunding 
issuaoce costs 

Subtotal. adjustment 

(l18.483) 
(289.365) 

(407.8.48\ 

(1 .312.988) 
(1.326.201 ) 

(2.639,1S9) 

(80.343) 

(80.343) 

(1.511,8 14) 
(1.61S.S66) 

(3,127.380) 

Net pos~ion. as adjusted ~: 482,9&I 5 407,078.487 $23,655.742 563.781.595 $2.483.2 11 5; 893.481.999 

Govemmental AcllviUes 

Net pos~ion. as previously reported 54 16.099.103 

AdjUSlmE!Ilts: 
0ebI issuance COSIS (405.183) 
Defer,eel relundlnll issuallCe COSIS 

Subtotal. adjoSlment (405.783) 

Nel pos~ioo. as adjusled $4 15,693,320 

Note 16 - Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 5, 2013 in conneclion with the 
preparation of these financiat statements which is the date of the financial statements were available to 
be issued. 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 

Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Funding Progress 


Actuarial Accrued 
Actuarial Liability (AAlJ Unfunded UAAL as a 

Actuarial Value of • Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered 
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) tb) (b·a) (al b) (c) «b·aUc) 

12/3112007 S 2,092.180 S 5,062.285 S 2,970,105 41.33% S 16,792,423 17.69% 
12/3112008 2.1 01.963 5,449,006 3,347,043 3858% 17.468,170 19.16% 
12/3112009 2. 16\.322 7.423.392 5.262.070 29.12% 18,645,039 28.22% 
1213112010 2,299.829 7,099,596 4.799,767 32.39% 19,348.625 24.81% 
1213112011 2.494,212 7,577.761 5,083,549 3291% 19,642 ,118 25.88% 
1213112012 2,661,060 7,809,998 5,148.938 34.07% 19.305.057 26.61% 

The annual required contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 3 was determined as part of the December 31, 2011 actuarial 
valuation using lhe prnjecl unit credit actuarial cost method. The actUarial assumplions included (a) 5.00".4. investment rale of relum 
and (b) projected salary increases ranging from 4.25% to 7,85% per year. The inflation component was 3.00%. The assumptions do 
not inClude poslrelirement benefit increases The actuarial value of assets was market value. The unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a close<! basis The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2011 
was 19 years. 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Law Enforcement Officers' Special Seperation Allowance 

Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Employer Contributions 


Year Ended 

June 30 


2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Annual Required Percentage Actual 
Contribution Contributed Contributions 

$ 383,772 
41 5,308 
465,302 
689,012 
677,846 
729,428 

98.84% 
107.04% 
110.02% 
102.27% 
101 .28% 
100.74% 

379,324 
444,528 
511 ,937 
704,620 
686.544 
734.796 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the 
actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation 
follows: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Remaining amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Actuarial assumplions: 

Investment rate return' 

Projected salary increases' 

• Includes inflation at 

Cost-of-living adju stments 

Oecember 31,2012 

Projected Unit Credit 

Level percent of pay closed 

18 years 

Mark.et value 

5% 

4.25 -7.85% 

3.00% 

N/A 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 
Required Supplementary Inlonnation 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Accrued 
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a 

Actuarial Value of - Projects Unil AAl Funded Covered Ok of Cove red 
Valuation Assets Credit tUAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date la! Ib) 1b-al (alb) (e) \(b-.1)/c! 

1213112007 , S 27,972.680 , 27.972.680 0.00% , 53.061,647 52.72% 
1213112009 31 .905.033 31 ,906.033 O.Oook 59.132.363 53.96% 
1213 1/2011 31.3 18,000 31 .318.000 0.00% 51 .529.547 50.90% 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 

Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Employer Contributions 


Year Ended 
June 30 

Annual 
Required 

Contribution 
Actual Amount 

Contributed 

Percentage of 
Annual Required 

Contribution 

2008 
2010 
2012 

$ 6,585.964 
2.963,516 
3.332,873 

$ 995,265 
799.635 
989,203 

15.11% 
26.98% 
29.68% 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

The information presen ted in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date December 31, 2011 

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit 

Amortization method Level Percentage of Pay on an Open Basis 

Amortization period 30 years 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return " 4.00% 

Annual medical cost trend rates· 9.5%· 5% 

• Includes inflation at 3.00% 
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Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

6130109 
6/30111 
6/30/13 

CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 

Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Funding Progress 


Actuarial Accrued 
Actuarial Liability (AAl) Unfunded 
Value of - Projects Unil Me Funded Covered 
Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 

(a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (e) 

• $ 15. 772.6 10 
22.033.901 

$ 15.772.610 
22,033.901 

0.00% 
000% 

S 29.'152.949 
32.487,865 

25.051.694 25,051 .694 000% 34.01 3.831 

UAAL as a 

% of Covered 


Payroll 

«b -a)/c) 


53.55% 
6782% 
73.65% 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 

Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Employer Contributions 


Year Ended 
June 30 

Annual 
Required 

Contribution 

Actual 
Am ount 

Contributed 

Percentage of 
Annual Required 

Contribution 

2009 
2011 
2013 

$ 1,464 ,968 
2,125,256 
2, 140,755 

$ 573,818 
952,939 

1,135.031 

39. 17% 
44 .84% 
53.02% 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuation at the dates indicated . Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date June 30. 2013 

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit 

Amortization method Level Dollar Amortization on an Open Basis 

Amortization period 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rale of return· 4.00% 

Annual medical cost trend rales" 8% - 5% 

.. Includes inflation at 2.5% 

G-6 


30 



Supplementary 
Information 
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules 

These statements/schedules provide a more detailed view of the "Basic Financial 
Statements" as presented in the preceding subsection. 

Combining statements are presented where there is more than one fund of a given 
type. Individual fund statements are presented only if one fund exists in a given 
fund type. 



Governmental 
Funds 
• General Fund 
• Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

- Special Revenue Funds 
- Capital Project Funds 

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement is upon determination of financial 
position and changes in financial position (sources. uses and balances of financial 
resources) rather than upon net income determ ination. 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
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General 
Fund 
The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account for the 
receipt and expenditure of resources that are traditionall y associated with local 
governments and that are not required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Resources are provided prim arily through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and 
transfers and are expended for services deemed not susceptible to a user charge 
financing method. 

The General Fund is accounted for on the modi fied accrual basis of accou nti ng. 



CITY Of fAYETTEVillE , NORTH CAROLINA 

(This page left intentionally blank) 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Comparative Balance Sheets 

General Fund 


June 30, 2013 and 2012 


ASSETS 2013 2012 

Cash and investments 
Ta)(es receivable ­
Accounts receivable 
Assessments receivable 
Inventories 
Restricted cash and investments 

$ 44,000,098 
3,239,535 

14.279,246 
925,310 
137,604 

4,922.971 

$ 44,298,654 
3,051,196 

14,057, 164 
986,112 
170,322 

4,009,1 30 

Total assets S 67,504,764 S 66,574 ,578 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

liabilities 
Accounts payabte and accrued expenses 
Restricted unearned deposits 
Unearned revenue 

S 10,356,341 
748,810 
139,225 

S 8.129 ,253 
412,398 

16,348 

Total liabilities 11,244,376 8 ,557,999 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Assessment receivable 
Prepaid ta)(es 

Total deforred inflows of resources 

3.239.535 
547,637 
925,310 
483.548 

5,196,030 

3.051,196 
1,419.989 

988. 112 
661,43-!1 

6.120,7j'1 

Fund balances 
Fund balances: 

Nonspendable 
For inventories 

Restricted 
Stabilization by Slale Statute 
For downtown 
For lake Valley Drive MSD 
For county recreation 
FO( JP Riddle Stadium 
For donations 

Assigned 
For subsequent year's expendilures 
For special purpose 
For capi tal projects 

Unassigned 
Total fund balances 

137,604 

15.196.662 
25.509 

5,420 
4.124,037 

19.194 

3,529,523 
7,713,907 
2,760,753 

17,551.749 
51 .064,358 

170.322 

14,421,378 
53,425 

4.302 
3,418.003 

100,707 
20,295 

3.933,570 
5.498.398 
4.113,861 

20,161,587 
51.895.848 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and 
fund balances $ 67.504,764 $ 66,574 .578 
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CITY OF f AYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund BOtlance, 

Budget and Actual· General Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Wlt.h Comparative Actual Statements lor the Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Variance 
Positive 2013 2012 

Budget !Nesativel Ao:ltla l Actual 
Revenues 

Ad valorem ta:.:es 
Current year S 60.051.398 S 476. 295 S 60.527.693 S 58.726,437 
Plio( year 1.116.250 (54.2513) \ .061.992 1.072.422 
Interest and penalties 303.700 {20.287) 28:l.413 290.240 

Total lid valorem laxe$ 61 .47 1.3<16 . 01 .750 61.873.098 50.089,099 

Olher (<UOt 
Vehfcle license ta~ 632.475 (17.082) 615.393 61 7.271 
Prwilege ~cense 1.108.420 1.358.509 2.466.929 2.557.86-4 
Cablevision fran Chise Iii)[ 67JlOO 4.223 71 .223 419.653 
Gross receipts ta~ on relllal propeny 544.000 49,907 593.907 572.\13-4 

Total other ta:.:es 2.351.895 1.395.557 3.747,452 4.167.422 

Unresttlcted Inter90vernmental 
l ocal opllOn sales la:.: 34.325.625 (486.917) 33.1338.708 33.283.642 
Teleeommunicalions sales \a;( 1,987.426 (249.942) 1,737.484 1.852,403 
Utility (raoWise tax 5.938,845 413.991 6,352.836 4.774,681 
Piped natural gas tax 594,811 (2J.384) 571.447 <188 ,991 
VIdeo franchise fee 2.670.072 (2&9.745) 2.380.327 2.452.910 
eeer and V'/lne lax 988. 110 (148.J 12) 839.798 902.467 
Coonty· Olher 229.270 (3.273) 225.997 226,783 
Local· pul;)lk: sa/ely 311 .562 (84) 311.578 300,776 
Local · othe r 97,740 7.942 105,682 72.975 

TOlal un,e l ulued Intergovernmenlal "7.143.561 !779.7041 "6.36).857 44.355.628 

Rutrlcted Int!rgo"ernm9nt.l1 
Federal · P\ll)liC safety 324.352 81.3"6 405.6913 630,262 
Federal · 04her 120,621 17.141 137.762 2,3064 .133 
Powell Bil allocation 5.346.808 79.783 5.426.591 5.31 1.546 
Siale . olher 24.205 690.111 714.316 40.293 
Slale • public safety 75.000 95.697 170,691 112,0<18 
Solid waste disposal la:.: 151.329 (J4. 162) 117.167 142,217 
Coumy recreat ion 3.543.730 (8.1 47) 3.535,583 3.387,776 
Co unly . olller 96,421 (3.208) 93.213 118.251 
Local· oiller 59,666 

Total restricted Intergovernmental 9,682. 466 918,56 1 10.601,021 12.186.192 

Permlt$ and fees 2,966. 175 m.357! 2.933.818 2.757.155 

S,lIeS and sarvlcl$ 
Property leasos 1,025.878 (12J,910) 901,968 922.579 
Engineering/planning service! 456.400 4.051 460,451 507.583 
Pu~k: safely services 1.1 23.471 (1 2,777) 1.110.694 1.120.008 
Environmental sel\lices 145,800 (4.826) 140.974 15-4.131 
Recreation and cu:M al sel\lices 1.352.150 70.670 1.422.820 1.'I1J.966 
Parking revenues 15a.OOO (11.6&9) U 5.111 19J.647 
Other lees and sel\lices 216,429 (51.576) 164 .653 112.640 

TOLlI salas and services 4.478.128 ,130.257) 4.347,871 4.424,754 
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CITY OF FAYEnEVILLe., NORTH CAROLI NA 

Schedule 01 Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual· General Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

With Compaf:ltlve Actual SI,lIements for the Yoar Ended June 30, 2012 

Variance 
POSitive 2013 2012 

BUdget (Negative! Actual Actual 
Revenues (continued) 

Miscellaneous 
Re foods and suoory S 176.020 S 42,383 S 218,403 S 163 ,014 
Indirect cost al!ocahQ(l 
Special use a~sessmenl 

1,196.1 70 
220.937 

(37.732) 
(35.2551 

1. 1$8,438 
185.682 

1,1 00,058 
103.634 

To tal miscellaneous 1,593.121 ~30.6(k) 1.562,523 1.966,706 

Intorest earned on investments 317.200 (353.196) (35.m) 286.414 

TOla'revenues 

Expendituru 
Current 

Administration 
Legislative 

Salanes and employee benefits 
Other operating expendilures 

City a ttorney 
Salaries a nd employee benefrls 
Olhe r oper3l1n9 expendilUres 

Executive 
S3Larles and e mployee benefits 
Olher operating expenditures 

Human rlisources development 
Salal1l!S and employee Ilenefi ts 
Olher oporali~ expendillJfos 

Management services 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Olner operating expenditures 
Capilal oullay 
InvenlOry 
COS! 18(l;slribuliOl1 

Information technology 
Salaries and emptoyee benefits 
Other opelallrog expenditures 
CaP1tal outlay 

Human relations 
Sala(te-S and employee be nefits 
Other Opefa ting expendilures 
Payments 10 agencles 

130,OC13.900 1.389,750 

375.710 17,536 
294.999 97.953 
670.709 115.439 

500.071 an 
623.302 1.772 

1.1 23.373 2.645 

306.475 17.322 
206.197 36.615 

1.012 .672 53.937 

925.601 170 
231 .279 44.187 

1.1 56.880 44.357 

73 1.358 7.761 
263.243 62.689 

48.856 6.739 
115. 440 805 

j4.743) 
73.251 934.644 

1.609.447 67,123 1.542.324 
1.947.522 225.427 1.722.095 

52.171 9.430 42.741 
3.609.140 30 1.9&0 3.307.160 

230.768 2 .265 228.503 
35.725 17.997 17 .728 

3.349 1 3.346 
259.642 20.263 249.579 

131,393.650 

358.1 74 
197.046 
555.220 

499.196 
626.530 

1.1 25.728 

789.153 
169.582 
958.735 

925.431 
187.092 

1.112.523 

723.595 
200.55-4 

42, 117 
11 4.635 

1146.257) 

130,235,370 

333.736 
410 .827 
744.563 

549.973 
502.264 

1.052.237 

1.027.660 
62.405 

1.090.065 

959.500 
330.620 

1.290.120 

716.306 
164 . 110 

107.007 
jl64.7(6) 
822.717 

1.298.440 
1.166.394 

77.512 
2.542.366 

224,290 
22,095 

"., 


2.369 
248.774 



CITY OF f AYETTEVIl lE, NORTH CAROLINA 

SChodule of Revenue" EKpenditures and Changes In Fund Ba la nces 

Budget 3nd Actual - Gt'l'IOral Fund 


Ynr Ended J une 30, 2013 

With Comparative Actu,1 Statements lo r tho Year Ended Juno 3D, 2012 


Expenditures (cont inued) 
Current (cont inued) 

Ad min istratio n (co ntinued) 
Finance 

Salaries a nd employee benefits 
Olher operaling expe nditures 

S 

8ud90t 

1,357.089 
1.266.99-4 
2.624.083 

S 

Va rlanco 
Positive 

INes,tlve) 

51.312 
95.04 1 

146,353 

S 

2013 
Actual 

1.305.777 
1,171,953 
2,477,730 

S 

2012 
Actual 

1.1 18.927 
1.196,7:,?1 
2,377,648 

Gene ral 90vernme nt 
S t lanes and employee benefits 
Othef' opera ting el<pend,tlJ(es 
Ca pita l oullay 
tffilen tory 
Ppyments to age ncies 
COSt redi!.lribution 

13.408 
10.142,593 

1,613.900 
312,875 

(1.696.000) 
10.446,776 

"686.358 

39 

130.510) 
605.91 9 

13.316 
9.456.235 

1.613.861 
312.875 

11.615,4901 
9.840.857 

59,955 
10.131.005 

27.849 
2.241.581 

307,375 
12.350,032) 
10.41 7.733 

PubliC buildings 
S ala ries and e mployee beneli\.$ 
OIher O!)eraling e)(pend~ures 
Capllal outlay 

780,503 
1,005.722 

72.488 
1.858.7 13 

4,246 
53,321 , 
57,568 

716.257 
952.401 

72,487 
1.801,145 

760,613 
882.984 

38.947 
1.682.504 

Real Estate 
Salaries a nd employee benefi ts 
Other ope raUrIQ expenditures 

209.205 
12.75 1 

221,956 
'" 3.039 

3.190 

209.054 
9. 712 

2111.766 

200.139 
10,280 

210,419 

Tota l Adminis trat ion 241007,039 1,424.952 22,682.087 22,479,246 

Pu bUc Safety 
PoU C!) 

Salaries a nd employee bene fits 
OIher operat,ng e xpenditures 
Capita. oul la y 
Payments 10 a~encies 

Cost redistribution 

Fire 
Salaries ~nd employee benefits 
Olher oper,llng e xpenditures 
Capital outlay 
Cos t re(lislribu t;on 

Inspect ions 
Satarles and employee beneftls 
Other operating expenditures 
Capita l oUllay 

Total public safe ty 

36. 134,357 172.2<13 
6 .187 ,970 404 ,997 
1,280.075 86 ,27 1 

3.000 
(8.094) '"43,517 ,308 1.263.&42 

19.840.370 9if.637 
3.027 .077 3<14 .974 
1.987, 144 	 28.359 

{75.ODO) 
24 ,779.591 471,970 

2.280,558 41,509 
718.071 259.262 
200.1 71 

3.198.800 

71,555.699 21°54.176 

35,362. 114 
5,762 ,973 
1.193,804 

3 .COO 
(8 ,425) 

42.313.4Q6 

19, 741 .733 
2.682.103 
1.958.785 

j15.000) 
24.301,62 1 

2,239,049 
458.809 
182.578 

2.MO.436 

69,501.523 

34.153,542 
5.491,092 
1.599.681 

>.000 
!8,124! 

41.241.191 

19.2W,900 
2 .874 ,623 
1 ,3l!7.168 

1'5.000) 
23.407.6~ 

2,113.633 
387,464 

2.501 .097 

67,149,982 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenl,les, ElCpendltl,lres and Changes In Fl,lnd 8alancu 

Budget and Actual- G.ne ral Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

With Compar,)tive Actu')l Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 


Vilrj')nce 
Positive 2013 2012 

BUdget (Nesativel Actual Actual 

ExpendlturllS (continued) 
Current (continued) 

Environmental protection 
Environmental seN ices 

Sal,)(jes and emplo~ee benefits 
Olher operating expenditures 
Capilal oul13y 
Cost redistribution 

S 3.643.349 
2.624.891 
1.393.207 

{35.043) 
7.626.-404 

$ 14.3.014 
243.344 

2 
1.301 

258.997 

S 3,629.005 
2.381. 547 
1.393.205 

(36.350), 
7.367.-407 

S 3.782,453 
2.507.165 
1.6<10.070 

(45.959) 
7,883.129 

Cemeterlu 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Olher operalin\l e1'penditures 
CapilSI ou tlay 

84.1 43 
17.3!>8 

101, SOI 

<1 .468 
7.277 

11.745 

79.675 
10.081 

89.756 

102.832 
17.338 

138.317 
258.54 7 

Urban forestry 
Salar~s al'1d employee benefits 
Other operating expen<illU(es 

147.518 
15.444 

162,962 

57S 
3.49<1 
4.069 

146,943 134.141 
13.921 

148.062 

Slreet lO woeplng 
salaries and employee benefits 
Ot!'ler opera ting expenditUl"es 
Ca~tal oollay 

408.125 
.0125.066 
195,163 

1.028.354 

5,511 
63,424 

68.935 

402,614 
361,642 
195.163 
959.419 

349.238 
326.058 

675.296 

Total environmental protection 8,919,221 343.746 8,575.475 6.965,634 

Transportation 
Streets 

Salaries and emp!oyee benefils 
Other opera ting expendilures 
Capital outlay 

2.929. 149 
2,256.844 

67.091 
424,968 , 
<l92.(l60 

2.862.058 
1.833,876 

205,960 
4.901.694 

2.595,326 
1.934.962 

312.598 
_.842.886 

En9ln~erlng 

Salaries and employee bene rlls 
Otl'\e( opefaling expendilures 
Capital ootl a~ 

1,406.495 
33<1.143 

5. 100 
1.745.739 

23,367 
152.7!51 

5.1 00 
186.21S 

1,378,129 
181.392 

1,559.521 

1 .228.1 36 
270.117 

S.599 
1.506.854 

Parking 
Othor operating expendilures 415.129 45.988 369. 1<11 365.869 

TOlallrans portation 7.554 .6ZZ 724,266 6,830,556 6,715,609 

Economic and physical development 
Central business dis lrlel 

Olher opera ting expenditures 
Capital 0V1 1a~ 
COSt redistllbvlion 

70.9",,0 

33.147 
10<1 .087 

23.718 

23.719 

47,2 Z2 

33 .146 
SO.368 

69.507 
6.474 

28.320 
1()4.301 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule 01 Revenues. Exponditures anI:! Changes In Fund Balances 

8udgllt and Actual, General Fund 


Yoa r Ended June :l0, 201 3 

With Comparati ve Actual Statements for tho Year Ended June 30, 2012 


V~rlance 

Positive 201 3 2012 
Budget !Ne!latlvel Actual Actual 

Expendi lures (continued) 
Current (coniinued) 

Economic and physical development (continued) 
Community development 

Salaries sf1d emptllyee benems S 212.883 S 438 S 21 2.44!,> S 179.139 
Other opera ling expef1ditures 808. 918 229.403 579.515 309.915 
Cost rt<!islnbuLion \3',5'3) 1,633 m.146l 128.320l 

990.288 231.474 158.814 460.73-4 

Planning and doveLopment 
Sala~ and employee benefits 706.099 4,933 701.1 66 649.696 
Other operaling expendi tures 495.775 292.7 13 203.062 212.620 
Payments to agellC.les 13.03-4 9,348 3.666 1.466 

1,21 4.908 306,994 907,914 863.764 

Lake Valley Drive ""SO 
other operalil19 expendiLure$ 9.402 9,402 

Total economic and physlul oevelopment 2.318.665 571 .569 1.747.096 1.4281619 

Recreation anI:! community facJlitJU 
Parks and recreation 

Salanes and employee benefjlS 7.497.847 87,198 7.410,049 7.1 81.746 
Olher operah"9 expenditureS 5.091.331 912.183 4.179.148 4.361.978 
Capital oullay 110.677 285.335 425.542 912.2<17 

13.300,055 1.285.316 12.014,739 12.455.971 

Total rocreatlon and community fac ilities 13,3(10.055 '1285,316 12.014.739 12.455,971 

Debt service 
Principal 
IntefCSI 

Total debt scrvlce 

6.046,766 
1.121,504 
7.168.370 

83.179 
29,213 

112,392 

5.963.581 5.756.981 
1.127.387 
'5,88<1,368 

Tota l e;.:pondilures 134.823.891 6,516.437 128.307,454 126,079.629 

Revllntl&s over (under) expefldllures {".819.99q 7.906.181 3.036.' 96 4.155.741 

Other finaonclng sources (IISes) 
Sale of capital assets 
Appropriated fun(! balance 
Transfers In 
T,aflsfers (oul) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Revenues and Qther financing sources 
(uses) over (IInde,) expenditures S 

230.000 
9.$49,298 

11 .353.041 
i1 6.6 12.348l 

4.819.991 

S 

65.425 
(9.849.298) 

(1) 
1,046.197 

(8.737,677l 

(631.400) 

295.425 

11,353.040 
(1 5,566. 1511 

(3 ,917.686) 

(831,490) 

356.285 

10.247.898 
(11,571,467) 

(967,284) 

3.188.457 

Fund balance 

Beginning of yea r - July 1 

End of year· June 30 S 

51.895,848 

51 .064.358 S 

48.107.391 

51 ,895.848 

H·' 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROUNA 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Govemmental Funds 


June 30, 201 3 


Assets 
Cash and invesLmenlS 
J\c«)unts receivable 
Inlerfund receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Restricted cash and investments 
Restncted accounts receivable 

Total assets 

liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund 
batances 
Liabitities.; 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned revenue 
ResUicted accounts payable and accrued expenses 

TOlalliabllities 

Deferred innows of resources' 
Accounts receivable 

TOlal deferred inflows of resources 

Fund balances: 
Restricted 


Stabilization by State Statute 

Downtown 

Public safety 

Economic and phySical devetopment 

Recreation and community faci lities 


Committed 

Administration 

Public safety 

Transportation 

EconomiC and physical development 

Recrealion and community facililies 


Unassigned 

Totat fund balances 


Totat liabilities, defeITed inftows 01 resources 
and fund batances 

Special 

Revenue 


Funds 


$ 579,840 
9.380,8 15 

1,229,518 
75,254 

$ 11.265.427 

S 348,126 
59,555 

8.730.41 5 
8.730.415 

1.230,042 

1,399,491 

80,444 
(595, 0341 

2.114.943 

S 11 ,265,427 

Capi tal 
Project 
Funds 

S 10,157,228 
487.225 

3.247, 855 
680 

$ 13,892.988 

S 	 1,116,516 
1,637.400 

71 .341 
2.825.257 

3.595,861 
150.647 

657,197 
731.950 

1.885.529 
216.373 

1,804.389 
296,016 

1,729,769 

11,067.731 

S 13.892,988 

Total Nonmajor 

Govemmental 


Funds 


S 10,737,068 
9.868,040 

, 
4.477,373 

75.934 
25. 158.415 

$ 1.464,642 
1,697,055 

8. 730.415 
8,730.415 

4.625.903 
150,647 

1, 399,491 
657,197 
731.950 

1.885,529 
216,373 

1.804.389 
296.01 6 

1.810,2 13 
(595,0342 

13, 182.674 

$ 25, 158,41 5 

'-1 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Governmental FundS 


Year Ended June 30, 201 3 


Revenues 
Other taxes and fees 
Restricted intergovemmental 
Miscellaneous 
Interest earned on investments 

Tolal revenues 

$ 

Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

775,752 
4,073,370 
1,935,892 

(1, 8171 
6,783,197 

$ 

Capital 
Project 
Funds 

1,439,410 
44,654 
(4,46°1 

1,479,604 

Total Nonmajor 
Govemmental 

Funds 

S 775,752 
5,512,780 
1,980,546 

(6,277~ 
8,262,801 

Expenditures 
Current 

Administration 
Public safety 
Transportation 
Economic and physical development 
Planning and development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Oebt service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

2,023,253 

3,398,544 
21,347 

249,536 

675,000 

195,692 

2,187,518 
245,448 

5,322,941 
613,426 

1,107,426 

9,476,759 

(7,997,155) 

2.187, 518 
2,268,701 
5,322,941 
4,011,970 

21,347 
1,356,962 

675,000 
219 ,825 

16,064 ,264 

(7.801.463) 

other finanCing sources (uses) 

Sale of capital assel s 
Transfers in 
Transfers oul 

Total olher financing sources (uses) 

329.227 

329,227 

731,950 
7,271 .925 

8,003,875 

731,950 
7,601,152 

8,333,102 

Net change in fund balances 524,91 9 6,720 531,639 

Fund balance - beginning 1,590,024 11,061,011 12,651 ,035 

Fund balance - ending $ 2,114.943 S 11,067 ,731 $ 13,182,674 

1-2 



Special Revenue 
Funds 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sou rces or to finance specific activ it ies as required by law or adm inistrative 
regu lation. 

The following comprise the City's Special Revenue Funds: 
• Emergency Telephone System Fund 
• Federal and State Fi nancial Assistance Fund 
• City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation 
• Linear Park Fund 

All SpeCial Revenue Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Com bi ning Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Sp(!cial Revenue Funds 


June 30. 2013 


AsseU 
Cas.h and InW!sttl'lefUS 
Accoun~ receivable 
Restricted cash and InvestmentS 
Restricted accounts reeelval)!e 

Tolal assets 

Liabi li ties, deferred inflows of resources and fund 
bala nces 
LiaOllllles: 

ACCOUnts payable and accru!d expenses 
Unearned revenue 
Restricted accounts payable and acerued e~~e nses 

Total liaOil ities 

Deferred innows of resources: 
Accounls receivaDle 

TOlal deferred inffows of resources 

Fund I);;lances: 
Restricted 


Stabilization by Siale Slall,lle 

P!JOIic safety 


Commilled 
Recreation and community (atili/ies 


AS$lgoed 

UnaSSigned 


rotallund balances 

Tota l l iabilities, (le felTed Inflows 01 t(!SOlirces 
and fund balances 

, 

S 

Emergency 
Telephone 

SySl6m 
Fund 

:na.033 
129.454 

407,A97 

Fedelal 
and Slate 
Financial 

Assistance 
Fund 

S 76.877 
9.247.464 
1.1 84.62<1 

75.25<1 
S 10.58-<1 .219 

City 01 
Fayettevil le 

Finance 
Corp 
Fund 

, 

5 

S 

S 

Linear 
Park 
Fund 

224.9W 
3.SS7 

44.694 

273.71 1 

Total Nonmajor 
Special Revenue 

Funds 

, 57'9.840 
9.380.815 
1.229,5 18 

75.254 
S 11.265.427 

5 28.035 

28,035 

S 280,1 43 
39,549 

319,692 

S , 39,948 
20, 106 
12,288 
72.342 

S 348, 126 
59,655 

8,730,415 
8 ,730,415 

8,730 ,4 15 
8,730,4 15 

, 

129,464 
249,998 

379.462 

407.497 5 

979,653 
1, 149,493 

(595,034) 
1.534,1 12 

10.584,219 S , 

120,925 

80,444 

201 ,369 

173,711 S 

1.230.042 
1,399,491 

80.<144 

1595,034) 
2.114,943 

".2$5.427 

J. j 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Emergency 
Telephone 

System 
Fund 

Federal 
and State 
Financial 

Assistance 
Fund 

City of 
Fayetteville 

Finance 
Corp 
Fund 

Linear Park 
Fund 

Total Nonmajor 
Special 

Revenue 
Funds 

Revenues 
Other taxes and fees 
Restricted intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 
Interest earned on investments 

Total revenues 

, 775,752 

(613) 
775,139 

$ 
4,071,652 

974,268 
(1,025) 

5,044,895 

$ 

816,505 
5 

816,510 

$ 
1,718 

145,119 
(184) 

146,653 

$ 775,752 
4.073,370 
1,935,892 

(1,817) 
6,783,197 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Public safety 
Economic and physical development 
Planning and development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest 

T otat expenditures 

921,990 

921,990 

1,101,263 
3,395,284 

21,347 
85,980 

75,000 
6,575 

4,685,449 

3,260 

600,000 
213,250 
816,510 

163,556 

163,556 

2,023,253 
3,398,544 

21,347 
249,536 

675,000 
219,825 

6,587.505 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (146,851) 359,446 (16,903) 195.692 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
329,227 
329,227 

329.227 
329.227 

Net change in fund balances (146,851) 688,673 (16,903) 524.919 

Fund balance - beginning 526.313 845,439 218,272 1,590,024 

Fund balance - ending , 379,462 , 1,534,112 $ S 201,369 $ 2.114.943 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Sch edule of Revenues, E:l!:penditu res and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
Emerge ncy Telephone System Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 
(lNilh Comparative Actua l Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2012) 

Revenues 
Other fees 

Interest earned on Investments 

Budget 

$ 775.752 

1,000 

Va riance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

• 
P ,613) 

2013 
Actual 

$ 775,752 

(613) 

$ 

2012 
Actual 

637.22 1 

2.275 

Tota l revenues 776,752 (1 ,613) 775,1 39 639.496 

Expenditures 
Current 

Public safety 
Other operaling expenditures 
Capilaloutlay 
Cost redistribution 
S L 2010-158 Expenditures 

Total public safety 

671.605 
2n,065 

8.422 

957,092 

35,102 

35,102 

636,503 
277,065 

8,422 

921 ,990 

576,544 

6,124 
37,741 

620.409 

Tota l expenditu res 957,092 35,102 921.990 520.409 

Revenues ove r (under) expenditures (180,340) 33.489 (146,851) 19,087 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Appropriated fund balance 180,340 (180,340) 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sou rces (uses) 180,340 (180,340) 

Revenues and other financi ng sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditu res $ (146.851) (146,851 ) 19,087• 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year - July 1 526.313 507,226 

End of year - June 30 $ 379.462 $ 526.313 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues, E:.:penditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual- Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Project 
Authori:!:atlon 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year Total 

Rovonues 
Restricted Intorgovernmental 

Federal gra nts 
Slate grants 
County 

Total restricted Intergovernmental 

• 18.772,770 
1.955,090 

61,456 
20.789,316 

S 18,690,964 
1,663,010 

20,323 
20,374 ,297 

, 5,915.208 
40.383 

5,953,591 

, 3,739.478 
304.972 

27.202 
4,071.652 

S 16.5 17,234 
1.927,Sgg 

Miscellaneous 3,965 ,274 4.216,908 1,144.354 974.268 4,046,622 

Interest earned on Investments 86,295 93.862 267 (1,025) 92.570 

Total revenues 24.840.&!5 24.685.067 7,098,212 5.044.1:195 22 ,631 .750 

Expenditu res 
Current 

Public Safety 
Economic and physical development 
Planning and developmenl 
Rec'eahon and community faci~lies 

Tolal currenl 

8.263.763 
16,658.073 

200.000 

5.827.658 
18.291.681 

178,653 
362.493 

24.660.495 

91,073 
7,140,693 

36,131 
7.267,897 

1.10 1,263 
3.395,284 

21,347 
85,980 

4.603.874 

6,637.858 
14,5<16.272 

200.000 
4 12,342 

21,996.472 

Debt service 
To tal expenditures 

233.294 
24,893.789 

73,462 
7.3<1 1,359 

81 ,575 
4.685,449 

Revenues over (under) 
e)(j)e-ndllures p . l07.574~ !208.722} ~243, 1 47) 359,446 393.871 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale Of capital assels 
T'am, fers in 
TransferS Oul 

Total Olner financing sources (uses) 

96.283 
1,190.228 
{178.937) 

1.107.574 

96,282 
1.136.449 
p78.570) 

1.054.16 1 

243,14 7 

243.147 

329,227 

329.227 

96.282 
1.222,529 
~ 178 , 570l 

1.140,241 

Revenues and other financIng 
sources (uses) over (under) 
expenditures 

Fund bala nce 
Beginning of year. July 1 

End of year . June 30 

S S 845.439 S 

$ 

686.673 

845.439 

1.534,112 

$ 1. 534,1 12 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Sch(ldule of EKpendllures by Project 

8udg91 and Actual - Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30,2013 


Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Prolects Year Total 

Expenditures by project: 

Public safety 
federal and Stale Forfeiture $ 2,848,772 $ 1,879,557 S S 72.079 S 1,951 ,636 
P$N Mti-Gang: OperatiOn Ceasefire 60,101 58,810 58,810 
PSN Task Force 2,446 2,446 
Domestic Violence Trairling 2011 60.137 4,614 16,155 20,769 
PSN Law Enforcement Consortium 15,492 13,680 13,680 
PSN Media Blitz 23,000 19,869 19,889 
Gangs aCTOSS lhe Carolinas 115.368 56,293 46,022 102,315 
JU'l'en~e ResJitutioo 371,343 138,204 69,881 228,085 
5000ety Court Grant 46.580 78,243 40,383 2S2 38,112 
Cumberland County STARS Drug Treatment Cour! 265,285 60,848 106,182 167,030 
Justice Assistance Grant 650.194 658,229 48,244 17,472 627,457 
COPS Technology Grant 150.000 142,800 142.800 
FY09 Hazmal Equ!pIllent 135.714 135,11 4 135.7 14 
FYl0 Hazmat Equipmeol 51.429 51.429 51 .429 
FY Il Hazma! Equipmenl and Training 25.000 11,500 11.500 
FY 10 FEMA Defibrillators Granl 100,000 100,000 100,000 
COPS Hiring Recovery Program (ARRA) 2,528,240 U93,619 615,350 2,408,969 
Justice Assis tance Grant (ARRA) 708,976 684 ,122 24,095 106.811 
Gang Pannership 2012 48,196 18,575 18,575 
Prescription Drug Inilialive 2012 59,936 26,271 26,271 

Total public safety 8,263, 763 5,827,608 91,073 1,101,263 6.831,858 

Economic and physical development 
Community Development Block Grant 8,929,814 9,913,480 4,306,579 2,404,488 8,009,389 
NC Rural EconomiC Developmem 47,335 47,320 47,320 
Community Garden 25,247 25,241 
HOME 6,458,441 7,323,046 2,806,667 150,909 5,267,086 
CD8G-R (ARRA) 385,584 385,5&4 385,584 
Homeless Prevention (ARRA) 589,648 589,647 589,647 
W(lshingtOil St School Site Projecl 247,245 7,357 239,887 247,244 

Total economic and 
physical development 16,658,013 18,291.681 7,140,693 3,39~,284 14,546,272 

Reetealion and community facilities 
WayMding signage 
Cullural arls program 
Nalional Recreation & Parks Association 
Badges for Baseball 20 11 
8adges fO( Baseball 2012 
6adges for ~seba1l201 2 
Badges fO( Baseball 2013 

Total recreation and community factlithlS 

500.586 
22.520 
10.000 

23.309 
4,624 

280.536 
35,320 

23.331 
23,306 

362.493 

12,800 

23,331 

36,131 

57,856 

4, 117 
23,941 
85,980 

3J8,392 
22,52() 

23,306 
4,171 

23.947 
412,342 

Planning (lnd development 
8r"'99 Blvd Corridor PI... n 

Total planning and development 
200,000 
200,000 

178,653 
178,653 

21,347 
21,347 

200,000 
200,000 

Total expenditures by project S 25,706,825 $ 24,560,495 $ 7,267,897 $ 4,603,874 S 21,996.472 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILL E, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues, ExpendUures and Changes in Fund Ba lance - Budgel and Actual 

City of Fayetteville Finance Corpora tion Fund 


Year Ended J une 30, 2013 

(With Comparative Actua l Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2012) 


Budget 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 
2013 

Actual 
2012 

Actua l 

Revenues 
Miscellaneous 

Property leases 
Total miscellaneous 

$ 81 6,750 
81 6,750 

$ (245) 
(245) 

$ 1,413.492 
1,413,492 

Interest earned on investments 5 5 18 

Total reven ues 816.750 (240) 816,510 1,413.510 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic and physical development 
Other operating expenditures 3.500 240 3,260 3,260 

Debt service 
Princip<l l 
Interest 

Tota l debt service 

600,000 
213,250 
813.250 

600.000 
213,250 
813.250 

1,140.000 
270,250 

1.410.250 

Total expenditures 816.750 240 816,510 1,413,5 10 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 

Total finanCing sources (uses) 

Revenues and other financing sources 

(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 


Fund balance 
Beginning of year - July 1 

End of year - June 30 $ $ 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of R.evenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - Linear Park Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted Intergovernmental 

County grants and contributions S 1,718 •Total restric ted intergovernmental 1,718 

Miscellaneous 
Other (donations) 1,669,248 145,119 1,814,367 

Total miscellaneous 1,669,248 145,119 1,814,367 

Interest earned on investments 45,415 45,649 (184) 45.465 

Total revenues 2,008,888 1,843,179 146,653 1,989,832 

Expenditures 
Current 

Recreational and community facilities 
Linear Park 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures j 5O,179) 168,093 !lS,903) 151,1 90 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 50,179 50,1 79 50.179 

Total other financing sources (uses) 50.179 50,179 50, 179 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S $ 21 8.272 (1 6.903) S 201 .369 • 

Fund balance 

Beginning 01 year - July 1 218.272 

End 01 year · June 30 S 201 .369 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
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Capital Project 
Funds 
Capital Project Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition and 
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by the 
Proprietary Fu nds. 

The following comprise the City's Nonmajor Capital Project Funds: 
• General Government Fund 
• Public Safety Fund 
• Transportation Fund 
• Bond Improvement Fund 
• Economic and Physical Development Fund 
• Recreational and Cultural Fund 

All Capital Project Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. 
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CITY OF FAYErTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining BaJance Sheet 

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 


June 30, 2013 


Economic and
General Public Bond Recreall onal To tal NonmajorTransportation Physical

Government Safety Improvemenl and Cultural Capital Project 
Fund DevelopmentFund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Fund 

Assets 
Cash and investmenls S 2,195,282 , 246,380 S 5,205,5 13 , S 683,525 S 1,826,528 , 10,157,228 
Accounts receivable 20,985 202,508 259,996 3,735 487,225 
Reslricted cash and Inveslmenls 150,647 657,197 2,440,011 3,247,855 
ReSlricted accounls receivable 680 680 

Total assets S 2,216,267 S 246,380 S 5,558,668 S 1,600.7 18 , 4.270,955 13,892,988 
~ 

Liabilities and fund bahlnces 
Liabilities : 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses S 74,597 30,007 S 1,003,180 , 8,61 6 $ $ 1,116,516• • ",
Unearned revenue 1,637,400 1.637,400 
Reslficled accounls paya~e and accrued ellpenses 7 1,341 7 i.341 

Total liabilities 74.597 30.007 1,003,180 8,516 1,708,857 2,825,257 

Fund bala nces: 
Restricted 

Stabilization by Slate Statute 256,141 2.600,452 638,889 100,379 3,595,861 
Downtown 150,647 150,647 
Economic and phy&i t:.al development 657. 197 657,197 
ReCl'ealion and community facililies 73 1,950 73 1,950 

Committed 
Administration 1,885,529 1,885, 529 
Publtc sarety 216,373 21 6,373 
Transportalioo 1.804,389 1.804, 389 ' 
EconomiC and physical development 296.016 296.016 
Re(:fealion and community facilities 1,729,769 1,729.769 

Total fund balances 2,141 ,670 216,373 4,555,488 1.592, 102 2,562,098 11,067 ,731 

Total liabilit ies and fund balances $ 2.2 16,267 S 246,380 , 5.558.668 I S 1.600,718 4.270,955 , 13,892,968• 

K-' 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Stalvmenl of Revanuos, Expendlturos <lnd Changes In Fund 6alllncos 

Nonmajor Caplt," ProJect Fund, 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Revenues 
Reslricle<l inlergovernmef'll aJ 
Miscellaneous 
Inlerest eamed in ....vestments 

Tolal revenues 

General 
Govomment 

Fund 

, 638,491 

638.491 

S 

Public 
$lIfety 
Fund 

169,617 

46 
169.863 

Transportation 
Fund 

S 100,000 
25.611 

(250) 
125.36 1 

Bond 
Improvement 

Fund 

S 

Econom ic and 
Physic!!1 

Del/elopmenl 
Fund 

$ "3 

820 
923 

Recreational 
and Cultural 

Fund 

$ 530,990 
19.043 
!5.076) 

544,966 

TOIIiI Nonmlljor 
Capital Project 

funds 

, 1,439,410 
44,654 
j4.460) 

1.479.604 

Expenditures 
Adminisiralion 
Public safely 
Transporta lioo 
EconorlllC alld physical developmen t 
ReCtea(tonal and community fa cUlties 

TOlal e~pendllures 

Excess (deficiency) ef revenues 
ever (under) expenditures 

2.187,518 

2.187,518 

(1.549.027) 

245.448 

245.448 

\15.535! 

5.322,941 

5.322.941 

(5.197.580\ 

613,426 

613,426 

(612.50lt _ 

1.107, 426 
1.107.426 

(562.460) 

2.187,5 18 
245,448 

5,322.941 
613. 426 

1.107.426 
9.4 76.759 

(7,997.155) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers In 2.692,210 4.070,996 4 113.767 90.960 1,271,925 '92 
Sale of assels 73 1.950 731.950 

Totalolhel fir\3ncing sources (uses) 2.692.210 4.070.996 416.767 822.91 0 8.COl.875 "2 
Net chango tn lund balan(:OS 1.1 43. 183 (74.593) (1,121).584) (195.736) 260,450 6.nO 

Fund balance · beginning 998,487 290.966 5,682.072 1,787 ,838 2.301,648 11,061.011 

, , , ,Fund balance· end ing 2.14\.670 2 t6.373 <1.555,488 $ 1.592.102 $ 2.562.098 S 1\.067.731 

K.' 



CITY OF FAYEnEYILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule Of Revenues, Elpendlt\lres and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget ~nd Actual - Gcneml Govornment Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Project 
Authorl~ation 

Prior 
Ye~f'!I 

Closed 
Proleets 

Cunen! 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted Intergovernmental 

Federal grants 

Expenditures 
CUrllln! 

Administration 
Ctean Cities p'oJec t 
Compuler replacements 
Telephone system u~racle 

Planning software 
Enterpnse·v«!e GIS 
Disaster recovery system 
Laserfiche Rio System 
UnoLerrup tit>te power suppLy 
Virtual server expans~lJl 
Wire!eS$ ne~ expansion 
Grove StrE-e1 parlI iog 10 1 paving 
Integra1ed cashiering system 
Grove Street roof replacement 
Electronic plan revi ew system 
Bvlkf,ng projects 
Perking 101 jJfOje<:ls 
Council chambers IIpgrade 
Energy Efficiency Cooservation Block Grant (ARRA) 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditUles 

S 1,716,400 

385,49 1 
1,434,262 

123.440 
64,200 
62,067 

375,318 
13t.245 
SMSO 
60,034 
97.800 

<\ 12,000 
106. 180 

SO.500 
68,500 

2,146.935 
284.890 
158.453 

i 5.9sa.965) 

S 938,785 

278,247 
806,093 
123,243 
51,700 

94,039 
50.713 

460.161 
138.9 11 
158.452 
873.785 

3,035.409 

!2.OSB.624) 

S S 638.49 1 

350,74 1 

25.221 
372,28 1 
115,695 

29,366 
21.132 
91,042 

1,520 

20.525 
449.025 

66.479 

638,491 
2.187.5 18 

(1.~9.027) 

S 1.577.276 

278,247 
1,156,839 

123,243 
51,700 
25.221 

312,281 
115,695 

29.366 
21,132 
97.0.012 

95,559 
50,173 
20.525 

9(19, 186 
205.390 
158,452 

1.512.276 
5.222.927 

(3.645.65 1) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 5,966,465 3,102.6 11 2,692,210 5,194.821 
Transfer oul (7,S OOl (7.500) (7.500J 

Tot31 o ther financing sources (US(I$) 5.958.965 3.095.111 2.692.210 5.787.321 

Revenues and other financing 50UrCe-s 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S S 9913.487 S 1.143,183 S 2,14 1.670 

¥lind !lalance 

6e91nning of year· July I 998,487 

End 01 year· June 30 2.1.1.670• 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues , Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budg"'t and Actual - Public Safety Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30,2013 


Projoct 
Authoriz-alion 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Year Total 

Rovenues 
Reslrictad IntHgovarnmenta l 

Federal 9rants and contributions S 170.053 S S S 169.817 169,817 

Mlseellaneous '00 ' 00 40O 

Interest earned on investment'S 700 76,370 " 76.41 6 

Total revenues 171.153 76.770 169,863 246,633 

Ex penditures 
Current 

Public Safety 
Fire station #15 
Police departmenl selVer upgrade 
Fire Slalion #12 
Fire slal ion po 19 
Police depanmenl CAD and RMS 
Police deparimeOl 800mlU: radios 
Po~ce depanmem firing range implovementS 
Justice Ass islance Gram 

Total ~xpendilurlls 

2,564,410 
208,000 
125,000 

2,679,085 
3.209.9\1 
3.600,000 

SO,OOO 
120,053 

12.556.465 

2. 532.054 
185,910 

2.603,400 
3, 134,326 
3.169.870 

11 ,625.560 

75,629 

50.000 
11 9.819 
245,448 

2,532.054 
18S.910 

2.679.029 
3.1 34,32S 
3,169.870 

50.000 
119.8 19 

11,871 ,008 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (12,385,312~ 11 1,548,7901 (75,585) !' 1.624.3751 

Other IInancing sources (uses) 
Issuance of debl 11,016.329 10.571,023 10,571.023 
Transfers in 3,749,423 3,649,173 992 3,650. \65 
Transfers oul (2.360.440): (2.360.440) (2.380.440) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 12.385,312 11 .839.756 .92 11 .840.7<1 6 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (uncler) el(pendituros S 290.966 , (74 ,593) , 216.373 • 


Fu nd balance 

Beginning of year· July I 290,966 

End of year · June 30 S 216.373 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Sched ule of Revenues, Expend it urH and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual · Tra nsportation Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30.2013 


Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

Federal granlS 
State grants 

Total restricted intergovem mental 

Project 
Authorization 

S 1.330.000 

1.330.000 

$ 

Prior 
Years 

474.573 
474.573 

S 

Ctosed 
Pr0i!Cts 

474 .573 
474.573 

$ 

Current 
Year 

100,000 

100.000 

$ 

Total 

100.000 

100.000 

Miscellal'lOous 
Owner contribulions 
Other 

To lal miscellaneous 

t n217 
30, 408 

152.625 

172.217 
35.<108 

207.625 

50.000 
5.000 

55.000 

23,61 1 
2. 000 

25.611 

145,828 
32,408 

178.236 

Interest earned on investments 10.216 4.413 (250) 5.553 

To tal revenues 1.482.525 692.414 533.986 125.361 283.739 

Expendi tures 
Current 

Transportation 
Sidewalks 
Downtown railroad enhal'lCemenls 
Transportation Improvements 

Total expenditures 

1.021.437 
1.892.000 

12.067.067 
14 .980.504 

981,083 
105,242 

8,101.060 
9.187,385 

884,855 

4 .358,110 
5.242,965 

493, 84 1 
273.690 

4.555,4 10 
5.322,941 

590, 069 
378.932 

8.298.380 
9.267.361 

Revenues (over) under expendi tures (13,497,879) 18.494.971 ) (4.708.979~ !5.197 .580~ (8.983. 5721 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total o ther financing sources (uses) 

Revenues and other financ ing sources 
(uses) over (under) e,;pendi!ures S 

13.586.279 
!6BAOO) 

13.497.879 

S 

14.245,443 
(68.400) 

14.177 .043 

5,682.072 S 

4,708,979 

4,708.979 

4,070.996 

4,070.996 

(1 .126,584) $ 

13.607.460 
!68.400} 

13.539,060 

4,555.488 

Fund balance 
Begpnning 01 year - July 1 

End of year . June 30 $ 

5,682.072 

4.555,488 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Sc hedulQ of Revenuos, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budgel and Actual- Bond Improvement Fund 


From Inception And For Ye3r Ended June 30, 20n 


Project 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projects 

Current 
Yllar Total 

Revenues 
Interest earned on IrwestmllnlS S S 452.782 S 452.782 S $ 

Total revenues 452.782 452.182 

ExpllndllUres 
CUrTen! 

Economic and physical development 
Bend adminiSlralion 54 ,475 

54.475 
54.475 
54.475 

Tr.JnSportation 
SUeels 
Sidewalks 

2.971.401 
796.971 

3.768.372 

2.971 ,401 
796,97 1 

3,768.372 

Environmental Protection 
Orainage 584.672 

584 .672 
5&1.672 
584.672 

Public Safety 
FSU Fire Sialion 3.494,183 

3.494.183 
3.494.183 
3.494.183 

Recreational and community fac ilities 
Cape Fear River Park 897,452 

897 .452 
897.452 
897.452 

Debt service 
Total expenditures 

457.858 
9.257.0 12 

457.658 
9.251.0 12 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (8.804.230) (8.804.230) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Issuance of debl 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

354,230 
8.450.000 
8.804.230 

354,230 
8.450.000 
8.80<1 .230 

Revenues and other fil"lancing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S S S S 

Fund balancli 

Beginning of year · July 1 

End of year· June 30 , 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROUNA 


Schedule of Revenues, Ex.penditures and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget and AClual - Economic and PhySical Development Fund 


From Incept10n And For Year Ended J une 30, 201 3 


ProJect 
Autho ri ution 

Prior 
Years 

Closed 
Projll cts 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Rest ric ted Inte rg overnmental 

Federal gran l$ 
Coonty 

Total resuicted IntetgovlIrnmenlal 

S 1,251,1 50 
250.2<13 

1.50 1.393 

S 1.251.047 
250,242 

1.501.289 

S S "J 
"J 

S 1.251 .150 
250.242 

1,5OU92 

Interest e3rnlld on Investments 12.000 10,949 820 11.769 

Total revonues 1.513.393 1.512.238 '23 1.513.161 

Ex.pGndltures 
CUrreflt 

Ec onomic a nd physical development 
300 BlOCk of Hay S ireel 
Texfi Ptojecl 
HOPE VI 
Downtown par'kil1g deck 
Milil a ry Business Park 
Murchison Road redevelopment 
Feslival Park Plaza reoovalions 
Festival Park Plaxa 

Totll economic and physical development 

726.619 
6.526,000 
5.7 19.998 
1.25 1.1 50 

200.000 
100.000 

1<1.525.767 

1 . 6~7.474 

~9.940 

4.938,147 
5,570.874 
1.2S1.Q.47 

6.243.324 
20,420.806 

U!57.<l 74 

6.243.324 
IUOO.798 

94.278 
456.639 

(916) 
10J 

50.216 
12.906 

613.<126 

654.21 6 
5.394.966 
5.569.958 
1.251. 150 

SO.216 
12.900 

12.933,434 

Debt service 
TOlal ex.pendltures 

2<1 2.002 
14.767.769 8.1 00.798 61 3.426 

242.002 
13.175.436 

Revellues over (underl expendilures /1 3.254.376) {19.150.570! (8. 100.798)" {612.503} (1' .6&2.275) 

Olher financ ing sources (uses) 
Transfers In 7.304.376 8.5 11 .976 1.624,366 416.767 7.304.377 
Sale 01 capllal auels 2<1~. <l35 245.435 
Issuance of de l:lt 12.180.997 6.230.997 

Total other flna ncin9 sourc;os (usesl 20.938.408 8.100,798 41 6.767 

RevenuC!s and olher fl nAncln9 50urcn 
(uses) over (under) ex.pend!lures S 1.787.8~ , (195.736) S 1.592.1 02 • 

Fund balance 

Be9innillg 01 year - July 1 1.787.838 

Eod 01 year. Jur.e 30 S 1.592.102 



CITY OF FAyeTIeVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule 01 Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-

Budget and Actual - Recreational and Cultural Fund 


From Inception And For Year Ended June 30 , 2013 


Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovornmental 

Federal grants and contributions , 250.000 $ 25.000 , 25.000 , , 
Slate granls and contributions 18.000.000 15.379.240 233.360 15,612.600 
Local 529.202 231 .563 297.639 

Total reslIlcted Intorgovemmental 18.779.202 15.635.803 25.000 530.999 

Miscellaneous 
Olhe, 150 139.156 18 .853 158.009 
Donations 225.505 229.570 190 229.760 

Total miscellaneous 225.6-55 358.726 19.043 387. 769 

Interest eamed on Investments 503.670 526,954 78 !5.076) 521.800 

Tota! revenues 19.508.527 16 .531,483 25.078 544.966 17.051 .371 

Expenditures 
Current 

Recreational and community facilities 
Disabled accessibility minibus 
Freedom Park 
NC State Veterans Park 
Western Alea Neighborhood Park 
NC State Veterans Park #2 
PlaygrOUnd equipment and improvements 
Reid Ross track facility 
Joint use facHi ties with Cumbel land County 
Cape Fear RIver Trail Phase 2 

Total expenditures 

4S2.175 
2.397,000 

856. 756 
14.050.000 

630.535 
176,404 
431.000 

2.614.3-45 

21 .638.215 

54.069 
478.685 

2,309,261 
143.361 

12.271,211 
470.241 
174.346 
282.564 
123.818 

16.307,556 

54,069 

54.069 

224 
4.844 

637,568 
234.768 
113.543 

9S,133 
21 .346 

1.107,426 

478.909 
2.314.105 

780.929 
12.505, 979 

583. 784 
174.3<\6 
377.697 
145.164 

17.360.913 

Revenues over (under) expenditures t2 . 129.~81 223.927 {28.991} (562.460) 1309.5421 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Tlanslers in 2.215.843 2.161.520 28,991 90.960 2.223.489 
Transfers out (86.155) (86.155) (66.1 55) 
Sale of capital assets 731.950 731.950 
Issuance of debt 2,356 2.356 

TotaL other financi ng sources (uses) 2 . 129.~8 2.077.721 28.991 822.910 2.871.640 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S , 2.301.648 S 260.450 S 2.562.098 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year· July 1 2.301.648 

End of year - June 30 $ 2.562.098 
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Proprietary 
Funds 
• Enterprise Funds 
• Internal Service Funds 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, 
financial position and cash flows. The accounting principles used here are generally 
accepted in the United States of America and are applicable to similar businesses in 
the private sector. 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
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Enterprise 
Funds 
Enterprise Funds account for operations that are either financed or operated in a 
si milar manner to private busin esses or for operations that the City has decided that 
periodic determination of net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, 
management control, accountability, public policy or other purposes. 

The following comprise the City's Enterprise Funds: 
• Electric Fund 
•Water and Wastewater Fund 
• Storm Water Management Fund 
• Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 


- Transit Fund 

- Airport Fund 

- Solid Waste Recycling Fun d 


All Enterprise Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Schedule o f Reven ues , Expenses and Changes in Net Position 


Electric Fund 


Year ended June 30, 2013 


Operating revenues 
Charges for services 

Total operating revenues 
S 

Electric 
Fund 

21l.789.791 
21 1,789.791 

S 

Electric Rato 
Stabilization 

Fund 

S 

Total 

211.769,791 
2 11 .789,791 

Operating expenses 
Power supply and generation 
Electric operation 
General and admlnisllaliYe 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

148.520,775 
14.276,7 14 
15,4<16.200 
17,806,298 

196.049,987 

148.520,775 
14,276.7 14 
15,446.200 
17.806.298 

196,049.987 

OperatIng income 15.739 ,804 15,739,804 

Nonoperating revonue (ellpense) 
Interest earned on Investments 
Gain (loss) on diSposOlI of assets 
Interest expense 
Amortization 
Finance costs 

Totat nonoperating revenue lellpense) 

472, 127 
2.809,566 

(1 .23 1.332) 
(267,205) 

(5. 182) 
1.777,974 

192,944 

192.944 

665.071 
2,809.566 

(1.231,332) 
(267, 205) 

(5.182) 
1.970.9 18 

Income before transfers 
and contributions 17.517,778 192.944 17. 710,722 

Transfers In 
Transfers out 
Transfers In • Cily 01 Fayetteville 
Transfers 01,11 · City 01 Fayetteville 
Cont{ibullons 

(271,229) 
20,847 

(1 0,961 ,399} 
889.399 

250.000 250,000 
(271.229) 

20.847 
(10.961,399) 

889,399 

Change In Net Pos ition 7,195.396 442.944 7,638.340 

Total Net Position · beginning 
Change in accounting princ iple (Note 15) 
Total Net Posl11on . beginning restated 

3U.279,274 
(407.648) 

325,87 1.425 

70.611 ,538 

70,611 ,538 

396.890,812 
(407.848) 

396.482,954 

Total Net Position· ending S 333,066 ,822 S 71,054.482 S 404,12 1, 304 

L·2 




C ITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule ot Revenues and Expenditu res - Bud~t and Actual (Non GAAP) _ 

Etectric Fund 


Year onded June 30, 201] 


(with comparativo aclual amounts for the yea r ended Juno 30, 2012) 


2013 
Variance 

Revenu es 
Operotting mvenues 
ElecUie operatlons 

Sale 01 electricity 
City SeNi~s 
Noo·u~l ily chalges 
SeNi ~ ct1arges 
Misce ll aneous 

Total operating rev~ucs 

S 

8udget 

19-(,1 0'2,300 
t , 17~.400 

1,8<1 6 ,100 
~,100, 200 

17,412,8<10 
218,63$,340 

S 

PoslUve 
IN~atl"e) 

(8,B24,7 IS) 
87,11 I 
78,833 

(29.9'24) 

(1$7,35 1) 
(8 ,e46,049) 

, 

Actu al 

187,217,582 
1,261,5 11 
1,924,933 
4,070.276 

17,255,489 
21 1,789,791 

S 

2012 
Actual 

1$5,935.572 
1,247,421 
1,8.0\&,156 
4,9 19,3&6 

3,705,790 
197,558,327 

Non..g.peraUng revenues 
C'1In (loss) on assel " .sposal 
Jnlere<;\ e<lm ed on investments 

Tota l non -o perallng revenues 

3.174,450 
792.000 

3,966. ~60 

(364,894) 
(1,2OS,sa3! 
1I,573.$1n 

2.809.556 
(418,683) 

2,392.6B3 

(3: 2 ,517) 
1,1 29,274 

81 6,7$7 

ContribuUQfl$ 
Contnb'Vriom 

fotal contrlbvlioM 
7.005.000 
2,005.000 

(1 ,628,097) 
(1.628,097) 

376,903 
376.903 

37 1,768 
371 ,76& 

TnlAS .~rs In 
Trans!er .rOlJ> City of Fayetteville 

Total transfefl In 
[531 
(S3) 

20,847 
70,8.0\7 

20,647 
20,847 

Budget<lry appropf1allons 
App<apr.a led Net Position 

TOI:a l budgetary appropriation, 
10,623,400 
1 0 , 5 23,~OO 

[,831 ,665) 
(7,83 1.565) 

2.791,735 
2,781, 73~ 

5,395,514 
5,395,6 14 

Total revenues S 23$,2$1.800 , (17,879,4411 $ 217,372,159 , 204,261,311 

E~pendltur(!$ 

Operaling exponditur~ 
Ele<:trk oper~tions 

POWEll' $Upp/y and generalioo 
Admlnl$!f3t1on 
Appara ws repair shop 
E\eclnc: meter shop 
ConstlUCllo11.:snd mal~lef1anCe 
Substation eonSll\Jction 
Engineering 
Fiber 
SCAOA 
CT metering crews 
Compliance 

Total ele<: trlc operallon, 

S 15-1 ,817,140 
696,SOO 
439.000 
:295,200 

7,687,000 
1,Q(l7, aOO 
2,491,000 

131 ,200 
150,000 
498,700 

5 ' 1.700 
169.1$$5,240 

S 5,295,365 , 
28,100 

10 1,735 , 
~2, OOO 

'H"$2.017 
42,721 

9.323 
223,~31 

6,887,751 

, 148,520,175 
696,492 
410.900 
193.465 

7,665,995 
1,925,800 
2,399,0 14 

79,1 23 
107,279 
489,)77 
288,289 

162.797,489 

S 103.819,819 
535,714 
352,477 
577,606 

6.70 1,789 
1,71 0,593 
2,263,006 

17.098 
3<1,724 

2&.4 ,082 
94 ,521 

, le,170,989 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARO LINA 

Schedule of R. " enuo:$ and Ex jX!ndilu't$· Budgel " nd Actual (Non GAA,P) · 

Electri c Fund 


V9ar ended June 30, 201 3 

(wilh eomp.arall~t' ~ e tua l a mo~nlS for lhe year f nd.d J~ne :3-0, 2012) 


b ""ndlh'fH I( OII11n... <l1 
(;_""_ ad...;.,lsltativ. 
h~~v~ 

!tile "",' aud~ 


Comm unocatiol end "." ""wry ,eJo.!ion> 

Fr.ano..J ad .......... ~ 


S<rppon l,.s'",,' . dm,nldUalion 

I-Iuman (UOU(CCS 


Acc<l un tin ~ 


Account. ,eca,~ah '" 


P"Y'~ ~ 

C""lome'OlCC'l\II'ItI 

Ubllty IIl11d s.eMee$ 


Busitt=sp\8nrW'l<;t 
CQtJ>Offi le at- r~menl 

"'s. m~""Gtm"" l,-
CaPItal Projecu 
'-6 
e~el 

F'wd\a 'ing 
w,,~~ 

F...,.., mamlef\a/'ICe 

FaoI4k!s main14nOlna: 

CU'lOmet p<Og~m. ami call c.en~ 


CCI?C",(e ~ ItdmInl s.lt:ltiO)'l 
Oevelopmenl and' marteling 
T.locom muttlO&r""", systems 

'r.forma~on lyl ben'4 


PensIOn t . penloe

Medical in____ 

","" 
AI\oc;J led renl and fi ber ~ 
Ovemead diiMg 

TOUI ~nt...l . n tl ~d"'Irli1 lnb-H 

Toto l optt1l~ 1'Ig ~~ .,.n~ k"'u 

roIon-op~ "'Ii<1 g n~end ituf" 

Im....eot expet1le 

flnan<:e cc.sl$ 
To \.>I non-optr.lllln~ uptnail\H'eoS 

B""!!.t 

, 1.033,1>:5() 

WIS;:,o 

,''',ZOO 
761,050 
503 ,300 

76<l ,900 

75.700 
1.631,II!>O 
1.136,950 

1,057 ,000 
70.4 ,800 

' .ISO, ISO 
261 ,700 
194,950 
12'8,000 
274,;/00 
550,7!oO 

1517,400 
266.050 

""."" 391.400 

'''=7&3,000 
1.<1.30.900•.= 
4,175.000 
3,5tl I ,200 

(22&0,000) 
(3.1153. 175) 
HI,SoI, ,025 

1118,232,2'65 

902.CCO 
11,000 

"3,000 

Poslt jy. 2Q12 

INC!!~ U••) "'~, Ac t .... ' 


, ,g.o,232 , B38, 3t ~ , 
11 ,857) 1,657 

50,010 61 8.1~O 

7,1 28 1:>4,072 

5M~1 727.069 

' .m 496 ,201 
28, 18 1 72-6.11 9 

_,e25 71 ,075 

3.$23 1,628.327 
32,010 1 , 104~ 

t o,03ll 1.046,962 
57,'i!l1 &4~, aJ~ 

130,835 1.~9.J 15 

3,105 2S4~5 

.3,~90 151 ,460 

~ ,n,!/064 

" 274,1 7 I 
5!.O,]t5 

5:>1,361" .. "".""2&5 .W-l 
2GO , 1 ~7'" 39 1,382 

l40 , ~~ " 359, 046 

11,8.0\3 685 ,t57 

21.268 1,400,63-< ,.= 
'(6 ,311 4,S28.e.s9 

1.0l a,20 t Z,54 2.9~ 

(79,077 ) 
512,215 , " 

ea ' , I07 
' 05,n4 
S90.71l6 
244,926 
274,303 
m ,5·0 
626 ,67 4 
78 1,777 

67,52'; 
2 SOl,525 
1,24<1,1S4 

1301.957 
3ge,.~S 

400,22 1 

2.'.J20 
32a,518 
121.3e6 
258.27 3 
533,52] 
91~.665 

223,108 
111.3! 1 
12UlOO 
~ 2., 211 

$$J ,877 
1,50S.~81.. 
],270,6&4 
2, 221,843 

(2 ,27MZ2) 
(4 ,3Ol! ,~) 

3,496.382 13.24-<,570 

10,386,133 IH ,I!-< S. 132 1Z'1.36MM 

55~.•7a 
MIa 

"'''' 
l42,Sn 

5 ,182 
347,1Q4 

&%.847 
S,128 

roo,sa 

http:4,S28.e.s9
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CIlY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROUNA 

SC h0dulQ of Reven ues and E!cpend lturQS . Bud.., et ~nd Actual (Non GAAP) • 


Electric Fuml 


Yeal ...ded JUIUI 30, lO1 3 

(wlttl compoa",t/". ;u;lual a mounts for th e yu , ended June 30, 2012) 


T",n$f. rs out 

lranor"", 'Q e ly ~ r ~'ro~ .......ue 
T,~n$l..rs 'Q EIKIf'IC Ra'8 S ... ""'aoon F".G 
Tf8/'IStlfllS 10 F_ ~IInaI'IU F""" 

To...' tAMf.~ OUI 

8u!I90' ory al>prcprl" '''''' 
I~"e nt(>f'f in<:r••w I d~e• • e) 

v....oo oo:l ~"' 
o.t>I~~11 

Care:.! 0uIl~ 
~"'" Her P~ lf\ion 

ToUI budg t!."", 'I>I>f'Op<1>tjQ.n$ 

TOI., • • ".n<)4 ,,,.. . 

11",_ 10110<> of cn..,,~ In NII'I Po ..... on 
TOIaI __ 

TOIa' "P<'I">:l'lJr,!S 

SU~W" 

IIt cOf><mngl_,-""'''''"''',l""",l!ator\ 

oPEB eXfetB<l 

TOI. , ,..,_IWfIQ ft.ms 


Cha ng<> In Nt< P"s1non 

~" 

, 10.961,400 ; ,,, 
~50.()CICo 

'41).000 {11e.nll 
11 .351 .400 ( I 'S.I12j 

(2,~I5,4&O) (toea, 9sa) 

(29 !leI ) 
1.:;c.o..200 (46) 

J!>.~.800 2.2~~OOS 

9719.3'.'5 36&,655 
J.4.l !>4,9:;5 1, 91 l,~ 

235,151 ,000 1< ,eaJ}te• 

V. rla"". 
Puuthre :on 
IN~~Ycl A<1u.1"". - " 

I O ,~ I ,3~9 

,~= 

'"''
11.232.6211 

II, 5:lo1 ,H 2) 
29,1)81 

' .700,2.a 
23.2'\Il, l!>5 
9l!.(i,r.O 

32 ,t.l 1.360 

m,2e1,ea 

U20 ,M3 
29.3<'7.200 

291.11>7 

39....~.O:;O 

~ 726 

(24.0'7 ) 

' • .a(.9.31(} 
24. 11'.1.816 

_.1 64.1" 
~O,i'-<6 ,6<O 

200, 161, TTl 

, ,; (lI.87<J ..... ' ) 2 >7.312,1$9 20<.<:61.31 1 
12,W ?!IIl m'61,S'4 ::too,16U!7 

• 1·,895,~1 14 , ~8 ~.6.55) 

30.<1'9.615 
51V96 

( I 1 , soe , 2~S) 

(267,205) 
(:1ST.M7) 

12.~' Cf>1 

, T. I9S.3116 

~.m,534 

2~. 2~1 .009 

(15, 006.341) 

, 13.616.353 

l-5 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROUNA 

S~hedule of Changes In the Status o f E le~ tr ic Rate SUlbl lizatlon Fund 


From In ception and for the Yea r Ended June 30, 201 3 


Project 
AuUloriu lion 

Tot~1 
Prio( 
Years 

CUlTent 
Yur TOlat 

RevenOl'$ 
Rate SllIbiJll.a tion transfer 
Interee l ~amed on InW~S lm e n ts 

Total revenues 

S 4.1139. 725 
l.800.000 
7.969.725 

S 4. 169.725 
3.3 14 .S1 ~ 

7.4$-4 .338 

, S 4.169.725 
3.507.557 
7. 677.282 

E...pen .:lltures 
Tola' exponditures 

R&V8nues over $l< penditur&s 7.969.725 7.464.338 192.944 7. 671.252 

OUl ..... flnanclng sourc es (uses) 
Tl"3n~ef from Electric Fund 68. 377.1 55 6$.127.2 00 2~ I) .OOO 68.377.200 
Transfer (0 E\e<:11"IC Fund (5.000.000) (5.000.000) (5.000.000) 
loan lo AnnellaliOn Ptlas<! V Re~eNe FuM (15.COO.OOO) (1.2').( .400) (237.000) (1.531 .400) 
loan to EIeClrte t WfWVI/ Genera l Fund (2.171 .250) (9.1 00.000) (10.271.2501 
Approllnated Nel Poslbon 

TOUI other financing sourt.es (uns) 59 .$$1 . ~50 (8.087.000) 51 574.550 

Rovenues and other financing SOurces (u$ts) 

over expemlilure5 S S 67. 14$.888 (7.894.0S6) 59.25 1.632 
• 

Roconciling Items: 

Advance receIvable Inlm AnneX<l ilO!1 PMW V Reserve 237,000 

Advance reeelv~ flom W fWW for Proposed Bond Projects 8.100.000 


Char.g& In Net PO$I~OtI , ~42 .94 4 

http:sourt.es
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CITY OF FAVenEV1LLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Reve nues and Expend itures · Budget and Actua l (Non GAAP) . 

Water ilnd Wastew ater Fund 


Yeilr ended June 30, 2 013 

(with com parative actua l am o unts for the year en ded June 30, 201 2) 


,." 
Vari an<;e 
PosiUve 201 2 

Budget IHegaUve) Aetual ~tua l 

ReverlUe, 
OperaUr'Ig 'eveouts 
W~tQr operaUons 

Waler Sales , 32.759.500 , (1.$1l.129) $ 31 .1811.371 , 3U5~.7 1 1 

ConnOC1ioll re~ 300.000 72.6JS 372.6JS 385.297 
City Servius 25-1 .800 (54,s3:n 200.183 257,6<17 

Tol6l water operation, 33. 3 ~4.300 (1.553,131) 31.76 \.169 32.004,655 

Wastewater ope",Uons 
Sewer eI1a r~s 37,1 01 , 100 (505.564 ) 36,595,535 35.386,234 
COIIoecbon /ee$ 195.000 1,024.799 1,21 9,7S9 Ne.952 
Cily serviees 2.941 e3.441 94 .7 \5 

Total wastewat ... . operations 522,176 37,898.776 35,729,901 

Other operating reven ues 
NO ......bhty charges t .225.6OO 23.213 1,253.833 1,466.414 
Servlee cMrge$ 1.322,200 (1.098,32 1) 223,879 1.544,293 
MoaGfI lianeou 5 303,500 PS,In) 265,6~3 Hl9.S45 

Toul otner operat ing re~nuu 2.85 1.800 (1 .108.265) 1.743,335 3,180.652 

Total operating revenues 73,5.-2.500 \2.1J9.nol 71 ,403,280 1'0.9 15,208 

Non-operaUog .evenues 
Ga in (loU) on a~t dispo9a1 
Interest ea med on 'f1\Ie$unenta 

Toul non·ope 'ating reve olles 
1.200.000 
1.200,000 

(849,764) 
(432.5' 9) 

(U62,283 ) 

(84 9. 76~) 

767,46' 
(82.2e ~ ) 

15<1,119 
1.473,953 
1.628,072 

Contributions 
Contribu tions 

TOlal ~ootrlbution ' 
4.21(1,200 
<1 .210.200 

1803, t05) 
(&03.10S) 

3,407,095 
3,407.095 

J.iM,9t 3 
3.988.913 

Tranlll ers In 
Transl... r Irom Ci ty 01 Fayerte .. ,lIe 
Transler from Anne~a~ C<1 PI'Ia50 V Ruerve F~no:l 

TQtal Vlln51ers In 

~a 5.20D 

110,000 
~95. 200 

455.90"3 
455,?<I3 

385,200 
565.943 
951 ,143 

385.200 
35 1.301 
736.!>OI 

Budgetary awroprlations 
Department or Tnl nsporta llOn ~nanelll9 
Cumberland coooty f\O(e proceed s 
FOtt 8rag9 note proe.e-eds 
Approp18ijons 01 Ne' Pesilion 

TOUI budgel..1ry approprlaUons 

39.600 
153.000 

19.801.025 
19.993.625 

(85.027) 

(8 1\) 
j9,408,149) 
(6,493.9871 

{85.02l) 
39.900 

152,1119 
13.392.816 
, 3.499.838 

1.078.518 
39,600 

131. 100 
1.1J72.037 
2,321,255 

Total revenuls S 99.441 ,525 S pO.262.6S2) S 89, 178,873 $ 79.~B9.949 

Expenditures 
Opq.a tl ng exper"ldltun:1$ 

Water opqrat.ions 
Adm,"~tI'8tioo and engln e<!nng S 
Waler meier ~p 
Waler mainlenano:.e 8M repair 
Conuact system ma intenance 
P. D, I'Iofler waler treatment plan! 
GlenVi ll e lake _tet trealmem plant 
Water Resou.ees emr,ronmenlal t)'$tern protection 
labofatory 
I:nwC<1 mental 
W~te rshed$ 

ToI,.;Il wa ter opfrations 

1.214.300 
90,900 

5,222,900 
109,&00 

4.9~. 900 
2 409 700 

lS2 ,350 
23U!>O 
109.650 
167,500 

14,700, 150 

S 2.482 
6,056., 

(21 .9(0) 
41,260 
83 ,413 

2.M7 
12.m 

U

".137.457 

$ 1,2 11 .818 
34,844 

5, 222.657 
131 ,700 

4,912.040 
2.316,287 

179,403 
m .612 
109.828 
1 66,~ 

14.562.B9J 

$ 1,135, 126 
67, 121 

4 ,737 ,518 
l Dl.742 

4.907.377 
2,295.207 

\15,400 
236,503 
106.038 
203.042 

14.05\1 ,094 



CITY OF FAYEnEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) ­
Water and Wastewater Fund 


Year ended June 30, 2013 

(with comparative ac tual amounts fo r the year ended J une 30, 2012) 


2013 
Variance 
Positi ve 2012 

Budget (Negllllval Actual Actual 
Exp(!nel ttures (contlnued) 
Opet3ting expenditures (conlinuud 

Wntewater operations 
AdmlniwaUoo and e~ineering 1,214.300 S 2,431 S 1,211 ,819 , 1,135,12&•Sewer maintenance and repair 5.890,800 49,843 5,840.951 5,981,15 1 
Contract system maintenance 109,800 22.000 87.800 129,161 
Cross Creek WW treatment plant 2,609,300 25,6 11 2,583,689 2.426,229 
Roc);.fisn Creek WW treatm ent plant 2,492,800 2,492,706 2,255.459 
Residuals marlagemem '" 283. 797 2%.590305,000 21.203 
Waler resource environmen!31 system protection 182,350 2,948 179.402 175,400 
Laborolory 238.950 12,339 226,511 2JQ,504 
Enwonmenlal 109,850 22 109.828 10S.039 

Total W;)Slewiller operations 13.153.150 135.5-41 13.011:>'609 12,743,659 

General and administrative 
Exeevtwe 559.850 100,332 459.518 398,484 
Imerr.al audit (1,857) 1,857 104,607 
Communications and community relation!. 504,500 14,071 5&0,429 592,822 
Financial adminl!.tratiofl 141,200 6,580 134 ,620 237,<10 3 
Support Systems 83,2()o\ 
Human resources 711,750 30,014 1SS7,736 618.957 
Ac.c.o unting 493,300 36,948 4SS. 352 476,067 
Accounts receiv aOole 75 \ ,200 17, 315 733,665 778,421 
Payroll 75.700 4,921 70,779 6&,950 
CuS!Omef accounts 1,6 \0,<150 28.970 1.58 1.480 1,827.126 
Utility field ~r'Vjce 1,203,350 ,. 1,203, 256 1,206, 974 
Corporate development 1.044.400 47,776 996,622 39d,692 
BuSIness plannlllg 139.197 
Risk managemen\ 601 ,700 16,828 584.872 3804,510 
Collections 443.450 ~.l3, 426 
Capital .orOjec!s 267,100 4,641 262. 853 237,248 
Rates 174,950 2,434 172.518 1 22. ~01 ,-, 127,900 117,890 121,049 
Purchasrng 271 .800 32" 271 ,168 257,410 
War e-I"loIJ 5 e 395,550 204,547 190,903 210, 523 
Fleet maintenance 1.772.1 00 77,030 1,695,070 1,595,8SS 
Facilities mainlenance 260.750 260.699 219,974 
Customer programs admlnistra~on and call cen ter 257 ,2~ " 257.139 104,008 
Corpora le services aammlslta tion 286,700 '"87 286,613 128,650 
Development anO marketing 349,950 1,686 348.254 4 31 .5 i 8 

" 

L·l 1 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule 01 Revenues and E~pendltures, Budget and Actual (Non GAAP), 

Wator and WastewlI ter Fund 


Yellr ended June 30, 2013 

(with comparative aClual amounts for the year ended June 3D, 2012) 


2013 
V~rlam:e 

Positive "''' eudqet !Ne!l!llvel Actual Actual 
8cpenditures (conllnued) 
OpGf'lltl"'lj expendllure1; to:: onUnued 

Gmeral and ad mlnlsUative (eon linued) 
Teleeommumca lions syslems 
InlOfmal,ion sys\errl$ 

, 762,300 
1,441 ,400 

S 83.114 

" 
S 619.188 

1.441 .352 
S 5-'9,710 

1.503.585 
Pensione~l 1.000 1,000 " Med,csllnsurano;t> 
Ol1'ler 
Overhead dea.ri~9' 

4.775.000 
1,401,400 

(4,178,775l 

(572. '.0) 
5-' I ,28S 
820,020 

5,347. 140 
866,11 4 

!4.wa,7951 

4,~02.Si8 

95a,003 
(· ,.35,130) 

TOUI gen"al and <ldm lnl$Lratlve 16.619,825 1,. 66.281 15.1~.5M 13.816.323 

Tobl operating exptllditures 44,413.125 1,740.27'-1 42,732,S4S 40,6 19, 076 

Non-opl"ali llg expendllures 
Inlerest e-xpense 
Finanee COst1; 

Total non-09l'' .1li09 expendllums 

7,166,000 
231.800 

7.417.600 

1.178.307 
136.620 

1,315, 127 

6 ,007.693 
94.980 

6. I 02 613 

6.783,932 
13.691 

6,797.629 

Transfers out 
Tra nsfer to WNNoJ Rate Slatlol,zauon f und 
Tr~n sfe< toAnn&xillioo Pnase v R~rve Fund 
Transfer to Fleet Ma,n~enarn:e Fund 

Total Iransfers out 

250,000 

140,000 
390,000 

a .736,213 1) 
11 $,771 

(2,617 ,510] 

250.000 
:l.736.281 

21 .229 
3,007.5 10 

2SO,OOO 
2.60$.3$7 

297,167 
3 ,15S,554 

BudgeUlry ~ppropriatlons 
Invento/y Increase 
Veh iCle anod equipmenl 
~bt pn nopal payment$ 
Note p"'yrnents 
NC OOT project payments 
Ca pitalouday 
Appropriation 01 Ne\ Posllion 

Total budg ltl~ry .Ippropri ltlons 

~. "" 

1 l.593.800 

2,000,000 
22,4S I,200 
10.911 .100 
47,160.600 

60,762 
(213.037) 

1.267.901 
(1,267,849) 
1,668 ,837 

124,9 19 
7.139.100 
S. 7~O,63.3 

143,7 U1 
2 13.037 

10.325.899 
1.261,849 

331 ,163 
22.326,281 

3,772.000 
38,379,%1 

3$4.E66 
239.046 

!I ,SOO,Tn 
l ,267,6ole 

:>28,399 
12. 65-t . ~9 
2.250.000 

26,995.3!14 

Total e~p,nditures S 99.441.525 S 9 .216,529 S gO,22H~6 S n.5a7 .643 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedu le of Revenut's and Expenditures - Sudget and Actual (No n GAAP) ­

Watt'r and Wastewater Fund 


Year ended June 30, 201 3 

(wllh comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2012) 


Reconciliation ot c:hange In Net Position 
Total revenve 
Total expendirures 

Budget 

S 

Positive 
!N!:!I:al1ve) 

(10.262.552) 
9.21$ 529 

S 

Actual 

89.178.873 
90.222.996 

S 

2012 
ACtual 

79.589.949 
77.557 J343 

Subtotal S 11.044.123) (1.044.123) 2.022, 306 

Rec:onci ling items: 
Bud;eta ry appropriations 
OeJ)l'eel3hon 
AmoI1ization 
OPEB expense 
DevelOJ)ef and FIF erools 
A.ssessmel\~ 

Transfe r or assets (to) I from A/"H'lexatior'l Phase V. Areas 6·1 3 
Tr.msle1 Of assets (IO) I from Senes 2oo9B Revenue eood Ca pilCl I PrOject Fund 

TOlal reconcilin9 items 

24,880.329 
(I SJlO4,418) 

(737,219) 
(4 67.589) 
(494.914) 

2,4 49 
5.330.935 
6, 194.872 

15 .504.375 

24,674.129 
(15,309 ,785) 

(1 ,103.053) 
(313.591) 

6.594.433 
197.451 

5, 115,476 
9,439. 189 

28.35O,H'>9 

Change in Net Pos ition S 15,460.252 , 30,37:2,4.65 

l· l J 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Wa ter and Wastewater Rate Stabilization Fund 

From Inception and fo r !.he Period Ended June 30, 201 3 


TOlal 
Project Prior Current 

AuthomaUon Years Yur Total 

Revenues 
Interesl earned on Investments S 274 ,277 , 30.032 S 304.:lO9 

Tota! revenues 274.277 3R032 304.309 

Other finan cing sources 
TICInsfer from Water and WaSte'Nilter Fund 6,000,000 5.750,000 250,000 6,000.000 
Appropria ted Net Posi tion j6.320,000) 

Total o ther Iln~ncing sources 1320.000} 5.750.000 250.000 6,000.000 

Revenues lind other financing $ourc~ 


over expenditures S S 6.024,277 280,032 S 6.304.309 


CMnge In Net Position , 280.032 

L·14 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE , NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule o f Changes in the Status of Annexation Phase V Reserve Fund 

F rom Inception and fo r the Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Proje<:l 
Authori:.:aHon 

TOlal 
Prior 
Yea l"5 

Curn m 
Yg,U Total 

Revenues 
ImereSl earned 00 in~t.Stmems 

Total revenues 
S 6.500 

6.500 
S 753 

'53 

, 4,778 
4,77S 

EJl penditurn 
IntereSI 

Totel expenditures 
35,000 
35 000 

6.952 
6,952 

31, B6S 
31,868 

38,820 
38,820 

Reven"," over (undgr) expenditures {2a,SOO) 12•927) 13 1.115) (:W,042) 

Olh	...r finan<;;ing sour<;;l/~ (uses) 
Advance from Electric Rate Slablli:.:.auon I"und 15,000,000 1,294,400 237,000 ',,531,400 
Assessments tl<lIlsler 3,000,000 1,948.838 1,097.190 3,046.028 
TranslEr from Wilier and Wastewater Fund 5,547,547 3,9{lS,4A7 1,639.091 5,547, 538 
Transfer from the City 4,332,563 I ,BQ..I.133 1.528,451 4,332.584 
Translar "am Annexation Pnase v , Project 1 Fund 727,903 721.903 727.903 
Transfer to AMexallon Phase V, mas 8·13 ; vnd (20.768,323) (8,991, 134) (3, 591. 168) (12,582,301) 
Transfer to Annexauon Phase V, Areas14.15 fund (6,200,000) (436,698) (436,698) 
Transfer \0 Water and Wastewater FlJJ1d ( 1,280,000) (695,374) (565,943) (1.261 ,317) 
Appropriated Net POSi ti on (331.2 10) 

Total other f( Mnclng M/urces (uns) 28,500 (2,787) 9()7,923 905,136 

Revenues and other financin9 sources (uses) 

over(vnd~rl expendilllres S j5,714) 676,808 871 ,094 


Re<:o~jlin9 Items: 
Advance Payable to Ele<::tnc Rale Sla l)iliz a ~on Fvnd (237,000) 

Change In Net PositIon S 639.808 

http:Areas14.15


CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule 01 Change~ in the Status of Serie$ 2009B Revenue Bond Capita l Project Fund 


From Inception and lor the Period Ended June 30, 2013 


Proj l:CI 
Author ization 

Tou' 
Prior 
Yeal"$ 

Current 
Vear Total 

Revenue~ 

Interest eamed on invested bend prooeeOS 
TOlal revenues 

, <1 7,254 
.t7,254 

S ~6, 388 

<16.388 
, 

'"86' 
, .t7,253 

47,253 

Expenditures 
Con~tnJction 

Engineering 
Land and Land Righls 
DOT project I"i!yments 
Other 

TOla! (,Xpllnditures 29,405.289 

2<1 ,324 ,640 
428,681 

2(1,000 
3,399,059 
1,1<18,:!48 

29,320.728 

68,994 
1.476 

1<1 091 
64.561 

24,393,634 
430.157 
20,000 

3,399,059 
1.162.4.39 

29.4C5.289 

Revenues under upenditures (29,35M35) !29,274.34OI (83,696) )29,358.0361 

Other financing sources 
COSt or Issuance -Adjusted Bond P/Oreeds 10.257 
Bond proceedS 29.347.778 33.589,712 !4.231 .676) 

Total other financing sources 29.358.035 33,589.712 (4,231 .676) 

Re'lenU(lS and other lina!)Cing sourees 
over(under) expenditu,l!'S , , 4.315.372 (4.315 372) S 

Reconciling items: 
Capital outlay 83.695 
DOT plO)ect payments 
Transfer 01 I$$e!s (Io)/from the Waler and Wastewater Fund 12.5Q3,195} 
Chan~ in Net Posibon S {6.794.812) 

L-16 



CIT'( OF FAYETIEVILlE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Sche<:luh~ of Changes in the Status of Annexation - Ptlase V-Areas 8 through 13 Capital Project Fund 

From Inception and for the Period Ended June 30, 2013 


f"rOj",el 
Authori:ation 

TOlal 
Prior 
Years 

CUITent 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Tot~1 revenues S S S S 

Expenditures 
Constrtx:\ioo 
Engineering 
Rights of way 
Less City 01 FayelleYllie partrCl pauOfl 
Other 

Tot31 expenditures 25.000,000 

7,6 11.795 
2,1 46.127 

409.529 
(66S.262) 
7 16,267 

10,2 15,056 

7,522,627 
119.117 
124.864 

(l ,095,715) 
401 ,413 

7.072.846 

15,134.~ 22 

2 . 26 6.44~ 

534.393 
(1.765.037) 
1,117,680 

17.287,902 

Revenues under expondltures {25.000,0001 {10,215,0561 {7.072.846) !17.287.902) 

Other financing sources 
Trartl'ole, from Anne)(3t lOn Phase V Reserve food 20.76S,323 8.SSI .133 3.591.168 12.582.301 
Series 20098 EJon(j Proceeds 4.23 \.677 4, 23 1,676 4.23' ,676 

ToLllI other financing sources 25,000,000 a.991, 133 7.822.844 16,813,977 

Revonues and other finaneing sources 
unde, expenditures S S (\ .223.923) 749,998 , !473.9251 

Recondling items: 

Capital outlay 7.072.&46 

Transfer Of assets Uo)/from the Waler and WasteW<ller Fund (9,562,611) 


Change in Net POSibon , /1, 739.767) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROliNA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status Of Annexation - Phase V-tueas 14 Ihrough 15 Capital Project Fund 

From Inception and for the Peliod Ended June 30, 2013 


ProJect 
Authotization 

TOtal 
Prior 
Years 

Current 
y~. Total 

Rcvenues 
Total revenues 5 5 5 S 

Expenditures 
EngineEring 
Righis 01 way 
Other 

Total upenditure$ 6.200.000 

427.65:) 
20.039 
22.7 14 

470.406 

427.653 
ZQ.039 
22.7H 

H O.406 

Revenues under expenditures !6.200.oool l470. ~ 06~ (470.406) 

Other financing sources 
Transfer (rom AMexaUon ~hase V Reserve F<Joo 

Tot~1 other financing sources 

Revenues and other financing sources 
under ex~ndhures 5 S 133.108) S pJ.70S} 

Reconciling Items: 
Capital outlay 
Transfer of a$sel~ (1O)lfrom the Waler and Wastewater Fund 
Cha~e in Net Position , 

470 .406 

~35.696 
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CITY OF FAYETIEV1LLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes)n the Status of 2012 Edgewater/Northview 

State Revolving Loan Capital Project Fund 


From Inception and for the Period Ended June 3D, 2013 


Prajcc! 
AUlhor\ntlon 

TObit 
Prio r 
Years 

Currenl 
Year Total 

R:e'/(ltlues 
TOldl (ev"tlues 

E;(pendi\Ur(l$ 
COfIslnrctlon 
El'I9ir.eering 
City PaniCiparion 
0 ,"" 

loUI expendltulU 

Revenue, under expenditure, 

S 

656.376 

(655.376) 

S S 

42'6.666 
2.500 

(51 .721) 
5.349 

Javaa 

1382.7881 

S 

-'126.666 
2.500 

(51.727) 
5.349 

382.788 

(382.788) 

Other Financing SDuren 
State Revoilling Loon Proceeds 382.788 

Total Othff nnanelng 50Ure(l$ 382.788 

Revenues and other Ilnlnelng sou rces 

under expenditures S , $ 


Reeonclilng Items: 

Capita! outlay 182.788 

Loon Proceeds 
 !3&2.188~ 

Cllange in Nei Position S 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2012 Water Treatment Facility Clearwell and Chemical Improvement 

State Revolving Loan Capital Project Fund 


From Inception and for the Period Ended June 30, 2013 


Project 
Authorization 

Total 
Prior 
YOlilrS 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenues 
Total revenues S , S S 

Expenditures 
ConslrucMn 
Engineering 
Olher 

Total expenditures 5,·lQO.000 

4,472,784 
4t5.876 
113.294 

5,001,954 

4.472.784 
415.876 
113.294 

5.001.954 

Revenues under expenditures (5,400.000) 15,001,954) 15.001 ,954) 

Other financing sources 
State Revolving Loan Proceeds 

Total other finanCing sources 
5,400.000 
5.400.000 

4.877,609 
4,877,609 

4.877.609 
4,877.609 

Revenues and other financing sources 
under expenditures S S (124,345) S (124.345) 

Reconciling items: 
CapitalOlJllay 
Loan Proceeds 

Change in Net POSition S 

5,001,954 
(4,877,609) 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2013 Outfall Rehabilitation 

State Revolving Loan Capital Project Fund 


From Inception and for the Period Ended June 30, 2013 


Project 
Authoriution 

Total 
Prior 
Yea... 

Current 
Year Total 

Revenun 
Toul re.... nues 5 5 S S 

Expend1turu 
CoosINC~Qn 

Other 
TQtaJ .xpendltures 3.922.282 

1.964.731 
26.21<1 

1.690.945 

1.864 .731 
26.214 

1,890.945 

Re...enun und.r .xpendltures (3,922,282) p.890.9~5) !'.890,9451 

Other fina ncing sources 
Stale Revolving lOiln Procaeds 

Total othe r financ ing sources 
3,922,282 
3,922,282 

1.797.501 
1.797,501 

1.797.50 1 
1.797,501 

Re... enues ,nd othff flnanclng sources 
under expenditures S , (93.<I<I4l S (93.<1 044 1 

ReCQnclllng ttetM: 
CapililIOIIllay 
l oan Proa:«ls 

Change in Net Position S 

1 . 89Q . ~.5 

(1 .797.5011 
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CITY OF FAYETIEV1LLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Balance Sheet 

Stonn Water Management Fund 


June 30, 2013 


Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and irwestments 
Accou nts receivable 
Restricted accoums recet'Jable 
Restricted cash and investments 

Total current assels 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets 

Tolal noncurrent assels 

Total assets 

liabilities and net position 
CU(fenlliabililies 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Cun-en! portIOn 01 long-term liabilities 
Reslncted unearned deposlls 
Restricted accounts payable and aCCI\Jed expenses 

Total CUfl'ent liabilities 

Noncufl'ent liabilities 
Net OPES obligation 
Long-term debt 
Uneamed revenue 

Total noncurrent liabilit ies 

Totalltabilities 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Capi tal projects 

Unrestricted net position 


Total net posi tion 


Total liabilities and net position 

2013 

S 10,574.251 
101,901 

23,667 
5,853,022 

16,552,841 

22.655.627 
22,655,627 

S 39,208,468 

1.157.002 
683,124 

1,144.892 
644.166 

3.629.184 

282,049 
9,560,478 

42,112 
9,884,639 

13,513,823 

19,491,750 

698.371 
5,504,524 

25,694,645 

S 39,208,<168 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Storm Water Management Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


2013 

Operating revenues 
Charges for servk:es 
Other revenue from operations 

Total operating revenues 

$ 5,233,338 
14,327 

5,247,665 

Operating expenses 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenses 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

1,442,645 
942,279 
632,312 

3,017,236 

Operating income (loss) 2,230,429 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned on investments 
Miscellaneous revenues 
Gain (loss) on disposal o f capital assets 
Inlerest expense 

Total nonoperaling revenue (expense) 

(6,841) 
17,888 
6,021 

!208,594) 
(191,526) 

Income (loss) before transfers 
and contributions 2,038,903 

Change in net position 2,038,903 

Total net pOSition ~ beginning 23,736,085 

Change in accounting principle (Note 15) (80,343) 

Total net position· beginning restated 23,655,742 

Total net position - ending $ 25,694,645 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule 01 Revenues and Eltpenditures - Budget and ACl ual (Non-GAAP) 

Stonn Water Management Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

(With Comp<'lratlve Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2012) 


Variance 
2013 2012

Budget Positive 
Actua l Actual

(Negative) 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services S 5.180.306 , 48)60 , 5.229.066 $ 5.154,352 

Other revenue from operatiOns 20.305 (5.978) '4.327 19.215 


Totat operating revenues 5.200.611 42.782 5.243.393 5,173,567 


Operating expenditures 
Personnel 1.416.490 2.657 1.413.833 1,365,534 
Olher opera ting expenditures 1.267,955 402.431 865.525 806.250 
Capital outlay 301,956 
COSI rediSlribulion 75.000 75.000 

To tal operating eltpendUures 405.088 2.354.3508 2.548,740 

Operating income (Iou) 2.44 1.165 447,870 2.889.035 2.624,827 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Interest earned on investments 
Miscellaneous 
Debt service - prinelpal payment 
Interesl expense 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

32.700 
60,000 

(600.030) 
\J19.379) 
(826.709) 

(43,549) 
(42.112) 

1 
(85,760) 

(10.S4S) 
17.888 

(600.030) 
p19.3781 
(912.469) 

45,'94 

(290.030) 
(155.850) 
(401.686) 

1.614,456 362.110 1.976.566 2,223,141 

Other financing sou rces (uses) 
Sale of capital assets 
Transfers out 
Appropriated fund balance 

Total other financing source-s (uses) 

(5,506,599) 
3,892.143 

(1,614.456) 

6,02 1 

(l.B92. 143l 
(3.886.122) 

6,021 
(5,S06,599) 

(5,500,578) 

36,470 
(1.718,277) 

(1.681.807) 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures , , {3.524 .0 12) , (3,524.012) , 541,334 

Reconcilialion of change in net position 
ToI.al revenues 
TOIal eltpenditures 

Sublotal 

, 5.256.353 , 5.255.231 
4.713,897 

541,334 

Deprecial ion 
Change in sC(:rved vacalion 
Capital outlay 
Proceeds Irom sale of assels 
Gain (loss) on diSposal of 3sseiS 
Principal payment 
Unearned revenue 
Bad debt expense 
Capitali l:ed interest 
Accrued interes l 
Net OPES expense 

Subtotal 

Change in net position , 

t632,312) 
1.939 

(6,021) 
6,021 

600,030 
4.272 

(292) 
103,273 

7.511 
p O.751 l 
53.670 

(3.470.3421 $ 

(559,991) 
(1,638) 

301 .956 
(36,470) 
36,470 

290,030 
9,877 

(14) 
252.836 

(134.936) 
(l8.880) 
119,240 

660,574 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule o f Changes in the Status of 

Storm Water Manage~nt Capital Project Fund 


from Inception And ForYur Ended June 30, 2013 


Projeel 
Authorization 

Prior 
Years 

Cloud 
Projects 

Curt~nt 

Year TOlal 

Revenues 
Restricted Intergovemmental 

L"'" 
Total restricted Ingovernmental 

S S , 0.499 
10.4 99 

S S S 10 ..499 
10.• 99 

Interest elrned on Investmeots 

Total revenues 
2'7 .795 
36.294 

11.103 
11.103 

38.898 
49.397 

E.lpftndltures 
CUrTent 

Environmental Protecllon 
Ar1ne~atioo area improvements 
Godfrey OLJtfall 
JamnCreek at Traybum _Iv«< 
Bon"'e Doone 
Lyon RdlRogeo-s Or Conslnx:tion 
Lock"lOOd and Ra"enhlll 
Seabrook 
Spruce StIFOfest HIM Dr 
LaFayene v..age/SproCt! Dr 
Cononade 
Soellhead Cree~ Group 1 
McNeill Circle 
Yadki.-l Rd 
Summefhill 
Anson POfI(J 

Bl.ICkhCad Creek Watershed 
Reglme~t 
Spruce St • Phase II 
R()lCie Ave Phase ! 
N EdQewater Orne 
Seabrook Phase II 
Bon" !e OOOne (West of 3) 
MurraV Hill Rd repair 
Covel'll!)' R(I c.ul ~ert stream imp 
Sl0rmwa.ler dralrlage mis,;:ellaI'll!OU$ 

lenal elCpen(lltures 

3.506.031 
372.000 

44.961 
150.006 
216.454 
375.44 1 
997.445 

2.359.200 
402.902 
257.981 

1.827.131 
2.659.313 
1.053.818 

322.791 
827,917 

65.000 
7'.000 

315.000 
5Hl87 
50.503 

606.500 
604.465 

1.086.230 
2.00{),086 

20.498,062 

1.3oa.109 
35,100 
'19 .756 
67.42 1 
35.982 

150,006 
216.454 
375,010 
217,7 15 

2.178,861 
<171.677 
257.981 
126.780 
134.7 15 
399.4 15 
322.191 
595.916 

166.676 
7 .130.567 

321.869 

49,756 
67.421 

8,77 5 

447.821 

1.2435'19 
8.775 

7,250 

431 
377.~9 

180.338 

1.090.251 
2.030 

654,403 

98.685 

51 .909 

536.317 

2.229.989 
43.875 

~3.232 

150.006 
216,.t54 
375.441 
595.01. 

2,359.199 
462.902 
257.961 

1.217,037 
136,745 

1.053.818 
322.791 
694.601 

51.909 

535,317 

334.030 
11.031.3.(1 

R(lvenues o"er (under) (l)'lleoditures (20.498,002) (7 .092.273) (447.82t) {4,387,492J (11,031 .944) 

Other fll'lancing $ources (uses) 
Transfel'$ i" 
Bond proceeds 

Total other fina"clng sources (uses) 

9.903.062 
10,595.000 

20..(98.062 

4.644.234 
10.595.000 

15.439,284 

447.821 

447,821 

5.506.599 

5.506.599 

9 .903.062 
10.'95.000 

20 .• 98.062 

Re~enues and other Oo.lnclng sources 
(uses) o~er (under) e.lllenditures S S 8.341 .011 S S U 19. 101 S 9.466.1 18 

Recon~il111ion of modified a~crual 

b~sis 10 full accrual basis: 
E.lCl!SS of re'l8flues over e;o;pendilures 
Cilplta l ouUay 
NOf'I<.apitalizabie items 
Cap\ta~zed intereSI 

S 1.119.107 
4.398.595 

( 1.4(2) 
16_995) 

Change if) f)et position S 5.509.2.5 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVillE, NORTH CAROLINA 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
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CITY OF FAYEITEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 


June 3D, 2013 


Assets 
Cunent assets 

Cash and investments 
Accounls receivable 
Inventories 
Reslrideci account.s recei vable 
RestriCle<! cash and Investments 

Total current assets 

S 

Transit 
Fund 

2,975,311 
751 ,824 
192.815 

3.919,950 

S 

Airport 
Fund 

8,319,878 
1,595,730 

6,077 
78, 786 

1.1 28,374 
11 ,128,845 

Solid Waste 
Rec~clin9: fund 

S 1,514,370 
127,697 

13,804 

1.655.871 

Total Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds 

S 12,809,559 
2.-475,251 

212,696 
78,780 

1.128,374 
16,704.666 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets 

Total nonCUflenl assets 
45,548.376 
45,548,376 

26,236 
26.236 

58.402.954 
58.-402.964 

Total asselS S 16,748,302 S 56.677.221 S 1,682, 107 S 75.107,630 

Liabilit ies and net posillon 
Current liabililieS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses S 571.167 S 1.112.272 S 359,220 S 2.042,659 
Current portion of Iong ,term liabihties 184,584 97.224 636 282:444 
Restricted accounts payable and accrued" expenses 90,018 90,018 
Restr icted unearned deposits 1,025 1,025 

Tolal CtlAenlliabi lities 755,751 1,300,539 359,856 2,416,146 

Noncurrent liabilit ies 
Nel OPEB obligation 630,700 232,188 1, 361 864,249 
Unearned revenues 6130 39,036 39,696 
Long·term debt 19,069 19,069 

Tolal noncurrent liabiJil1es 650.429 271 ,224 1.361 923.014 

Totalliabililies 1,406,180 1,571.763 361 ,217 3.339,160 

Net posilion 
Net inveslmenl in capital asselS 12,828,352 45,548,376 26,236 58,402,964 
Res tricle<! for: 

Capilal projects 1 , 

UmesUicted 2,513,770 


Totat net posilion 15,342,122 


Totaillabilil ies and net position S 16.748.302 S 56,617.221 S 1.682.107 S 75,107,630 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVlllE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Statement of Revlimues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Transit 
Fund 

Airport 
Fund 

Sclid Waste 
Reclcl ing Fund 

Total Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds 

Operating rovenues 
Charges Ie' services 
Othe, revenue frem operatjOl'lS 

Tetal operaHng ,evenues 

S IJ03,9.<17 
14,202 

1,118.149 

S 4,122.71 1 
171 .33 1 

4.294.042 

S 2.295,326 
9.069 

2.30,095 

S 7.521.984 
194.602 

7. 11 6.586 

Oporatin9 expenses 
Salaries sod empleyee benefits 
Q1her operating expenses 
DepreCiaticn 

Total eperating expenses 

4.384.554 
2,267A72 
1,068.920 
7.720,9A6 

1.317.262 
1.56<\ ,711 
2.744.928 
5.646.901 

28.4.<10 
2,153.677 

7A96 
2,189,613 

5.730,256 
6,005,660 
3,821 ,3.<1 4 

15,557.460 

Operating income (loss) (6,602.797) ( 1.352.859) 114,782 (1 ,840,874) 

Noneperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned 0.1'1 investments 
Federal and State grants 
Passenger facilil y Charges 
Miscellaneous revenues 
Gain (loss) OIl disposal of capital assets 
County revenue 
Vehicle fee revenue 
Interest expense 
Miscellaneous expense 

Total noooperating revenue (expense) 

(497) 
2,355, 194 

8.878 

660.193 
(1.031) 

3,022,737 

(8.541) 
112.888 
512.646 
188.312 

716 

(438.4931 
367 .528 

(1.593) 

117,461 

301.250 

417 ,118 

(10.631) 
2,468.082 

512.646 
305.773 

9.594 
301.250 
660,193 

(1,031) 
(438.493) 

3.807,383 

Income (less) before transfers 
and centribulions (l.seD.OSO) {985,331) 531.900 {4.033.491} 

Transfers in 4.543.198 4.543 ,198 
Transfers cut (39 1,64 1) 
Capital conlributions 1.802.682 6,066.1 27 

Change In net position 2.765.820 5,080.796 140.259 

Total net position · beginning 12.576,302 50.024 .662 1.180.631 63.781,595 

Tc tal net position - endin9 S 15,342,122 S 55,105,458 S 1,320.890 , 7 1,758.470 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORm CAROLINA 

Combining Stateme nt o f Cash Flows 


Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 


YOSt Ended June 30, 2013 


T'3nSil 

'0'" 
AI",ort

'0'" 
Solid w a -,o 

Re<:ytllng Fund 

TOUlI Nonmijor 
Enlo'prlSQ 

Funds 

Operating xlivilies 
C,...h reu!VtKIlrom ~IOJ1"'!'$ 
C~$~ ~id 10 0< on behaff Qf ~m",oyees for services 
C~S~ pa,d for goods and scrvloo$ 

NQI ~nh provided by lused In) 
operating actlvltJu 

, 2,393,5 30 
1~ . 301 523) 
j2 016.2I 5) 

(3.926.309) 

• 7.563.1 25 
11.272.605) 
(4.70 7 637\ 

1 . SJlaB~ 

, 2,74 0. 256 
127.a76) 

jl .954.023) 

n6.3S7 

, 12.6989 11 
(5.602.105) 
jS.6BO.076) 

!1 . 5a5. ~701 

NoncapiUlI nnancing activit;" 
Trnnsfers i(1 ~ ~~. 1 9 8 4.543. 195 
Federili and S tate granl$ 
Transfens 00 \ 

2.355. 194 11 2.SeS 
1 3 e l .5~ 1l 

2.468.OS2 
p9 1.&l 11 

N.t CUh provld<ld (und) by oonc:.oplt~ 1 

nnanclng activltJe$ 6 .898.392 11.2.888 jl91.64 I) 8,519.639 

C 3pital and ,",Iated fin a ncing a"MtJes 
Proceeds from sale of assets &.878 '" 9.594 
ContJ1 b ~led CIIpH.e1'eceived l .e02.632 6.006.1 27 7 .aGB.B09 
Acqu,sLtion a"" conS ltuCIIoO 01 o:.lI ~iral ~s5 elJ!. 12 063.332) (6.7~ 1 179) (8.S~.511) 

Pnnctpa! pa id tn debl maluritJas 11 9 % 0) ( 19. ~SO) 

Intefe51 ~j d on cletrl malu"'l ~ 11.031 j (1.031! 
He t cash p<ovidlOd (u",,) by c ap;l.al a Ad 

,", I~IKI financing ~eU~I~s 1212.783! !S74.J 3E.! (94 7.119) 

Invesllng act)v1tles 
lnlelHl anc dLvldends 

Nvt c u h providQd (w1fId) by InvUlin9 activities 
(497) 
(497! 

l5.54 11 
(8.SoII) 

1\ .593) 
p.Sg3) 

! 10.63 1) 
(11).631) 

NetlnC~lSe (decrean)In cash and cash 
e ,. u I ~~ IentsJI nves \fI"IImIS 2.598.803 1.012.693 365.123 4.078.619 

Ca sh 3nd cUh equlvalen tsfln~ntm"nts 

8c91nnJn9 of yea r 

End of y<tar , 
276oS0S 

2.975.311 • 
a . 43 5. 5~ 

9 .448.2$2 • 
1 . 1 4 9. ~47 

1.514,370 , 
'M6l.3H 

13.937.933 

C,,-sh ,r>d ,""sh &quiv"-ie nl s , 2.975.3\1 , 944$.252 , 1. 5\4 .370 , 13.937.933 
Tobl cash and e~s h ~qul~aientsJInvGStn1 e nts , 2,915.311 , 9.4~e . 2S2 S 1.514.370 , 13.937.933 

Unroslricled ea.1h ~nd ~sl1 equ"",len!sr"'~..unenl' , 2.975.311 , 8.3 19.878 S 1.514.370 , 12.809.559 
ReslnCle<i cash anO equiv.alenI"'""UIll1enIs 1.128.374 1.128.374 

ToUI car;h an d cnh Ml UIV3Io ntsllAVUu...nts , 2.975.311 , 9.448.252 , 1.514.3 70 , 13.937.933 
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CITY Of fAYETTEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Statement of Cash flows 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Year Ended June 30. 2013 


T""~sll ,,", Airpon 
Fund 

Solid Waste 
RK:t!lLn ll Fund 

T0\;11 Noomaj<x 
Enterprise 

Funds 

RKonelll~tion 01 09tralinglnCOlTlt (loss) 
to net Clsh provided by 
(ltSed in) operating ~ctlylu.. 
O~(81h1';1 iocof'!le (10$$) 

AdJustmenll \0 recondle o~e~M~ ",come (to.,s) 
lO "e' eas ~ provi<!e<I ~ (u$.ed in) opoeraling 
"clivitie$: 
Dep'~lJOn 
Nonopoeratll'9 ~yment.!.for9~S and \oe",ien 
NOnoperaling receipts from eu,tomeffi 

, (6.602 ,797) 

1,063,920 

660. I 9] 

, (1.352.859) 

2,744.926 
(438 .493) 
700.958 

S 11 ~,752 

7,496 

418.7 11 

S (J 6-oI0.B 74) 

3.821,344 
(43S,493l 

1.779,e62 

Clla"lle 'n u s.e15 11110' Ilatl>~du 
(Inc'ease) da<:rene In accounts rece lvabia 
(incteOlH) dllcrease ,n 1nV9ntory 
(Ine< ease) !leer"' ...... In j)fepaid ;t~n" 
(Inaeas.e) OecreaH In ~nearned de>'Oli1~ 
( Ir><:rQas.e ) deaoaw in ac;c.oums p.yab\e 

end accrued 1I8biio\leS 
<Increase) de<:reaw ,n .lcoNed compoens.3led 

absen(;O! s 
(Increase) Cle<;fea..., in une~med rwen...u 
(Incre:ne) (lea-ease irt /'Itl OPEB OO,g.lluon 

TOl8 1 adj~SlmenlS 

614.526 
(1 1,652) 

260,910 

(6 .8H) 

'"69.763 
2.&76._811 

2, 553.1 3& 
(H2) 

(~ , 6&4. (61) 

18,414 
H .989 
2fi.:242 

2,9l$,$41 

17, \50 

7.613 

192.041 

(1 21 ) 

'OS 
643.~ 7S 

3,1$4.810' 
(4.51 I) 

(2,13'•. :2'0) 

11,459 
IHAS 

IliU;90 
6,2~5. 604 

/'l ulU." ilfovided by (used lnl OPOr.ltlng 3cti~Jtles , 13.926,3091 S U62, M2 S 7~8 , 3 51 S j 1.5S5.27Ol 



CITY OF FAYETIEVlllE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budgel and Actual (Non -GAAP) 

Transit Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended Juno 30, 2012) 


Operating revenues 
Charges for services 
Other revenues from operations 

Total operating revenues 

Budget 

, 1,062,265 
20. 345 

1.082.610 

Variance 
Positive 

iNesativO} 

S 41.682 
(6,143) 
35,539 

2013 
Actual 

, 1.103,947 
14.202 

1.118,149 

$ 

2012 
Actual 

1.01 3.331 
11 .849 

1.025.180 

Operating oxpenditures 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 

Total operating expenditures 

4,310.907 
2.260,357 
6,571 ,264 

9,284 
291.355 
300.669 

4.301.623 
1,968,972 
6,270,595 

4,054 .459 
2. 019.070 
6.073.529 

Operating loss (5,488.654) 336,208 (5.152.446) (5.048,349) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Interest earned Of) invesunenls 
Federal grants 
State grants 
Vehicle fee revenue 
Interest expense 
Debt service - principal payment 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 

1,479.686 
696,713 
638.475 

(1.038) 
(19,9801 

2.793,856 

(497) 
27.298 

(25,129) 
(12.520) 

7 

(1 0.8.<\1) 

(.<\ 97) 
1.506.984 

671.584 
625.955 

(1,031 ) 
(19 .980) 

2,7B3,015 

3,508 
1,193,896 

674.998 
625.282 

(1,436) 
(19.573) 

2,476.673 

Revenues under expenditures (2.694.798) 325.367 (2.369.431) (2. 571,676) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Proceeds from sa le of assets 

Total other financin9 sources (uses) 

2,679,798 
15.000 

2.694,798 

(31 9. 245) 
(6.122) 

(325.367 ) 

2.360,553 
8.878 

2,369.431 

2.555.640 
19.017 

2,574.657 

Revenues and other financin9 
sources (uses) ove r (under) expenditures , • , • 2.981 

Reconciliation of change in net positJon: 
Total revenues 
Total expenditures 

Subtotal 

, 6,291,606 
(6.291 .606) 

, 6,097,521 
(6.094.5401 

2.981 

Depreciation 
Net OPES expense 
Change in inventory 
Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation 
Bad debt expense 
Debt prinCipal payments 
Unearned revenue 
PlOceeds from sale of assets 
Gain (loss) on disposat of assets 

Subtotal 

(1 ,068,920) 
(89.763) 
12.586 
6.834 

(1 5,206) 
19.980 
34.238 
(8,878) 
8,878 

p ,l00.251) 

(9.t\l ,053) 
(1 09,452) 

8. 284 
(33.B90) 

(344) 
19,573 
24 .189 

(1 9.017) 
19,017 

~ 1 ,032,693~ 

Change in net position , 1'·100,251 ) $ (1 .029.712) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule o f Changes in the SlatU5 of 

Transit Capital Project Fund 


From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Project Prior Closed Current 
Total

Avthorization Years Projects Year 

Revenues ,Federal grants S 21,452.720 $ 9.085.488 S 1,619.620 , 10.705.106 

State 9r3(liS 1.348.905 970.747 183.062 1.153.809 

MiscellaneQvs 43.000 43.000 


Total revenues 22.801.625 10.099.233 1.802.682 11 .901.9 15 


b:penditures 
FTA Capital 0327 940.000 869.326 70.673 939,999 
FTA Capital 0406 270,415 255.531 12.924 268.4 55 
FTA Capi tal 0425 387.000 384.841 2,158 386,999 
FTA Capital 0444 
FTA Capital 04.0027 1.880.844 1.873.962 6.831 1,880.793 
Multi-Modal Cenler (no 9rant) 372.144 279.042 87.976 367,018 
FTA Capital 0457 203.422 203.420 203.420 
NCDOT Capital 09-AT.004 419,01 2 394,084 18,504 412.588 
FTA Capttal 0464 811.667 634 ,137 156.60 1 790.138 
Improvemenls & Enhancemenls (no grant) 466,909 347,361 53.263 400.624 
New Freedom Sidewalks FYl1 200.000 198.281 1,645 199.927 
Transit Multlmodal Center Land 1.662,307 1,174,406 333, 108 1.507.514 
FTA Caplla190.469 3.348.926 1.931,964 368,679 2.300,643 
New Freeclom Sidewalks FY12 145,426 136.991 136,991 
FTA Capila190.514 2.777,44 \ 900.706 900.706 
FT A 04 0055 Multimoda! Transit Center 10.018.750 
FT A 04.0054 Veterans WebSite '38,900 
ARRA Capitil( 06.002 3.129.01 0 2.959,662 12.901 2.972.563 

Total expenditures 27.072.173 11.506.017 2.1 62,961 13,668,978 

Revenues over (under) expenditvres !4,270.5<!8} {1.405,784) jJ60.279l (1,767.063) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from the sale of assets 23.592 23,592 
Transfers 111 4.270.548 2, 051 .31 1 

To tal other financing sources (uses) 4.270.548 2.074,903 

RevenV05 and other financing 
sourcos (uses) over (under) 
expendi tures S S 668,11 9 , S 1.792.366 , 2,460.485 

Reconciliation of modified accrua l basis 
to full accrual basis: 
Excess of revenues over expendi tures , 1.792.366 
Capltat outlay 2.162.959 
Non-capitalizable items (99.627) 

Change In net position $ 3,855,698 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILL.E, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule 01 Cnanges In the Status of 

Transit II Capital Project Fund 


From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Project Prior Closed Current 
Total

Authorization Years Projec ts Year 

F!evenues 
Intergovernmental 

Federal grants $ 1.441 .506 S 776,770 , , 157,003 , 933.773 

Slate grants 178.243 97.095 19.623 116,71 8 


Total intergovernmental 1,619,749 873.665 176,626 1,050.491 


Total revenues 1,619.749 873.865 176.626 1,050.491 

Expenditures 
Current 

Transpol1alion 1.797.993 970.963 196.253 1.167.216 
Total expenditures 1.797,993 970.963 196,253 1,167,216 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (178.244) (97,098) (19.627) (1 16,nS) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 148.244 178,244 

Total o ther financing sources (uses) 148,244 178.244 

Revenuos and otner financing 

sources (uses) over (under) 
 , ,expenditures $ 51 .1046 $ 10.373 S 61.519 

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis 
to full accrual basis: 
Excess of revenues over expenditures S 10,373 

Change in net position $ 10.373 

L-l2 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule o f Expenditures by Project 

Transit II Capital Projeci Fund 


From Inception and fOfYear Ended Jun e 30, 2013 


Expenditures by project: 

Transportation 
FTA 90.2406 
FTA 90.2425 
FTA 90.2453 
FTA90.2464 
FTA 902469 
FTA 90.2514 
FTA 26.0008 

Total tra nsportation 

Total expenditures by projecl 

Project 

Authorization 


$ 292.300 
181.750 
300,000 
273,236 
235.147 
500.000 

15.560 
1.797 ,993 

S 1.797,993 

Prior 

Yea rs 


$ 	 290.281 
180,606 
280.225 
190.971 
28.880 

970,963 

$ 970.963 

Closed 

Projects 


$ 

S 

Current 
Year 

Total 

$ 

$ 

2.019 
1,144 

11.372 
55,180 
57,307 
69,231 

196,253 

196.253 

$ 

$ 

292.300 
181 ,750 
291,597 
245 ,151 
86.1 87 
69,231 

1.167.21 6 

1.167,216 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 

Airpo rt Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

(With Compara tive Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2012) 


Variance 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services 
Other revenues from operations 

Total operating revenues 

$ 

Budset 

4,076,051 
162.220 

4,238,271 

S 

Positive 
(NeS!ativel 

46,660 
9,111 

55,771 

S 

2013 
Actual 

4,122,711 
171,33 1 

4,294 .042 

$ 

2012 
Actual 

4,173,705 
172,997 

4,346,702 

Operating expenditures 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operal ing e.xpenditures 
Capilal outlay 

Tolal operating expenditures 

1,315,984 
2,194,052 

294,605 
3,804,641 

43,378 
683,412 

75,325 
802,1 15 

1,272. 606 
1,510,640 

1,250,562 
1.458,732 

324,239 
3,033 ,533 

Operating income (loss) 433,630 857,886 1,291,51 6 1,313,169 

Nonoperatin9 revenues 
Inleresl earned on investments 
Miscellaneous 
Fe<!eral and Slate grants 

Total nonoperating revenu es 

19,500 
84 ,297 

133,687 
237,484 

(24,295) 
104.015 
(20,799) 
58,921 

(4J 95) 
188,312 
112.888 
298.405 

20,633 
83, 769 

138,131 
242,533 

Nonoperati ng expenditures 
Public salety reimbursements 

Total nonopera ting expendilures 
439,600 
439,600 

1, 107 
1,107 

438, 493 
438.493 

437,664 
437.664 

Revenues over (under) expe nditu res 231.51 4 917.914 1,149,428 1,118,038 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds flom sale of assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers oul 
Appropriated fund balance 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

(755,933) 
524.419 

(231 ,514 ) 

716 
16,502 

307,152 
1524.4 19) 
(200.049) 

716 
16,502 

(448, 781) 

(431.563) 

5,552 
21 ,034 

(1, 164,424) 

(1,137.838) 

Revenues and other financ ing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S $ 717,865 $ 717, 865 $ (19,800) 

Reconciliation of change in net position 
Totat revenues 
Total expenditures 

Subtotal 

S 4,607,665 $ 4,615,821 
4,635,621 

(19,800) 

Depreciation 
Change in accrued vacation 
Change in inventory 
Capital outlay 
Proceeds from safe of assets 
GaIn (loss) on disposal of assets 
Bad debt expense 
Net OPE S expense 

Subtotal 

(2,744,928) 
(18.414) 

472 
219.260 

(7 16) 
716 

(2,764 ) 
(26, 2421 

(2.S72.596) 

(2,O67,OO9) 
6,351 

(1,662) 
324,239 

(5,552) 
5,552 

(15,904) 
\33,828) 

(1,787 ,813) 

Change in nel position 5 \1,854,73 1) $ (1,807,613) 
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CITY OF FAYEneVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schoduie of Changos in the Status of 

Airport Capital Project Fund 


From IncepUon and for Yoar Endod Juno 30, '21)13 


Project Prio r Ctosed Current 
AUlhoriutJon YUt'$ Projects Ve~r Total 

RevGnues 
Feder319r3rns S 20.7 10,027 S 1 9 , ~6.339 S 7.321,24 1 S 5.998,873 , 18.213.971 
Slate grams 953. 166 854.881 67.254 922. 135 
Passenger fa<;ilily charges 458.990 3,548.586 1.080.589 512.646 2.980.643 
Investment Income 88.303 339.731 (3,746) 335,985 

Totallevenue$ 22.216,486 24 .279,537 8.401.830 6.575,027 22,452.734 

Expenditures 
AIP-30 LoOp. Build"'9, Beacon 3.558.021 3.340.963 3,340,963 
AIP-32 Airport Improvement Projects 716.870 716,870 
West GA Ramp Rehabolitat ion 746.378 720,983 720.983 
TaXIWay A Reh~t;M lit~to on 206,710 
A IP·35 ARFF RehOlbllitation and Alp ·36 t.693.09(1 1.509.298 1 ,509.298 
Local M31chJFuiure Projects 349.000 
AIP.J,4 Runway 4122 RehabilitatiOn 6.987.132 6.987.132 
Tree Clearing RlKlW~YS 10 & -4 282.6 19 198,609 74,726 273.535 
T3~iw3y A. C, D, f Rehabihtalion 7.173.777 6.264.557 146.031 6.41 0.588 
ARfF Airport Vehicle 695,261 695.261 
AlP.J8 Apron Rehab, Taxiway 5,243,379 1.735.931 2,928,424 • . 664.355 
AIP·39 Improve Rvnway Safety 4,525,239 3,357,644 3.357.644 
ReOOY31iQn of Airpon P~rking 1.542.969 1,435.739 12.656 1.448.395 
Jelbridge 4 Reptacemenl 4139.500 467,917 2.4 11 470,334 
SIQm\drain Pipe InslaNalion t15,000 2.600 2.600 
GA Feoce Replacemenl 115.000 
Nonh GA Park~!l 165.000 
RlJnway 4 Safety Area FAA Reimbursement 71.779 71,779 7t ,779 

Totat expendi tures 26.3'37.461 24.076.060 6.399.263 6.593.677 22,270.474 

Revenues over (under) I/xpenditures 14.120.975) 203.417 2.567 (1 S,55O) 182 ,260 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 4.192.733 3,996.791 7,950 448.7131 4.437.628 
Transfers OIJI (100.042) (94.056) (10.517) (16,503) (100,042) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 28.284 28 ,284 

To tal other financing sources (uses) 4,120.975 a ,567 ) 432,278 4,365,870 

Revenues and other financing sourc" 
(uses) over (under) expenditures , , 4.134 ,502 S , 413.628 $ 4.548,130 

RI/conciliatlon of modified accrual 
basis 10 full a~crual basis: 
Ex(:ess of revenues oyer expen<lilures , 41 3.6213 
Capitalootlay 6,593,677 
Non·capitalizable items (71 .778) 

Ch3nge in nol position , 6.935.527 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures . Budget and Actual {Non·GAAP) 

Solid Waste Recycling Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2012) 


Budget 
Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

2013 
Actual 

2012 
Actual 

Operating revenues 
Charges fO( services 
Other revenue from opef8tions 

Total operating revenues 

$ 2,290,900 
9,000 

2,299,900 

$ 4.916 
69 

4,985 

S 2,295,816 
9 ,069 

2,304.885 

$ 2 ,273.708 
8.91 5 

2.282,623 

Operating expenditures 
Personnel 
Other operating expenditures 
Capitat outlay 

Total oper8ting expenditures 

30.521 
2 .278.638 

2,309.159 

2.645 
124.961 

127.606 

27,876 
2.153.677 

2.181 .553 

20.824 
2,119.145 

37,480 
2.177,449 

Operating income (loss) (9.259) 132.591 123.332 105.174 

Nonopernting revenues (expenditures) 
County revenue 301 ,SOD (250) 301,250 299.525 
Miscellaneous 94,800 22.661 117,461 168,323 
Inlerest earned on investments 4.600 (6. 1931 (1.5931 7,438 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 400.900 16.218 417 ,1 18 475.286 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Translers out 

Total other finanCing sources (uses) 

Revenues and other finan cing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S 

391.641 

1391 ,641) 
(391,641 ) 

S 

148.809 

148.809 $ 

540.450 

p91 .641~ 
(391,641) 

148.809 $ 

580,460 

~427.245~ 
(427,245) 

153.215 

Reconciliation of change in net pOSition 
Total revenues 
Total expenditures 

Subtotal 

Deprecjation 
Oecrease (increase) in accrued vacalion 
Nel OPEB expense 
Unearned revenue 
Capital outlay 

Subtotal 

$ 2,722,003 
2,573.194 

148,809 

(7 ,496) 
121 

(685) 
(490) 

(8.550) 

$ 2.757,909 
2,604.694 

153.215 

(3.748) 
(757) 
(676) 

2.395 
37,480 
34.694 

Change in net position $ 140,259 $ 187 ,909 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
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Internal Service 
Funds 
Internal Service Funds account for the financing of se rvices provided by one 
department or agency to other depar tments or agencies of the City on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 

The following comprise the City's Internal Service Funds: 
• Insurance Fund 
• PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund 

All Internal Service Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. 
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CITY OF FAYEnEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Combining Balance Sheet 

Internal Service Funds 


June 30, 2013 


Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Intertund receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

$ 

Insurance 
Fund 

20,313,197 
31 ,573 

31 

PWC 
Fleet 

Maintenance 
Fund 

S 
837, 344 
848.038 

1.685.382 

$ 

Total 

20.313.197 
868.917 
848.038 
313,092 

22,343,244 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets 

Total noncurrent assets 
2.023,701 
2,023 ,701 

2,023,701 
2.023,701 

Total assets $ 20.657.862 $ 3.709,083 $ 24 ,366.945 

Liab ilities and net position 
Cu rrent liabililies 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Current portion at long-term debt 

Tota! current liabilities 

$ 2,946,087 
3,518 

2,949,605 

$ 683.224 
111.218 
794.442 

$ 3,629 ,311 
114,736 

3,744,047 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Net OPEB obligation 
Unearned revenues 
Long-term debt 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

72,494 
12,705 

85,199 

391.314 

48,491 
439,805 

463,808 
12,705 
48,491 

525,004 

Total liabilities 3,034,804 1,234,247 4,269.051 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted net pOSition 

Total net position 
17.623,058 
17.623,058 

2.023,701 
451,135 

2,474,836 

2,023.701 
18,074.193 
20,097,894 

Total liabilities and net position $ 20,657,862 S 3,709,083 $ 24.366,945 
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CITY OF FAYEITEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Sta tement of Rovenue'S, Eltpen$es ilnd Char>ge$ in Fund Net Position 

Internal Se .....ke Funds 


Year Ended June 'lO, 2(113 


'we 

tnsunmce 
Fund 

Fleet 
Maintenanco 

F,," TOI."II 

Operating rovenues 
OtnOf rO!lvenue from op<IIralions 
II'llertund charges and em~ee COfllribu ~ons 

Mlsclln<lneou$ opera ling reveoues 
TOtal Opefatlll9 revenues 

S ~49. 936 

15,410,985 

\5,&>0 ,921 

S 7.921.27\ 

5,021 
7,926,292 

S $,371 ,207 
15,410,985 

5,021 
23.7&7.213 

Operning eltpenses 
Salaries and employee benetits 
Other operatIng expenses 
Deprecialion 

Total Ope!'attng e:<censes 

295,n$ 
14,553,198 

14,848.97 4 

7,826,(}6 ' 
144,101 

7,970. 182 

295.778 
22,379,257 

144, 101 
22,819,1 35 

OpeFoiting income (loss) 1,011.947 (43.&70) %8,017 

Nonoperatin9 'e"enul! (expense) 
InlereSI eame<! on inveSlments 
Miscelianeo\lS .evenue 
Gain Iloss) on diSiX'&at 01 capital asselS 

TOtal noooperatinQ r&venue (e;<pens.e) 

(20.262) 
&,626 

111.634) 
1,412 
1,4 12 

(20 , ~82) 

&.628 
1.412 

(10,222) 

Income (IO$s) belorO!l tranSfers 
and contribution$ 1,000,313 (42.458) 957.855 

Transfers in 
Chango In 1Ml! position 

~87,303 

I.~87,SI6 

42,458 529,161 
1.487,616 

TOlal net position. beginning 16,135.442 2,47~ .5~6 18.810,278 

Tobl ne~ posit ion· ending S 17.623.058 S 2,474.&36 $ 20,097,894 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA. 

Combining St8I~ment of Cash Flow, 


Internll Service Fund, 

Ye<lr ended June lO, 201 3 


,W, 
Fleet 

In s ur3nce M~intenanc6 

Fund Total'"'" 
Operating ac tivities 

C3~ ~ letelved Irom CU S IQme~ , 15,405.&44 , 8, · 56.029 , 23,86\,673 
C3$ ~ lee<:M><l lrom Insu ra nce reimbu~men(.$ 449.936 449,936 
eft!! paid 10 or on ~haW IX ~ mployees [or Wf\Ias (292.356) (2.302,4.01 1) (2 .594,797) 
Cash !13 k! (or ~OO(IS and services p4 .1~ 463~ j6. \ 58,096 / ~.311 ,5 591 

Nel cash provid &(! by (uud In) 
Optlratin9 acUv(Ue-s 1.408.761 (4 .~081 1.· 04 .253 

NonCallibl flnanc ln9 activitin 
Tran$fers;n 487 ,303 '2, 4 ~a 529,761 

Net enh pro vide " (uUd) by non capiul 
fin3ncinil ac tivilles 487 ,303 42.458 5211.76 1 

Ca pital and relat..11 nna nc lng acUv illes 
PrGCeeds from sa le of a ss.ets 2.'n3 2.'" 
Aequlsroon .... (I eon'truc:tion of Qp;l.al lto:lS.<:1S \ 40.933) \40.933) 

Net CUll pro"i<I~d (used) by Uopilal and 
re latad n~oclng a c tl"lties ,37.950) (37.950) 

Investin g activities 
Inte'etl and dividendS 

Ne t cash pro"lde d (usl!'d) by Invu llng activities 

NetincAla$& (dtcrQ~sQ) in eash ~ .. d c~sh 
equ lya lo"lSJjnv~tmenl' 1.875.t02 1,875.802 

enh ~nd CUll e quivalenlslinv u trncnts 
8eyinn in.g o f yMr 1 8. 4~7. 39~ 18.437.3S5 

End 01 ye.l, , 20.313. 197 S , 20,3 13.191 

Cu~ ~"" cash equivalents 
TOl;ll cash a .... c ash equivJl e ntallnvUlmeflts 

, 
S 

20.313,1 97 
. 0.313,197 

,, ,, 20.313. 197 
20.313.197 

Un,esmclcd cas h Md c.uh oqul\flller1l s1inve. lI11 t nts 
To U I cash ~nd cnh t Qul"alenl$llnveSml t nts 

,, ,, ,, 
Rtconclll~Uon of UpItnItlng Income (10$$) 

10 net cash proy lded b~ 
(ustd In) opel1lung ~C1iyiU&$ 
Operal>nG income (loss) , 1,011 .947 , (43.870) , W8.0n 
Adjustment' 10 ' eco ncile o ~rao..., inc<>m e (lo$$) 

to net en" ~ rovlded by (~~e-d In) "I'era~n9 
a CII VI~e~. 

O e~ 'et:lalion 1 4~, 10\ 144,10 1 
NOno~rating rectiPIl fNlm c.uSlomers 8,628 8,628 
G.aln (I~) on Mle of Uopital a ...... ls 

Cha nge In a U alS ~ nd lIa bili1il!s 
( I ~M) deerease in accounts ' eGelva t:<e (15.1!42) 529.737 SI3.89!> 
(Incrun) decr~se in ptQPfld ;1e"'S 73.03S n .03!> 
(IncruM) decrea:s.e in imamal ~31 ~rooes. (1 ,021,702) (1, 021,702 ) 
(l rlC:rtue ) ~et.le,n~ in 8CCO(J nl$ P3)'Olblc 

8t1d aCC1\led liabllil.les 325,898 371, 002 696 ,760 
(1I'IC1ease) decre ase In aa:rued compensated 

lIbseocu (' .925) \0.164 13.239 
(Increase}deCleue in unearned revenues 1.873 1.873 
(Increaso) ~u In Net OPES Obhgat"'" 

Ne t cnll pto "id<od by (ustd In) o pe1'3U ng acU~lIiu , 6.347 
1.408.76 1 , \4.508! , 6.347 

1.4()4,2S3 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 

Insurance Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2012) 


Variance 
Positive 2013 2012 

BUdget (Negative) Actual Actual 

Operating revenues 
Other revenues from operations 
Intertund charges and employee contributions 

Total operating revenues 

S 122.500 
15.944,425 
16.066.925 

$ 327 ,436 
(533.440) 
(206.004) 

$ 449,936 
15,410.985 
15,860.921 

$ 1.092,686 
15,149,692 
16.242.378 

Operating expenditures 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 

Total operating expenditures 

304.251 
16,499.252 
16,803,503 

11.895 
2.072 .884 
2.084.779 

292,356 
14,426.368 
14.1 18.724 

283.793 
14,381.158 
14,664.951 

Operaling Income (loss) (736.578) 1.878,775 1. 142.197 1.S77.427 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Interest earned 00 investments 
Miscellaneous 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 

86.100 

86.100 

(106,362) 
8.628 

(97.734) 

(20.262) 
8.628 

(11 .634) 

90.81 6 
2,279 

93.095 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (650.478) 1.781.041 1.130,563 1.670.522 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Appropriated fund balance 

T alai other financing sources (uses) 

487.303 
163,175 
650,478 

(1 63,175) 
(163.175) 

487, 303 

481 ,303 

SOO.lS3 

500,183 

Revenues and other financing sources (uses) 
over (under) ~xpendilures $ $ 1.617,866 $ 1.617.866 S 2.170.705 

Reconciliation to change in net position : 
Total revenues 
Total expenditures 

Subtotal 

$ 16,336,590 
14 ,718.724 

1.617.866 

$ 16.835.656 
14,664,95 1 

2.170.705 

Decrease (increase) in accrued vacalion 
Change in net OPEB expense 
Decrease (increase) in insurance liability 

Subtotal 

2.925 
(6, 347) 

p26.828) 
(130.250) 

950 
(8,278) 

30,389 
23 .061 

Change in net position $ 1,487. 61 6 $ 2.193,166 

M-4 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE , NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Revenues ilnd Expenditures - Budget and Actual (No n GAAP) ­
?We Fleet Maintenance Fund 


Year ended June 30, 2013 

(with comparative actual amounts lo r the period ended June 30, 2012) 


"''' 
Vari;,nce 
POs itive 201 3 2012 

Bud5le \ jNe5lativel Actua l Actual 
R:evenues 
Operating f(tvenues 

City $et'\<lces , 5.171 .100 , 536.806 S 5.707.906 , 5,4()4.382 
PWC seNices 2.353.600 (145.652) 2. 207. 948 2,037,760 
O!helrevef1ue 10,438 10,43S 3.987 

TOGII oPQratin9 revenues 1.524.700 <101.592 7.926.292 7.446.1 29 

Non-operating revenues 
Gain (Ios.s) on assel disposal 1,4 12 1A1 2 16, 334 

Total non-operat ing revenues 1.412 lA12 16.334 

Trans fel'll In 

Transfers from Electric FUlld 


Total transfers·in 


Total revenues , 7.8()4 ,?OO , 123.00<1 , 7,921.704 , 7,462.463 

Expenditures 
Operating expenditu res 

Fleel ma;n:en::mce S 7.524,700 S 1.753.6 16 S 7.29<1.577 
Total operating expenditures 7.524.700 7.753.6 16 7,2~.577 

Budgetary appropriation!; 

Capital Outlay 260, 000 


Toni b tHigetary IlPproprial;ons 2eO,000 


Tou) expenditure!; , 7,6 04.100 (51 .03<1 ) , 7,153,6 \6 , 7,29<1,571• 
Reconciliation of changes in nOI position 

TOiat revenues , 123.004 , , 7.45Vt53 
Total expenditures !51.0&l) 7,294.577 

Subtotlll S 174.088 157,8aS 

Reconciling items: 
Budgetary SllprOpiiS t;O/1S 42.458 594.334 
Deprecia~on (144, 101) (124.727) 
OPES expense r !<t 3.159) 

To tal reCOnciling ilem$ 426, 448 

Chango In net position , , 594.334 

M·' 




CITY OF FAYETTEVillE, NORTH CAROLINA 
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Fiduciary 
Funds 
• Pension Trust Funds 
• Private- Purpose Trust Funds 

The focus ofFiduciary Fund measuren'lent differs among the various types offunds 
that may be encompassed by this classification. 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
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Trust Funds 

Trust Funds are used to account for asse ts held by the City in a trustee capacity. 

The following comprise the City's Trust Funds: 
• Pension Trust Funds 

- Special Separat ion Allowa nce Trust Fund 
• Private ~ Purpose Trust Funds 


- Police Benefit Trust Fund 

- Firemen's Relief Trust Fund 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statem ent of Fiduciary Net Position 

Pension Trust Fund 


June 30, 2013 


Assets 
Cash and investments 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Total cash and investments 

Accounts receivable 

Total assets 


Liabilities 
Other liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

Net position 
Held in Trust for: 

Pension benefits 
Total net position 

Special 

Separation 

Allowance 

Pens ion 

Trust Fund 


$ 	 2.720.918 
2,720,918 

963 

2,721,881 

37.377 
37.377 


2.684,504 

$ 2,684,504 


N·1 




CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Pension Trust Fund 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Special 
Separation 
Allowance 

Pension 
Trust Fund 

Additions 
Employer contributions $ 734,796 
Investment earnings (2,948) 

Total additions 731,848 

Deductions 
Benefit paymen ts and premiums 619,426 

T otai deductions 619,426 

Change in net position 112,422 

Total net position - beginning 2,572,082 

Total net position - ending $ 2,684,504 

N-2 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

Private~purpose Trust Funds 


June 30, 2013 


Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accoun ts receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Net position 
Held in Trust for benefits and other purposes 

T alai net position 

Police Firemen's 

Benefit Benefit 


Trust Fund Trust Fund Total 


$ 334 $ 1.374.210 $ 1,374,544 
2.545 2.545 

334 1.376,755 1.377.089 

334 1.376.755 1,377,089 
$ 334 $ 1.376,755 $ 1.377.089 

N-3 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Private-purpose Trust Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


Police 
Benefit 

Trust Fund 

Firemen's 
Benefit 

Trust Fund 

Add itions 
Contributions 
I(westmen! earn ings 

T olal additions 

S 

('1 
(1 ) 

$ 113,856 
8,141 

121 ,997 

Deductions 
Benefit payments and premiums 

Total deductions 
123,407 
123, 407 

Change in net position (1) (1,410) 

Total net position - beginning 335 1.378.165 

Total net position - ending $ 334 $ 1,376,755 

Total 

$ 113,656 
8,140 

121,996 


1231407 
123,407 

(1,411) 

1,378.500 

$ 1,377,069 

N-4 



Other Supplemental 
Financial Data 
Other supplemental data is presented to provide a more detailed view of the 
current tax levy and taxes receivable. 

These schedules are not funds and do not measure results ofoperations. 
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CITY OF FAyenEYlLLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Sehedule 01 Current Tal( Levy 


Year Ended June 30. 2013 

To tal 
Property 
Vllh>atlon 

Rate ,,, 
S100 

Amount 
01 Le~ 

''''''''El(cludlng 
Registered 

MOlor 
VehielU 

Reglste'ed 
M~~ 

Vehicles 

0"91n31 Levy; 
G~r.r Fund 

General Funo;! OeferreQ Property 13)(esl" 

, 13.562.826,623 
408.472 

, 0.4~ 

0000 

, 51,848,489 S 55,713,662 S 6,132.627 

Late L;s~ng Pena~ie$, 

General Fund 
Subtotal 

44,920 
61 .8111.409 

44.nO 
55.758.582 6.132,827 

Discoveries: 
Genertl l Fund 
Geoeral Fund "" 

1,351,071 .169 
5-4,293,86& 

0 45& 
04 58 

&,160,885 
247.580 

6.130,523 
247,580 

30,362 

Lale listing Pen~llles, 

Geileral Fund 
Subtotal 

90.691 
8 ,~gg.15ti 

90,891 
6,~8. 794 30.J82 

Refuses 
General Fund 
General Fund~' 

(1.424 ,540,962) 
(2.590) 

0.456 
045& 

(8 .495.907) 
(12) 

(5,983,e27) 
( 12) 

(512.280) 

L~le LiShng Penalties: 
General Fund 

SublOlal 
(252541 

(6.521 ,173) 
(25.254) 

(&.000,6113) (51 2. 280) 

Adjusted Tu Levy 61 .869,3112 5&.218,483 5,850,9\19 

Uncollrx:loo Currf)<lt Vear TU&$ ~t 613011013 p.525.890) (423:'161) (1,102.4.29) 

Clty.wick: C<lrrenl v""S TaJ&$ Colleeted S 60,343,502 S 55.795,022 S 4,S4S.480 

C;tv.wide Curren! Levy COllection PerCtlnUige 97.53'l1. 99 25% 80,490/0 

(a) Pur~lIn!!O N.C G_S _105·277,1 S , properties w bJe-c1to Ia>: Oer~!ITallJOCler (he "roperty Tax Homeste<lcl Citeuil Breaker. 

(b) Pro-rated valuatIOn oI3J12th$ of laxable value for p-opemes anne:<ed ror the period Apnl. M3~ and June, 2012 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Taxes Receivable 

June 30, 2013 

Fiscal Year Ended 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30, 2012 
Addilions 

& Releases Col1ections 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30, 2013 

2013 S $ 61.869,392 $ 60,343,502 S 1.525,890 

2012 1,397,689 (108,708) 934 ,564 354,617 

2011 335,292 (9,269) 61,280 264,74 3 

All Prior 

Less: Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 
General Fund 

1,744.458 
3.477,639 

(747,527) 
$ 2.730.112 

$ 
~ 1 53 , 9791 

61,597,436 $ 
65.181 

61.404,527 

S 

1,525,298 
3,670.548 

F62,6491 
2,907.899 

General Fund Taxes Receivable 
Less: CeTD Taxes Receivable 
Less : Vehide License Fee Receivable 
Less: Lake Valley Dr MSD 

General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

$ 

$ 

3 .239,535 
(7. 177) 

(323.358) 
p.l01l 

2,907.899 

Reconciliations of collections and credit 
with revenues 

Ad Valorem Taxes per the fund financial statemenls 
Less Penalties & tnterest 
Less Taxes - CeTD 
less Taxes - Lake Valley Dr MSD 
Less Barred by Statute 

General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes 

$ 

$ 

61,873,098 
(283.41 3) 
(129,248) 

(55,910) 

61.404.527 

0 ·2 



Statistical 
Section 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

(Unaudited) 

This part of the City of Fayetteville's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information 
as a context for understanding how the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and 
required supplementary information depicls the government's overall financial health. 

CONTENTS 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend infOfmation to help the reader understand how the government's 
financial performance has changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain trend information 10 help the reader assess the City's most significant 
local revenue sources. 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's 
currenllevels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Oemographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the City'S financial activities tak.e place. 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities 
it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted. the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report for the relevant year. 
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Fiscal Yeal Ad Valorem 
20 13 $ 61,873,098 
2012 60,089,099 
2011 58,987,43$ 
2010 58,699,957 
2009 55,553,012 
2008 54,765,677 
2007 58, 574,670 
2006 41,590,985 
2005 39,622,100 
2004 38,43 1.862 

Sales TalC 
$ 	 33,838,708 

33,283,642 
31,633,373 
30,789,881 
29,628,044 
31,659,262 
30,488,647 
23.457,449 
22,543,521 
20,698,993 

City of Fayetteville , North Carolina 

Ta x Revenues By Source, Governmenta l Funds 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 


(Unaudited) 

Vehicle CablevlslOI' and 
License Privilege Beer and Olher Franchise 

T" 
S 615,393 

License 
$ 2,466,929 

Wine Tax 
$ 839,798 , Tax ' 

71,223 
9,568,985 517,271 2,557,66<1 902,467 419,653 

10, 178,685 624,591 1,226,057 915,803 426,687 
10,035,192 630,853 983. 146 295,870 372.226 
9, 196,<188 530,065 1,013,929 814,901 380,944 
8,072.068 635,993 984, 727 80 1,099 491 ,902 
6,554 ,283 623,019 920.196 788,290 1,2'13,013 
5.602,548 533.750 815,156 578.491 1,918,758 
5,245,207 469,488 731,719 578.481 1,547,289 
5, 121.788 444,521 68<,606 56 1,588 2.Q16,045 

Rental 
Property 
Gross Consolidated 

Receipts 91 1 Tax' 
$ 593,907 $ 

572.634 
562.089 
477,886 
441,381 
4 16,176 361,922 
39 1,124 1,064,599 
373,114 950,499 
3-14,913 996,840 
305,860 1,041,170 

Schedu le 5 

TOlal 
$ 111 ,341,150 

108,011,615 
104,55'1,724 
102,285,01 1 

97 ,658 ,764 
98,168,826 

100,6'l7,a.41 
75,820, 750 
72,079,558 
69,306,633 

, Effective January 1. 2007, video programming broadcast services became subject 10 slate sales taxes and proceeds are now reported with UWity Taxes Only ancills'Y 

services remained subject to a lOcal cablevlsion franchise tax from Janus'Y 1, 2007 through the August 31, 2012 termination date m ille lOcal franChise agreement 

, Effective JanuOlry I , 2008, separate local and state 91 1 taxes on wire line and wire less phone services were replaced by a consolidated state ~H 1 fee. Tax revenues 
reported for fiscal year 2008 ai'ld prior rene<:llhe combined 10tal of the previous focar and stale taxes . 

• ,7 
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Fiscal 

Year 
2013 

Residentia l 

$ 912,090,576 

Commercial 

$ 7'16,303,677 

Industrial , 281,595,874 

2012 897 .373,380 760.894,124 299.989,818 

2011 1.013.1 70,837 785.669,193 301,732,101 

2010 969,678, 167 762.559.263 318.392,654 

2009 950,176.318 761,932.351 3 15.244.653 

2008 920.716,611 769,872,205 337,212.851 

2007 894.699,452 752.650.321 308.222,997 

2006 9 11 .632.771 755,229,052 356.355,125 

2005 865,456,446 743,676,0 14 376.769.957 

2004 882,688,409 7'1'1 ,796,652 379. 140,092 

• Rale shown is for Residenlial Service· basic facili ties charge. 

D Rale shown is for Residenlial $ervice-energy charge per kWh. 

City of Fayettevl11c, North Carolina 

Revenue Base by Customer Class 


Charges for Services 

Electric Kilowatt Hours Sold 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited ) 


L1ahtlns: Other Total 

$ 35,189,619 $ 52.223,142 $ 

35,4 20.886 59.706,692 
35,647 ,580 64 .960,101 
34,471.378 60,706.464 
33,636,689 59.890,915 
34,359,901 59,073,420 

28,539,204 54 ,675,687 
27,855.361 53.069,016 
27.107.118 54.41 5,761 

26.1 54.369 53.410,167 

2,037 .'\02,888 

2.053.384.900 
2,201 ,179.812 

2.1 '15.805,926 
2. 120.880,926 

2,121,034,988 

2.038.787.661 

2,104,14 1,325 

2,067,425.296 
2,086,189,689 

Base 

Rate· 


SI0.80 
10 .80 

10.80 

9.90 
9.00 

9.00 
900 
9.00 
B OO 

B.oo 


Schedule 6 

Tot')l Direct ROlle 

Electric 

Usage Rate!> 

first 500 kWh ea kWh> 500 

SO,0946 $0.0946 

0.0946 0.0946 

0.0900 0.0977 

0.0825 0.0896 

00750 0.0815 

0.0750 0.0815 

0,0719 0.0794 

0.07 19 0.0794 

0.0710 0.0670 

0,07 10 0.0670 

P-8 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 


Sch edule 1 

Fis cal Estimaled 
Year Public Less: Tolal Ci ty Actual Sales 

Ended Real Pers onal Servicos Tax Exempt Assessed General Taxa ble Assessment 
June 30 

201 3 
Pro ~e!!X 

• $ 11,687,657,234 

Property 

$ 1,822,068.580 

Property , 

$ 166,500,205 

Real Property • 

$ 192,290,792 

Value 

$ 13.483,935,226 

Tax Rale 

$0456 

Value 

13,466,718,003 

Ratio ' 

100.15% 

2012 11,453,552,799 1,705,01 9,913 167,761,204 187,231,303 13,139,102,613 0.456 13,131 ,221,705 100.07% 

2011 

2010 
, 11,261,620,799 

11,041 .771,668 

1.628,238,092 

1.638,183,540 

161,145,492 

162,841 ,740 

175,051,710 

111,810,830 

12,875,952,673 

12,730,992,118 

0,456 

0.456 

12 ,893,719,611 

12 ,743,028,3 1-4 

99.84% 

99.89% 

2009 8,663,4 71,270 1,699,962,544 144,91\' ,-408 76,918,867 10,431.456,455 0.530 12.384,609,990 81.72% 

2008 8.432,008,954 1, 699,309,4 81 156,856,864 71,058.61 5 10,217, 116,684 0.530 11,603,736,461 86.00% 

2007 8,166,720,922 1,634 ,081,615 172.573,842 74,375,245 9 ,899,001 ,134 0.530 10,853,177,565 89.65% 

2006 6,275,715,436 1,431.355,898 138,799,665 65.483, 117 7,780,387,882 0.530 8,286,824,738 92.46% 

2005 
200_ 

, 6,119,634.059 

6,022 ,674,221 

1,207,511,007 

1,150,100.683 

133,171.846 

127,680,027 

63,057,620 

61.704,378 

7,397,259,292 

7,238,750.553 

0 .530 

0.530 

7,500,121,924 

7,238.750,553 

98.33% 

100.00% 

Note: A revalualion of real property is required by North Carolina General Stalutes at leasl every eight years A County-wide revaluation of real property was effective with Ihe 
lax levy for fiscal year 2009-2010. Property is assessed at actual value; therefOle, the assessed values are equal 10 actual value, 

1 	Public service companies' property Includes real and personal property of utilities. railroad and bvslines, elc. These assessments are made by 
the North Carolina Department of Revenue with no distinction between real and personal property. 

2 Exempt real estate only. 
J ESlimated actual values and the ratiO of lolal assessed value to total estimated actual value have been adjusted 10 reflect updated sales 

assessment ratio percentages from the North Carolina Department 01 Revenue. 
~ Excludes values for properties annexed from March 27. 2012 to June 3D, 2012, and f(1( which taxes were assessed only for the three-month 

period of April, May and June 2012. 

5 DenOles the year in which a reva luation was effective Janu<HY 1s1 and renecled in the fo llOWing fiscal year's property value. 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 
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City of Fayetteville. North Carolina 


Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(Per $100 of Assessed Value) 


(Unaudited) 


Fiscal 
Year 

Ended City General 

June 30 Tax Rate 
2013 $0.456 
2012 0.456 
2011 0.456 
2010 0.456 

200' 0.530 
2008 0 .530 
2007 0.530 
2006 0.530 
2005 0.530 
2()()4 0.530 

SOlJrce: ClJmberland County Tax Office 

Central 

Business Tax 


Distr ict Rate 


$0.100 
0.100 
0.100 
0. 100 
0.100 
0.100 
0. 100 
0.100 
0.100 
0. 100 

Lake Valley Drive 

Municipal Service 


District R8te~ 


$0.345 
0.345 

Schedule 8 

Overla~ein~ Rates' 
Cumberland County 

Coun!! wide 
$0.740 
0.740 
0.740 
0 766 
OJl60 
0.880 
0.880 
O.sao 
0.880 
0.880 

, Overlapping rEl tes are those 01 lOCal and county governments lha t apply to property owners wl\lun the City of 
Fayettevil le. 

1 The lake Valley Ofl ve Municipal Service Districl was effecl ive for the nrs t time in nscal year 201 2. 

P-l0 



Taxpa~er 

Percentage of 
Total TaJla ble 

Tanble Assessed Assessed 
Value Rank Valuo, 

Percentage of 
Total TSJlabie 

Taxable Assessed Assessed 
Value Rank Value 

Cross Creek MalilLC 
Carolina Telephone 
Piedmont Natural Gas Co. loc. 
Wal-Mart 
Wesllake al Morganton LlC 
Hidden Creek Village 
Independence Place Wesl Fay 
DORM Fayet1evrlle Pavilion lLC 
Eagle Poinl Vi llage Apartments 
Fayetteville Publishing Company 
Cumberland Associates 
UORT of North Caro~na 

NC NaMal Gas Corporation 
Edward Rose Bldg Company 
Progress Energy Carol inas. Inc. 
IntaM Soulheast Fayetteville 
8NP Chason Ridge lLC 
Thomas & HoHinshed Investments 

' Assessed valuations are as of January " 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Principal Property Taxpayers 


Ten Year Comparison 

(Unaudited) 


Schedule 9 

2013 ' 2004 2 

113,194.500 1 
54,129,382 2 
SO.112.011 3 
39,767.050 • 
28,1 07,800 5 
24.803, 500 6 
24.064 .200 7 
23,862.500 8 
22, 919,SOO 9 
22 .35 1.840 10 

0.84% 
0.40% 
0.37% 
0.29% 
0.21% 
0.18% 
0.18% 
0.18% 
0.17% 
0.17% 

$ 403,322,283 2.99% 

$ 58,303,196 

25,797.553 
72,650,500 
30.953.800 
29,228.070 
14,538,147 
14.372,770 
13,620.300 
13,51 1.700 
13,486.700 

, 286.462.736 

201 2 and Ihe associated tax levies were due in the fisca l year ended June 30, 2013. 

2 0.8 1% 

5 0.36% 
1 1.00% 
3 0.43% 

040%•
6 0.20% 
7 0.200/(> 

8 01 9% 
9 0.19% 

10 0.19% 

3.97% 

~ Assessed valuations are as of January t . 2003 and the associated lax levies were due in the fisca l year ended June 30, 2004. 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Property Tax levies and Collections I 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(Unaudited) 


Schedule 10 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy Tota I Collections to Date 

Fiscal 
Yeilr Taxes Levied Collections 

End ed for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage 
June 30 

20 13 
Fiscil l Year , 61,859,392 , Amount 

60,343,502 
ofLe~ 
97,53% , Years , Amount 

60,343,502 
of Levi: 
97 ,53% 

2012 59,990,898 sa ,593,009 97 ,67% 934,564 59 ,527,573 99,23% 
2011 sa,795,924 57,406,499 97.64% 1,001,861 58,408,360 99.34% 
2010 58,418,406 57,1 26,777 97.7£1% 94 1,918 58,068,695 99,40% 
2009 55,349,877 53 ,901,099 97.38% 1.073,090 54,974,189 99.32% 
2008 54,216,530 52,738,807 97.27% 1,093,611 53,832,418 99.29% 
2007 52,534 ,182 50,964,492 9701% 1, 199.827 52,164,319 99.30% 
2008 , 41 ,311,068 39,855,571 96.48% 1.1 20,079 40,975,650 99.19% 
2005 39,252,202 37,879 ,950 96.50% 1,094,448 38,974, 398 99.29% 

200' 38,404,079 36,805,753 95.84% 1,299,436 38,106,189 99.22% 

1 Schedule reflecls Ihe general tax levy DIlly. 
1 	 Ooes not include $6,400,613 in 2005 real and personal property taxes related [0 Ihe Phase V annexalion areas 

since payment of these taxes were d~ in three Installments in fiscal years 2007 through 2009 as a result 01 
legislation approved by the Nonh Carolina Genera! Assembly in May 2006. 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Ratios of OutstandIng Debt by Type 


last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 


Schedule 11 

Governmenta l Act ivi ties Buslneu. type Acliv;Ues 

Genera l 
Fisc &1 C~pit&liled Notes ObllgaUon Capltatl.eed Totat Pri mary Pe rce ntage 01 

Year 

~ 
~012 

Bonded Debt , 14.110.875 
. 5.996.'106 

Leeses 
$ 11.921.43\ 

21.998.896 

Payabte 

S 525.000 
600. 000 

• 
Bonds 

4.270.372 
4 .&43.594 

ReV8n ue Bonds 

S 1~.206.030 

t 50. 2~5 . 0 00 

Notos Pa~able 

S 22.6~.444 

15.86&.039 
S 

Leu es 
39.465 
59.445 

S 

Governm,n t 

209.72':1.617 
209.609.3&0 

Personal tncomo ' 

N<A 
NIA 

Per C.IIe!ta ' 

t .O(l3 
1.00& 

"''' 19. 111.260 25.781.023 1. 150.566 5.648.740 150.480.000 16.683.3<19 79.018 2 18 .033.958 " <A 1.051 
20 10 22.216.115 13.853.293 1.250.598 5.453.88:> 1(j9. 120.000 17.95 1. 193 96. 191 230.953. 260 2.624% 1.112 
2009 28.937.825 1CI.267.5G7 7.412. 175 155.045.000 \9.2HJ.047 220.681.614 2981% 1.2 17 
2008 33.3&3.061 14.343.9 IS 9 .04 1.939 167.135.000 20.486.89$ 244.990.8 12 3. 319% 1.350 
2007 38,108.200 14. 990.943 5.000 1 0. S~6.7Q.1 162.360.000 6-1.396. 136 290.487.079 4.37 1% 1.670 
2006 52.240.000 14.203.330 65.000 2.105.000 172.565.000 135.357.559 3711. I 35.889 8.208% 2.894 
2005 :>7 . ~1I5.00 0 .3.:>:>1 .475 125.000 3.640.00[) 184.320.000 I B.303.H4 271.42".6 19 6 297"1. 2. 120 

"''' 46.470.000 1 3.~ 1 .144 leS .OOO 4.~5.000 19-4.630,000 11.867.713 271 .079.457 6.857% 2.074 

Note Dela~ s r&galdjng the Cily's ootstal\dtng de bt can be found In lhe nOles 10 the fin ancial stalemenls 

See se~ eclul e 17 lor per capila personal income and popula lion d~ta. 

Beginning r,scal year 2013. the QUISlaod,n!J de~ pt~mea IS nel of ple<Tllums al"l(l discount. 85 reponed in Ih e bas IC finane,a t ' le lemenls . 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outs tanding 


Last Ten Fiscal Yea rs 

(Unaudited) 


Schedule 12 

General Bonded Debt 

Qutstand in,a 


Pe rcen tage of 
Gene ral Actual Tota l 

Fiscal Obligat ion T olal Primary Assessed Value of 
Year Bonds Reve nue Bonds Government Property 1 Per Capita 2 
2013 $ 13,955,000 $ 141,965.000 $ 155,920.000 1.16% 746 
201 2 16.720,000 154,365,000 171 ,085,000 1.30% 823 
2011 19,500,000 155,740 ,000 175.240,000 1,36% ' 41 
2010 22 ,290.000 175,500.000 197,790.000 1.55% 952 
2009 26,620,000 164,775.000 191,395,000 1.83% 1,055 
2008 31,1 40, 000 179,020,000 210.160 ,000 2.06% 1.1 58 
2007 35,600.000 175,495,000 211 ,095,000 2.13% 1,214 
2006 40,005,000 188, 505.000 228,510,000 2.94% 1,749 
2005 44,450,000 200,995,000 245.445,000 3.32% 1,876 
2004 40,075.000 205,610,000 245,685.000 3.39% 1,880 

Nole: Delails regarding Ihe City 's outstanding debt can be found in the noles to the financial statements. 

See Schedule 7 for prope rty value data. 


~ Population data can be found in Schedule 17. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Oirect and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 


For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 


(Unaudited) 

Schedule 13 

Governmental Unit 

Debt repaid with properly taxes: 

Cumberland County 

SUbtotal, overlapping debt 

Debt Outstanding 1 

$ 198,358,897 

Estimated Percen tag
Applicable 

59.32% 

e 

$ 

Estimated share of 
Overlapping Debt 

11 7,658,796 

11 7.668,796 

City of Fayetteville direct debt 

T01011 direct and overlapping debt $ 

38,595,302 

156,264,098 

Sources: Assessed value dala used 10 estimate applicable percentages provided by the Cumberland County Tax Administrator. Debt 
outstanding provided by Cumberland County. 

Note: Overlapping governments are those thai coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of Ihe City. This schedule 
estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of The City of 
Fayelleville. This process recognizes thai, when considering the government's ability \0 issue and repay long-term debl. Ihe entire debt 
burden borne by Ihe residents and businesses should be taken into account. However. this does not imply Ihat every taxpayer is a resident, 
and therefore responsible for repaying lhe debt, of each overlapping government. 

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using Imcabte assessed property values. Applicable percentages were 
estimated by determining the portion of Cumberland Counly's taxable assessed value Ihal is within the city'S boundaries and dividing il by 
Cumberland County'S lotal taxable assessed value. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Pledged Revenue Coverage - Utility 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(Unaudited) 

Schedule 15 

Fisca l 
Year Utility Less: Not 

Ended Service Operating Other Available Debt Serv ice Requ irements ' 
l

June 30 Char~es Expenses' AdJustments Revenue Ptlncl~al Interest] To tal Covera !i!e ~ 
20 t 3 $ 283,193.071 • 221.444. 124 6 1,748,947 12,492.849 S 6,076,168 $ 
2012 268, 57 1.535 169, 183 ,581 99,387,954 , 1 ,832,848 7,312.245 

201 1 263,233,<142 168,529,066 94,704,376 19.907 ,849 8,()41 ,630 

2010 237,548,315 162.270,074 75,278 ,2<1 1 12,267,849 7,529,204 

2009 226, 977 ,025 162,615,432 64 .361.593 13,957,849 8.467,888 

2008 222.216.687 150,679,143 36.339, 3$5 107,878,329 55,559,241 6,997,29<1 

2007 212.755,158 139.562,295 70,472.808 143,665, 671 83.646,456 9,739,550 

2006 207,281,292 145.596,083 34,298,883 95.004.092 39,499,356 9.882.230 
2005 193.113,963 141 ,516,235 51,597,728 10,689.756 7,007,747 

2004 187,264,0<16 140,800,522 46,463, 524 7.794.156 7, 164,702 

Noles: 

1 Operating expenses include operating expenses exclusiye of depreciation and all other amortization, 

2 Other adjustments is the recognition of Prepa id Purchase Power Supply net of discount. 

~ Interest represents accNal based interest excluding capila tized interest. 

• Coverage ratios do nOl represent coyerage calculations as defined in the bOnd order. 

5 Debt service includes revenue bOnds and notes and excludes G.O. bonds. 

Note: Details regardinglhe City'S oulstanding debt can be found in lhe noles\o lhe financial slatements. 

18,569,017 $ 3.33 
19, 145,093 $ 5.19 
27,949, <1 79 339 
19,197.053 380 
22,425,737 2,87 
62,556,535 1.72 
93,386.006 1.54 
49,38 1,586 1.94 
17,757, 503 2.91 
14,959.458 3.11 

P- 17 



---

Fis cal 
Year 

Ended 

June 30 
2013 
2012 

Notes: 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 


Pledged Revenue Coverage ~ Stormwater 


Last Ten Fiscal Years l 


(Unaudited) 

Schedule 16 

Stormwatcr Less: Net 

Service Operating Available Debt Service Requirements 6 

CharEles Expenses 2 Revenue PrinciE:sl Interest J Total Covera2e· 
$ 5,233,338 $ 2,384 ,924 $ 2.848,414 $ 575,()()O $ 208,594 $ 783,594 $ 3.64 

5.164 ,229 2,287.316 2,876,913 265,000 38,950 303.950 9 .47 

1 The Stormwater Fund became an Enterprise Fund effective with fiscal year 2012. 


2 Operating expenses include operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and aI/ other amor1izalion. 


3 Interest represents accrual based interest excluding capitalized inlerest. 


.. Coverage ra tios do not represent coverage calculations as defined in the bond order. 


S Debt service includes revenue bonds and excludes notes payable. 


Note: Delails regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements . 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Demographi c and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Calendar Years 

(Unaudited) 
Schedule 17 

Per Capita Retail Sa les 
Personal Personal School Unemployment in Billions ~ 

Year Population 1 Income Income 2 Enrollm ent 3 Rate' Ci!y: Coun!t: 
2013 209,080 " IA NIA 52.729 NIA N/A (a) $3.559 
2012 208,001 NfA NIA 53.063 7.5% N/A (o) 3 .532 
2011 208.291 9,306.025,298 -44 ,678 53,361 7.6% N/A (a) 3.376 
2010 207.779 8,800.271.766 42.35-4 52,187 73% N/A(o) 3.241 
2009 181,481 7,409.687.749 -40.829 53,162 6 .7% 2.348 2.8<1-4 
2008 181,453 7.380.<119,322 40.674 52 .91 2 5. 1% 2 .301 2.752 
2007 173,898 6,646,207.662 38,219 53.912 43% 2.253 2 .747 
2000 130.646 4.606.708.606 35.261 53,403 4.3% 2.062(DI 2 .505 (b) 

200S 130.850 4,405,981 ,200 33,672 53, 399 5.1% 2.987 3.684 
2004 130.692 3,953.433,000 30.250 53,092 5.9% 2.680 3.352 

Sources: 
1. OffiC(! of State Budget and Management. Certified Municipal Population Es1imates for July 1, 2003 through July 1. 2012. 

2. Bureau 01 Economic Analysis. US Department of Comrnerce. Data presented for Cumberland County. NC. 2012 and 201 3 data nOl yet available. 

3. Cumberlancl County Schools, Dislflct Profile. 

4. NC Employment Security Commission. Calendar year unemptoyment statistics IOf Fayettevi lle, NC 2012 data is not yel available 

5. North CarOlina Department 01 Revenue. Policy Analysis and Statistics DiviSion. State Sates and Use Tax Sialislics. 

(e) Municipal tax reporting not available atter June 30, 2009. 

(b)Tax reporting changed to reflect onty taxable sales eHedive July 2005. 

(c)Tax repotling changed to add use lax effective December 2001. 
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Ci ty of FaYlltte"lIle, North Caroli lla 

Prlneipal Employers 


Currenl Yur ilnd Nine Year1i Ago 

(UnaudUed) 


Schl.'dula 18 

~013 200' 
Percelltage o f Percentane of 
Tol~1 County Tota l COUllty 

Employer Emeloyaes Raok Emplo~ment Emplolees Ran~ Emplolment,U.S. Dept of Der\lnse (CMian) 14.51S 11.38% 9.412 6.Q.4 '10,Cumberl<lnd County Board of Edocali<)O 6,531 2 5.12'1. 6,311 5.39%, ,Cape Fear VaUey Hea!th SySlem SAOI 424% 3,650 3.12% ,Wat-M<H1 Associales Inc 2.25% 3.064 2.02% 'M< • 
Cumberland County Govemmeol 2.353 5 1.650/. 2.386 2 04%•,Goodyear Tire &. Rubber Company 2,334 1.83% 2.700 2.3 1% •
City of FayelteVil le 2.056 7 1.01 % 1,742 7 1.49% 
Fayellevi lle Ted\nicat Community COllege 1.39 1 1.0<)% 1. ' 50 , 0 98% •Veterans Admil'lisiralion 1.250 9 098% 

Fayetteviile Stale University 8<0 066% 

US Postal Service " 

PuroralOr. tnc. 1,300 1.11 %
• 
M.J. Salle 1.100 '0 0.g4% 

Total Employment (Ten Laroesl CN-i lian Employers) 39,535 3 1.01% 32.81 7 28.04% 

Sources' Fayetteville-Cumberland County Chllmber o.Commerce. North Carol ina Department or Commerce DiviSion of Employment Securrty. Individual Employers 
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City of Fayettevill e, North Carolina 


Full-time City Government Employees by Function 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(Unaudited) 

Schedule 19 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2010 2012 20132011201' 
Administration .. 85 76 97 91 91 93 96 'OS" 
Public Safely "0 806 8" 827 827 875 8" 898'"'" 
Enviroromental Proledion' ,oa 91 m ,., 118 136 ,,, 85 ..'0' 
Transpol1alion 60 77 79 79 72 77 76" " " ,. ,.ECOflomic and pt1ysical development " 10 " " " " " " 
Recreal iOfl and community (acililies ", ", ,,, ,,, ,,,

'" '" ". '" ," 
Electric ,.. ,.. '54 237 ,.. 257". '" '" .. .. '" .,Inlemal Service JO 48 46" " "" ,..,
Waler 15. m '" ,:\9 193 194 143 150 15' 

Wasleweler 13' 135 133 90 96 100 ' 42 ".'" '" 
TranSit 48 52 ,. 61 7. 87 92" " " 

AlfpOr1 13 " 18 18 18 19 19" " " 
Stormwater ' 26 2. 

Solid Waste Recycling 

TQtlll 1,745 1,835 1,802 1,906 1,897 1,905 1,961 1,969 1,918 2,056 
~ 

Source: City Finence Office Armual Cosl AHocalion Plan and Pub~c Works Commission 

'The Siormwater Fuod became an Enterprise Fund elfecl ive with fiscal year 2012 and IS no longer included \'Ii lh Env.r()rlmenlal Protectron 
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City of FaYl'tt(lvl lle, North Carolina 

Opell'ltlng indiclllol'$ by Fu nction/Program 


Last Ten Flsc~ 1 YOllrs 


(Unaudited) 
Schodu1620 

~~ ~. 2010 W" 2012'00' '00. ~"" ­
Put.l O: $.Ioly 

f". '" ..,.,m1 .,.2~ 15, ::97 16,Bil2 20.115 n,6OB 23.1 97 25.1GB :>5.212 ~7,e.4JEtrw!1<"'CY "np"'"''''''
fn.• ...,il'\Gul$l\od om . ~e5 H •• 1.•95 1.0'12 1.118 ~, .n 

F .... "'.pKIIOM 3 ,35e 3.369 H24 £0.052 •• 1""59 5,670 '.m ' .= ~,JI 4'"
'.'" 

,," 
Poll"" ~, 

NumW "' law .,O IOIIons. 

PI'l)I.~ran••1'i 7,(168 l,f!lJ7 8.521 9 .372 M 65 ,.= ..... .. ­'.~ '." 
TI~"te elra<lor>., :?6 ,9A ~ 21.171 19.225 28,339 39.240 35 4~ "S ,&82 018, 161 31,054 17.4\1'''' 

_ !. I 14 
W~r"~ ,ilal, CM ,.'" 11,52'8 12.493 12,5n 1 3,~el ,,'" 21,OJo& 19,11~ 13.:;01'''' 


C~lIs tor ........;.:. 185,200 191,3)1 1!19.314 :!OoI,~9 215,797 ~15. 127 2' 9,428 222,136 230,l!!9 191.626''' 


Oo\IltIopnlCll"ol So<\o~s 


H...b<If 01 0"""'1. ....-


RoolOttlllai 

_ Jlnglo bro)"y ~, ~, 
 ~ ."'" '" New """~I .f..." I~ "" '" '" '" 

Numbo>rcfUl'O"~ ... m 1,111 _.154 'SO ,,' 1,16." ,,, 
llano" .."", m 1.~S '7'0 1,303 '" 1.:191 1,390 ,'" ."" ,~ ,.~ '.~ 

C""""erd"l 
.~ ~ ,,, '"" " " " m'" " " ~," fl er\O'~"""5 '" '" "'"'. "'" '" '" "" '" 
MiKell"""""" 11,653 12 )'1 ~ 16.695 16,057 \4,B24 16,73\ 16,1 65 11 ,5!m 19.m 13, 132 ,,,,Y:m;t ••1e 1, 173 I.or!> 1,202 1,227 1,17!> 1, 156 1. 18& 1,1 14 '" 
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City of Fayettevill e, North Carolina 

Capital Assets Statistics by Function 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 21 

2004 2005 200' 2007 2008 "09 2010 2011 2012 2013 

P....bllc Salety 
Fire 

Number of stations " 13 " " " 16 16 16 16 " 
Police 

Number of Slations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 , , 
Cullural and Re creationa l 

Mini park s (.5 . 3 Beres) 
Nelghb()(t1 00d parks (7· 1$ acres) 
Community par1o;s (30 • $0 acrts) 
Sports complexes (~O· 80 acre.) 
Green spaces 
Nel9hborhood school· parks 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

NIA 

'"A 
NIA 
NIA 
,"A 

NlA 

13 
13 
7 , 
7 

" 

" " •,
•
" 

12 

", 
2

•
" 

12 

"•
2, 
" 

" " • 
2

•
" 

12.., 
2

• 
" 

" "7,
•
" 

12 

"7,
•
" CommunIty sdrool·parks 

Linear par1o;s 
Spedat usc parks 
Program s1les 
Regional pa rks (100 . 250 acres) 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NJA 
NIA 

NIA 
NIA 
NlA 
NIA 
,"A 

1 , 
12

•, 

1,, 
8 
3 

1, 
7 
8, 

1 , 
7

•, 

1 , 
7 
8 
3 

1 , 
7

•, 

1, 
8 
8, 

1, 
8 
8 
3 

Community center wilh gym NJA NlA NlA 16 16 16 " 16 16 16 
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City of Fayetteville, North Caroli na 
Capital Assets Statistics by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 21 

2<)04 2005 200. 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Public Utillt ios 
Water System: 

Miles 01 water main 
Number 01 new service 

con nection$ 
Maxim um deily capacity of 

lIealmenl planl (MGD) t l) 

SIO<"ag8 capacity (MOD) (1) 

1,179.3 

2.300 

57.5 

36.' 

1,198.2 

2.360 

57.5 
36. , 

1,229.0 

2,962 

57,5 
36. , 

1,245.0 

3.154 

57,5 

36. ' 

1.278 5 

2,285 

57 .5 

36 1 

1.2963 

1.220 

57.5 

36.1 

1.316..4 

616 

57.5 

36.1 

1.329.2 

962 

57.5 

361 

1.351.5 

2.649 

57.5 

36.1 

1.3&U 

1.375 

57.5 
36. , 

Sewer SySlem: 
Number of new service 

connection$ 
Miles of san;ta!), sewer mains 
MaXimum daily capacity 01 

trealment plant (MGD) t l 
) 

2,4013 
1,039.8 

41 .0 

2.299 
1.051.0 

41 ,0 

3.142 
1.092 0 

<11 ,0 

3,005 
1,103.0 

4 1.0 

2.260 
1.132,5 

41.0 

1.152 
1.1 49.7 

46.0 

317 
1.165.8 ... 

1,140 
1,181.5 

46.0 

1.6 12 
1. 203.7 

46.0 

1,375 
1,2190 

46.0 

Electric System: 
Number of new $el"lliCe 

connections 

Diwibut:on line ci rcuit mileS 

1.251 

2.572.00 

1.426 

2)5050 

2,245 

2,781.8$ 

1,74<1 

2,962.<10 
1.151 

2,9$2.10 '" 2.986.88 

65. 
1 ,305 49 ~ 

533 
1.313.79 

1.359 

1.316.73 
6' 

1.316.48 

Transportation 
Street Maintenance 

Streets maintamed (miles) 
Number of traffIC Sig nals (J) 

529$3 

27 
532.22 

27 
68865 

29 

704.48 

28 
72 1.1 9 

28 

72238 

28 

72439 

28 

726 ,51 

" 
730.79 

28 

734.13 

29 

(1 ) MGO"" 1.000,000 gallons per day 
(2) Reflects corfectiofi of presentation of previous dela 
(3) Reflects the number of traffic Signals owned by the City 01 FayeUeviUe 

Source: Information provided by various city depanments and Public Works Commission 
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OMB Circular A-133 
and State Single 
Audit Implementation 
Act Compliance Section 
• Report of Independent Auditor on [nternal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance wi th Government Auditing Standards 

• Report of [ndependent Auditor on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a 
Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over 
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit 
[mplementation Act 

• Report ofIndependent Auditor on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a 
Direct and Material Effect on Each Major State Program and on Internal Control Over 
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State Si ngle Audit 
Implementation Act 

• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

• Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

• Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 
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Report of Independent Auditor on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 


Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

The HonOf"able Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United Stales, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities. 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregated remaining fund information of the City of 
Fayetteville , North Carolina . (the KCity") as of and for the year ended June 30. 2013 and the related notes to the 
financial statements. which COllectively comprises the City's basic financial statements. and have issued OUf 
report thereon dated November 5. 20 13. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and perfonning our audit of th e financial statements, we considered the City"s intemal control over 
financial reporting (intema) control) to detennine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum stances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements. but nol for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees. in the nonnal cou rse of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal 
contrOl, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements 
win not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, In internal control that is less severe than a material weakness. yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
signifICant deficiencies. Given these limitatioos, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist thaI have nol been 
identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts. and 
grant agreements. noncompliance wilh which could have a direct and material effect 00 the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly . we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters Ihat are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Q·1 



Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is sOlely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Ihe City's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, Ihis communication is nol 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Fayetteville. North Carolina 
November 5. 201 3 
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Report of Independent Auditor on Compliance with Requirements 

That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Federal Program 


and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMS Circular A-133 

and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 

The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited the City of Fayetteville. North Carolina , (the 'City") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office 01 Management and Budget (OMS) Circular A-1 33 Compliance 
Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina. issued by the local Governmenl 
Commission, thai could have a direct and material effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 20 13. The City·s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each 01 the City·s major federal programs based on 
our audit of the types of compliance req uirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standard$, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States: OMS Circular A-133. Audits of Stales, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State 
Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, OMS Circular A-1 33, and the State Single Audit 
Implementatfon Act require that we plan and perform the aud it to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance wilh the types of compliance req uirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examin ing, on a test basis, evidence about the 
City·s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures. as we considered necessary in 
the circu mstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However. our audit does not provide a legal determinatkln of the City's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
tn our opinion , the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of ils major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30. 2013. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective (nlemal control over compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance. 
we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct 
and material enect on a major federal pl"Ogram to determine the auditing procedures Ihat are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to 
test and report on internal conlrol over compliance in accordance wilh OMS Circular A-133. but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of inlemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do nol 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance . 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists wt"Ien the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does nOI allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correc!. noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A matefial weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility thaI material 
noncompliCince with a type 01 compliance requirement of a federal program will nol be prevented, QI" detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency. or 
combination of defICiencies, in inlemal control over compliance with a type of com pliance requirement of a federal 
program thai is less severe than a material weakness in internal contro! over compliance, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those Charged with governance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the fi rst paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
deficiencies. significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified . 

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internat control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMS Circular A-133. 
Accordingly , this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 5, 2013 
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Report of Independent Auditor on Compliance with Requirements 


That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major State Program 

and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 


and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 


The Honorable Mayor 

and Members of the City Council 


City of Fayetteville, Nonh Carolina 


Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 
We have audited the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the ·City") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmenfal Auditors in North Carolina. issued by the Local 
Government Commission . that could have a direct and malerial eNect on each of its major State programs for the 
year ende<l June 30. 2013. The City's major Slate programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs . 

Management's Responsibil ity 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws. regulations. contracts, and grants 
applicable to its state programs. 

Auditors Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major state programs based on 
our audit of the types of compliance requiremenlS referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing siandards generally accepted }n the Uniled Siaies of America; the standards applicable 
10 financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States: app1'lcable sections of OMS Ci rcular A·133. Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profrt 
Organizations, as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the stale 
Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, OMS Circular A·1l3, and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above thai could have a direct and material 
effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis. evidence about the City's 
compliance with those requirements and perfonning such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonabte basis for our opinion on compliance for each major stale 
program. However. our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance. 

Opin ion on Each Major State Program 
In our opinion. the City complied. in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above thaI could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 
2013. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, 
we considered the City's internal conlrol over compliance with the types of requirements thai could have a direct 
and material effect on a major State program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly. we do not eXp!'"ess 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance . 

A deftciency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operalion of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. to 
prevent, or deted and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a 
timely basis . A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance. such thaI there is a reasonable possibility Ihat material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Slate program will not be prevented. or detected and 
corrected. on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency. or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in inlernal control over compliance, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed 10 identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this repeR on internal control over compliance is solely 10 describe the scope Of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMS Circular A-133. 
Accordingly. this report is not suitable for any olher purpose. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 5, 2013 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


SECTION I. Summary of Auditor's Results 
Financial Stalements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified 

Inlernal control over financial reporting : 

Material weakness identified Yes ---"­ No 

Significant deficiency identified 
that is not considered to be a 
material weakness Yes --K- None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted Yes _X_ No 

Federa l Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness identified Yes ---"­ No 

Significant deficiency identified 
that is not considered to be a 
materia! weakness Yes ~ None reported 

Noncompliance material to federal 
awards ---"­ No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 Ves ~ No 

Idenl ification 01 major federal programs: 

CFDA Number Names 01 federal Program Of Cluster 
16.738 Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 
16.738 ARRA - Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Granl Program 
16.804 	 ARRA - Edward Byrne Memoria! Justice Assistance Grant Program/Grants to Units of 

Local Government 
20.507 Federal Transil- Formula Grants (Urbanized Area FormUla Program) 
20.106 Airport Improvemenl Program 
66.458 Capitalizalion Grants for Clean Water Slate Revolving Funds 
66.468 Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water Slale Revolving Funds 
81 .128 ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Granl Program 

Dollar threshold used 10 distinguish 
between Type A and Type B Programs $ 676 169 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? -L Yes No 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROl.INA 


Schedule of Findings and Questloned Costs 


Year Ended June 3D, 2013 


Slate Awards 

Internal conlrol oller major State programs: 

Malerial weakness idenlified Yes _X_ No 

Significant deficiency identified 
that is nol considered to be a 
material weakness Yes -2L.. None reported 

Noncompliance malerial to Slate awards Yes --L- No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
requited to be reported in accordance 
with the State Single Audit 
Implementation Acl Yes _X_ No 

Identification of major State programs: 

Program Name 
Powell8i1\ 

Section II. Financial Statement Findings 

None reported . 

Section III. Federal Award FIndIngs and Quostloned Costs 

None reported. 

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported. 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


None reported . 
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Charge Compliance 
Section 

• Report ofIndependent Auditor on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to the 
Passenger Facility Charge Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in 
Accordance with the Passenger Facility Charge Program Audit Guide 

• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

• Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

• Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 
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::::::: Cherry Bekaert " 
QA., 

Report of Independent Aud itor on Compliance 

with Requ irements Applicable to the Passenger Facility Charge Program 


and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with the 

Passenger Facility Charge Program Audit Guide 

The Honorable Mayor 

and Members of the City Counci l 


City of Fayetteville . North Carolina 


Report on Compliance for the Passenger Facility Charge Program 
We have audited the City of Fayetteville. North Carolina, ("the City") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies. issued by the Federal 
Aviation Administration (Guide). for the City's passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 
2013. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations , contracts, and grants 

applicable to the passenger facility cha rge program. 


Auditor's Responsibil ity 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City's passenger facility charge program based 

on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 

accordance with auditing standards generally acc:;epled in !he United States or America; the standards applicable 

to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 

States; and the Guide. Those standards and the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance abou t whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 10 above 

Ihat could have a direct and male rial effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes 

examining, on a lest basis. evidence about the City's compliance with Ihose requirements and performing such 

other procedures as we considered necessary in Ihe circumstances . 


We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the passenger facility 

charge program, However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance. 


Opinion on Passenger Facility Charge Program 

In our opinion, the City complied. in all material respects. wi th the compliance requirements referred to above that 

could have a direct and material effect on its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30. 20 13. 


Report on Interna l Control Over Complian ce: 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over compliance 

with requirements of laws, regu!a.lions. contracts and grants applicable to the passenger facility charge program. 

In planning and perfonning our audit of compliance. we considered lhe City's intemal control over compliance with 

requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program to detennine 

the auditing prOCedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 

compliance for the passenger facility charge program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 

accordance with the Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal 

control over compliance . Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal 

control over compl iance. 


R-' 



Report on Interna l Control Over Compliance (Continued) 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exisls ...men the design or operation of a control over compliance 

does not allow management Of employees, in the normal course of perform ing their assigne<:l funclions, to 
prevent , or detect and correct. noncompliance with a type of compliance requiremenl of the passenger facility 
charge program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a defICiency. or a 
combination of deficiencies. in internal control over compliance, such Ihat there is a reasonable possibility thai 
malerial noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program win nol 
be prevented, or delecteo and corrected. on a timely basis. A signifICant deficiency in internal conlrol over 
compliance Is a deficiency. or combination of deficiencies, in internal conlrol over compliance with a type 01 
compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program that is less severe Ihan a malerial weakness in 
internal conlrol over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was lor the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance thaI might be 
defICiencies, significant deficiencies or materia) weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we coosider to be material weaknesses . However, matenal weaknesses may exist 
thai have not been identified. 

The purpose of th is report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Passenger 
Facility Charge Program AudIt Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 5, 2013 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Schedule of Findings and Quost/oned Costs 


Year Ended June- 30, 2013 


SECTION I. Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified 

Internal conlrol over financial reporting : 

Malerial weakness identified Yes No--L 

Significant deficiency identified 
that is nol considered 10 be a 
material weakness Yes None reported --L 

Noncompliance material 10 financ!al 
statements noted Yes No --L 

Passen~er Facility Charae Program 

Inlernal control over passenger faCility charge program: 

Material weakness identified Ves No--L 

Significant deficiency identified 
that is not considered to be a 
material weakness Yes _X_ None reported 

Noncompliance material to passenger 
facility charge program Yes --L No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for passenger facility Charge program: 
Unmodified 

Anv audit findings disclosed Yes --L No 

Section II. Financ ial Statement Find ings 

None reported. 

Section III. Passenger Facility Charge Findings and Questloned Costs 

None reported. 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 


Summary Schedu le of Prior Aud it Findings 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 


None reportable. 
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